DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO Form 10-Q February 10, 2014 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended December 31, 2013

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period From ______ to _____

Commission File No. 001-34404

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

Texas (State or other jurisdiction of

75-0970548 (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 508 West Wall, Suite 800, Midland, Texas 79701

(Principal Executive Office)

Telephone Number: 432-684-3000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer "

Accelerated filer

X

Non-accelerated filer "(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company "Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Title of Each Class Common Stock, \$.33 1/3 par value Outstanding at February 6, 2014 8,063,208 shares

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

INDEX

	Page
	Number
Part I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION	2
<u>Item 1. Financial Statements</u>	2
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 (unaudited) and September 30, 2013	2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012	
(unaudited)	3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012	
(unaudited)	4
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)	5
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	11
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	17
<u>Item 4. Controls and Procedures</u>	17
Part II. OTHER INFORMATION	18
<u>Item 1. Legal Proceedings</u>	18
<u>Item 1A. Risk Factors</u>	18
<u>Item 6. Exhibits</u>	18
<u>Signatures</u>	19
Index to Exhibits	20
Certification of CEO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)	
Certification of CFO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)	
Certification of CEO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)	
Certification of CFO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)	

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	December 31, 2013 (Unaudited)	September 30, 2013
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 11,860,000	\$ 52,405,000
Short-term investments	26,000,000	23,500,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$250,000 at		
December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013	55,647,000	37,488,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets	4,271,000	737,000
Current deferred tax asset	1,592,000	1,664,000
Total current assets	99,370,000	115,794,000
Property, plant and equipment	348,603,000	325,464,000
Less accumulated depreciation	(161,301,000)	(152,231,000)
Net property, plant and equipment	187,302,000	173,233,000
Total assets	\$ 286,672,000	\$ 289,027,000
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$ 11,905,000	\$ 15,880,000
Accrued liabilities:		
Payroll costs and other taxes	3,401,000	1,850,000
Other	3,565,000	6,154,000
Deferred revenue	2,985,000	3,438,000
Current maturities of notes payable and obligations under capital leases	11,108,000	9,258,000
Total current liabilities	32,964,000	36,580,000
Long-term liabilities:		
Notes payable and obligations under capital leases less current maturities	9,328,000	3,697,000
Deferred tax liability	33,800,000	35,690,000
Total long-term liabilities	43,128,000	39,387,000
Commitments and contingencies		
Stockholders equity:		

Edgar Filing: DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO - Form 10-Q

Preferred stock-par value \$1.00 per share; 5,000,000 shares authorized, none outstanding

outstanding				
Common stock-par value \$.33 1/3 per share; 50,000,000 shares authorized,				
8,063,208 and 8,056,943 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013				
and September 30, 2013, respectively	2,688,000	2,686,000		
Additional paid-in capital	95,261,000	94,846,000		
Retained earnings	112,631,000	115,528,000		
Total stockholders equity	210,580,000	213,060,000		
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 286,672,000	\$ 289,027,000		

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

	Three Months Ended December 31,			
	2013 2012			·
Operating revenues	\$	68,181,000	\$	76,629,000
Operating costs:				
Operating expenses		59,108,000		58,735,000
General and administrative		4,164,000		3,596,000
Depreciation		9,876,000		9,104,000
		73,148,000		71,435,000
(Loss) income from operations		(4,967,000)		5,194,000
Other income (expense):				
Interest income		17,000		16,000
Interest expense		(135,000)		(191,000)
Other (expense) income		(49,000)		40,000
(Loss) income before income tax		(5,134,000)		5,059,000
Income tax benefit (expense)		2,237,000		(2,131,000)
Net (loss) income	\$	(2,897,000)	\$	2,928,000
Basic (loss) income per share attributable to common stock	\$	(0.36)	\$	0.36
•				
Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to common stock	\$	(0.36)	\$	0.36
•				
Weighted average equivalent common shares outstanding		7,956,215		7,849,525
Weighted average equivalent common shares outstanding-assuming dilution		7,956,215		7,876,338

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

	Three Months Ended December 31, 2013 2012		
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Net (loss) income	\$ (2,897,000)	\$ 2,928,000	
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash (used) provided by			
operating activities:			
Depreciation	9,876,000	9,104,000	
Noncash compensation	404,000	640,000	
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense	(1,818,000)	1,661,000	
Other	243,000	(2,000)	
Change in current assets and liabilities:			
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable	(18,166,000)	6,048,000	
Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets	(3,533,000)	(2,476,000)	
Decrease in accounts payable	(4,327,000)	(9,181,000)	
(Decrease) increase in accrued liabilities	(1,038,000)	359,000	
Decrease in deferred revenue	(453,000)	(67,000)	
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities	(21,709,000)	9,014,000	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:			
Capital expenditures, net of noncash capital expenditures summarized below			
in noncash investing and financing activities	(23,835,000)	(29,507,000)	
Proceeds from maturity of short-term investments	8,000,000	2,250,000	
Acquisition of short-term investments	(10,500,000)	(7,750,000)	
Proceeds from disposal of assets	4,000	32,000	
Net cash used by investing activities	(26,331,000)	(34,975,000)	
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Proceeds from note payable	10,000,000		
Principal payments on notes payable	(2,313,000)	(2,147,000)	
Principal payments on capital lease obligations	(206,000)	(121,000)	
Proceeds from exercise of stock options	14,000		
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities	7,495,000	(2,268,000)	
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(40,545,000)	(28,229,000)	
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD	52,405,000	57,373,000	
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 11,860,000	\$ 29,144,000	

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest	\$ 117,000	\$ 195,000
Cash paid for income taxes	\$	\$ 472,000
Cash received for income taxes	\$ 3,000	\$ 4,000
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Increase in accrued purchases of property and equipment	\$ 353,000	\$ 8,279,000
Capital lease obligations incurred	\$	\$ 1,296,000

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements (unaudited).

DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Founded in 1952, the Company acquires and processes 2-D, 3-D and multi-component seismic data for its clients, ranging from major oil and gas companies to independent oil and gas operators as well as providers of multi-client data libraries.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

In the opinion of management of the Company, the accompanying unaudited financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the periods presented. The results of operations for the three months ended December 31, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the fiscal year.

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted in this Form 10-Q report pursuant to certain rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). These financial statements should be read with the financial statements and notes included in the Company s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of the Company s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires that certain assumptions and estimates be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Because of the use of assumptions and estimates inherent in the reporting process, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Dawson Seismic Services Holdings, Inc. and Dawson Seismic Services ULC. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the financial statements, the Company considers demand deposits, certificates of deposit, overnight investments, money market funds and all highly liquid financial instruments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Management prepares its allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based on its review of past-due accounts, its past experience of historical write-offs and its current client base. While the collectability of outstanding client invoices is continually assessed, the inherent volatility of the energy industry s business cycle can cause swift and unpredictable changes in the financial stability of the Company s clients.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment is capitalized at historical cost and depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Management s estimation of this useful life is based on circumstances that exist in the seismic

industry and information available at the time of the purchase of the asset. As circumstances change and new information becomes available, these estimates could change.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the balance sheet, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the results of operations for the period.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when triggering events occur that suggest deterioration in the assets recoverability or fair value. Recognition of an impairment charge is required if future expected undiscounted net cash flows are insufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets and the fair value of the assets is below the carrying value of the assets. Management s forecast of future cash flows used to perform impairment analysis includes estimates of future revenues and expenses based on the Company s anticipated future results while considering anticipated future oil and natural gas prices, which is fundamental in assessing demand for the Company s services. If the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the estimated expected undiscounted future cash flows, the Company measures the amount of possible impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the assets to the fair value.

Leases. The Company leases certain equipment and vehicles under lease agreements. The Company evaluates each lease to determine its appropriate classification as an operating or capital lease for financial reporting purposes. Any lease that does not meet the criteria for a capital lease is accounted for as an operating lease. The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the related assets. Assets under capital leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the initial lease term. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

5

Revenue Recognition. Services are provided under cancelable service contracts. These contracts are either turnkey or term agreements. Under both types of agreements, the Company recognizes revenues when revenue is realizable and services have been performed. Services are defined as the commencement of data acquisition or processing operations. Revenues are considered realizable when earned according to the terms of the service contracts. Under turnkey agreements, revenue is recognized on a per unit of data acquired rate as services are performed. Under term agreements, revenue is recognized on a per unit of time worked rate as services are performed. In the case of a cancelled service contract, revenue is recognized and the customer is billed for services performed up to the date of cancellation.

The Company receives reimbursements for certain out-of-pocket expenses under the terms of the service contracts. Amounts billed to clients are recorded in revenue at the gross amount, including out-of-pocket expenses that are reimbursed by the client.

In some instances, customers are billed in advance of services performed. In those cases, the Company recognizes the liability as deferred revenue. As services are performed, those deferred revenue amounts are recognized as revenue.

In some instances, the contract contains certain permitting, surveying and drilling costs that are incorporated into the per unit of data acquired rate. In these circumstances, associated costs incurred prior to initiating revenue recognition are deferred and amortized as services are provided.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company measures all employee stock-based compensation awards, which include stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units, using the fair value method and recognizes compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, in its consolidated financial statements. The Company records compensation expense as either operating or general and administrative expense as appropriate in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the related stock options, restricted stock, or restricted stock unit awards.

Income Taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes by recognizing amounts of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and by using an asset and liability approach in recognizing the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company's financial statements or tax returns. Management determines deferred taxes by identifying the types and amounts of existing temporary differences, measuring the total deferred tax asset or liability using the applicable tax rate in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the year of an enacted rate change. The deferred tax asset is reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Management s methodology for recording income taxes requires judgment regarding assumptions and the use of estimates, including determining the annual effective tax rate and the valuation of deferred tax assets, which can create variances between actual results and estimates and could have a material impact on the Company s provision or benefit for income taxes. The Company s effective tax rates differ from the statutory federal rate of 35% for certain items such as state and local taxes, non-deductible expenses, discrete items and expenses related to share-based compensation that were not expected to result in a tax deduction.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

None.

3. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Company had short-term investments at December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013 consisting of certificates of deposit with original maturities greater than three months, but less than a year. Certificates of deposit are limited to one per banking institution and no single investment exceeded the FDIC insurance limit at December 31, 2013 or September 30, 2013.

4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013, the Company s financial instruments included cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments in certificates of deposit, trade and other receivables, other current assets, accounts payable, other current liabilities, the Term Note (as defined below), the Second Term Note (as defined below) and the DSS Term Note (as defined below). At December 31, 2013, the Company s financial instruments also included the Third Term Note (as defined below). Due to the short-term maturities of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, other current assets, accounts payable and other current liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value at the respective balance sheet dates. The carrying value of the Company s Term Note, Second Term Note and Third Term Note approximate their fair value due to the fact that the interest rates on the Term Note, Second Term Note and Third Term Note are reset each month based on the prevailing market interest rate. The Company s DSS Term Note approximates its fair value based on a comparison with the prevailing market interest rate. Due to the short-term maturities of the Company s investments in certificates of deposit, the carrying amounts approximate fair value at the respective balance sheet dates. The fair values of the Company s notes payable and investments in certificates of deposit are Level 2 measurements in the fair value hierarchy.

6

5. DEBT

The Company s revolving line of credit loan agreement is with Western National Bank. The agreement was renewed June 2, 2013 under the same terms as the previous agreement. The agreement permits the Company to borrow, repay and reborrow, from time to time until June 2, 2015, up to \$20.0 million based on the borrowing base calculation as defined in the agreement. The Company s obligations under this agreement are secured by a security interest in its accounts receivable, equipment and related collateral. Interest on the facility accrues at an annual rate equal to either the 30-day London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), plus two and one-quarter percent, or the Prime Rate, minus three-quarters percent, as the Company directs monthly, subject to an interest rate floor of 4%. Interest on the outstanding amount under the loan agreement is payable monthly. The loan agreement contains customary covenants for credit facilities of this type, including limitations on disposition of assets, mergers and reorganizations. The Company is also obligated to meet certain financial covenants under the loan agreement, including maintaining specified ratios with respect to cash flow coverage, current assets and liabilities and debt to tangible net worth. The Company was in compliance with all covenants including specified ratios as of December 31, 2013 and has the full line of credit available for borrowing. The Company did not utilize the revolving line of credit during the current fiscal year or the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

The Company s credit loan agreement includes a term loan feature under which the Company has three outstanding term loans. The first two term loans were confirmed and brought under the renewed credit loan agreement in June 2013, while the other term loan was entered into in December 2013. In June 2011, the Company entered into the first term loan by obtaining \$16,427,000 in financing for the purchase of Geospace Technologies GSR equipment (Term Note). The Term Note is repayable over a period of 36 months at \$485,444 per month plus any applicable interest in excess of 4%. Interest on the Term Note accrues at an annual rate equal to either the 30-day LIBOR, plus two and one-quarter percent, or the Prime Rate, minus three-quarters percent, as the Company directs monthly, subject to an interest rate floor of 4%, and otherwise has the same terms as the revolving line of credit. The Term Note is collateralized by a security interest in the Company s accounts receivable, equipment and related collateral and matures with all outstanding balances due on June 30, 2014.

In May 2012, the Company entered into a Multiple Advance Term Note (Second Term Note) under its credit loan agreement. The Second Term Note allows the Company to borrow from time to time up to \$15.0 million to purchase equipment. The outstanding principal under the Second Term Note is amortized over a period of 36 months. The Second Term Note bears interest at an annual rate equal to either the 30-day LIBOR, plus two and one-quarter percent, or the Prime Rate, minus three-quarters percent, as the Company directs monthly, subject to an interest rate floor of 3.75%, and otherwise has the same terms as the revolving line of credit. The Second Term Note is collateralized by a security interest in the Company s accounts receivable, equipment and related collateral and matures with all outstanding balances due on May 2, 2015. In July 2012, the Company borrowed \$9,346,000 under the Second Term Note to purchase Geospace Technologies GSR recording equipment.

On December 4, 2013, the Company entered into a second Multiple Advance Term Note dated as of December 2, 2013 (Third Term Note) under its credit loan agreement. The Third Term Note allows the Company to borrow from time to time up to \$10.0 million to purchase equipment. Per the agreement, the Company will be unable to receive an advance for the remainder of the \$15.0 million balance of the Second Term Note. The outstanding principal under the Third Term Note is amortized over a period of 36 months. The Third Term Note bears interest at an annual fixed rate equal to 3.16%, and otherwise has the same terms as the revolving line of credit. The Third Term Note is collateralized by a security interest in the Company s accounts receivable, equipment and related collateral and matures with all outstanding balances due on December 2, 2016. On December 5, 2013, the Company borrowed the full amount of \$10,000,000 under the Third Term Note to purchase Geospace Technologies GSX recording equipment.

In February 2013, the Company s subsidiary Dawson Seismic Services ULC (DSS) entered into a promissory note (DSS Term Note) with Wells Fargo Equipment Finance Company. DSS obtained \$983,000 in financing for the purchase of equipment. The DSS Term Note is repayable over a period of 36 months at \$28,980 per month and bears interest at an implied annual fixed rate of 3.84%. The DSS Term Note is collateralized by a security interest in the DSS equipment and matures with all outstanding balances due on February 5, 2016.

During fiscal 2012, the Company began leasing vehicles from Enterprise Fleet Management under capital leases. These capital lease obligations are payable in 36 to 60 monthly installments and mature between December 2014 and November 2017. At December 31, 2013, the Company had leased 83 vehicles under these capital leases.

7

The Company s notes payable and obligations under capital leases consist of the following:

	December 31, 2013	September 30, 2013
Term Note	\$ 3,357,000	\$ 4,770,000
Second Term Note	4,796,000	5,616,000
Third Term Note	10,000,000	
DSS Term Note	721,000	801,000
Revolving line of credit		
Obligations under capital leases	1,562,000	1,768,000
	20,436,000	12,955,000
Less current maturities of notes payable and obligations under capital leases	(11,108,000)	(9,258,000)
	\$ 9,328,000	\$ 3,697,000

The aggregate maturities of the notes payable and obligations under capital leases at December 31, 2013 are as follows:

January 2014	December 2014	\$11,108,000
January 2015	December 2015	5,676,000
January 2016	December 2016	3,614,000
January 2017	December 2017	38,000
January 2018	December 2018	

\$20,436,000

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company is a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Although the Company cannot predict the outcomes of any such legal proceedings, management believes that the resolution of pending legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations or liquidity, as the Company believes it is adequately indemnified and insured.

The Company experiences contractual disputes with its clients from time to time regarding the payment of invoices or other matters. While the Company seeks to minimize these disputes and maintain good relations with its clients, the Company has in the past experienced, and may in the future experience, disputes that could affect its revenues and results of operations in any period.

The Company has non-cancelable operating leases for office space in Midland, Houston, Denver, Oklahoma City, Pittsburgh and Calgary, Alberta.

The following table summarizes payments due in specific periods related to the Company s contractual obligations with initial terms exceeding one year as of December 31, 2013.

	Payments Due by Period (in 000 s)				
		Within			After
	Total	1 Year	2-3 Years	4-5 Years	5 Years
Operating lease obligations (office space)	\$ 3,253	\$ 967	\$ 1,647	\$ 416	\$ 223

Some of the Company s operating leases contain predetermined fixed increases of the minimum rental rate during the initial lease term. For these leases, the Company recognizes the related expense on a straight-line basis and records deferred rent as the difference between the amount charged to expense and the rent paid. Rental expense under the Company s operating leases with initial terms exceeding one year was \$240,000 and \$222,000 for the three month periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had unused letters of credit totaling approximately \$580,000. The Company s letters of credit principally back obligations associated with the Company s self-insured retention on workers compensation claims outstanding prior to October 1, 2011. Effective in fiscal 2012, the Company was no longer self-insured for workers compensation claims after October 1, 2011.

Table of Contents

such refinancing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to obtain refinancing on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

Covanta s ability to grow its business is limited.

Covanta s ability to grow its domestic business by investing in new projects will be limited by debt covenants in its principal financing agreements, unless such financing agreements are refinanced, and from potentially fewer market opportunities for new waste-to-energy facilities. Covanta s business is based upon building and operating municipal solid waste processing and energy generating projects, which are capital intensive businesses that require financing through direct investment and the incurrence of debt. When we acquired Covanta and it emerged from bankruptcy proceedings in March 2004, Covanta entered into financing arrangements with restrictive covenants typical of financings for companies emerging from bankruptcy. These covenants essentially prohibit investments in new projects or acquisitions of new businesses and place restrictions on Covanta s ability to expand existing projects. The covenants prohibit borrowings to finance new construction, except in limited circumstances related to specifically identified expansions of existing facilities. The covenants also limit spending for new business development and require that excess cash flow be trapped to collateralize outstanding letters of credit.

Although we will be negotiating debt covenants for the refinancing of Covanta s recourse debt in connection with the Ref-Fuel acquisition, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that, when it seeks to refinance its domestic debt agreements, Covanta will be able to negotiate covenants that will provide it with more flexibility to grow its business.

Covanta s liquidity is limited by the amount of domestic debt issued when it emerged from bankruptcy.

Covanta believes that its cash flow from domestic operations will be sufficient to pay for its domestic cash needs, including debt service on its domestic corporate debt, and that its revolving credit facility will provide a secondary source of liquidity. For the period March 11, 2004 through March 31, 2005, Covanta s cash flow from operating activities for domestic operations was \$118.2 million. We cannot assure you, however, that Covanta s cash flow from domestic operations will not be adversely affected by adverse economic conditions or circumstances specific to one or more projects or that if such conditions or circumstances do occur, its revolving credit facility will provide Covanta with access to sufficient cash for such purposes.

Operation of Covanta s facilities and the expansion of facilities involve significant risks.

The operation of Covanta s facilities and the construction of new or expanded facilities involve many risks, including:

the inaccuracy of Covanta s assumptions with respect to the timing and amount of anticipated revenues;

supply interruptions;

the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes;

difficulty or inability to find suitable replacement parts for equipment;

the unavailability of sufficient quantities of waste;

decreases in the fees for solid waste disposal;

decreases in the demand or market prices for recovered ferrous or non-ferrous metal;

disruption in the transmission of electricity generated;

permitting and other regulatory issues, license revocation and changes in legal requirements;

labor disputes and work stoppages;

S-19

Table of Contents

unforeseen engineering and environmental problems;

unanticipated cost overruns;

weather interferences, catastrophic events including fires, explosions, earthquakes, droughts and acts of terrorism;

the exercise of the power of eminent domain; and

performance below expected levels of output or efficiency.

We cannot predict the impact of these risks on Covanta s business or operations. These risks, if they were to occur, could prevent Covanta from meeting its obligations under its operating agreements. In addition, although Covanta maintains insurance to protect it against operating risks, the proceeds from its insurance policies may not be adequate to cover lost revenues or increased expenses.

Development and construction of new projects may not commence operation as scheduled, or at all.

The development and construction of new facilities involves many risks including siting, permitting, financing and construction delays and expenses, start-up problems, the breakdown of equipment and performance below expected levels of output and efficiency. New facilities have no operating history and may employ recently developed technology and equipment. Covanta maintains insurance to protect against risks relating to the construction of new projects; however, such insurance may not be adequate to cover lost revenues or increased expenses. As a result, a new facility may be unable to fund principal and interest payments under its debt service obligations or may operate at a loss. In certain situations, if a facility fails to achieve commercial operation, at certain levels or at all, termination rights in the agreements governing the facility s financing may be triggered, rendering all of the facility s debt immediately due and payable. As a result, the facility may be rendered insolvent and Covanta may lose its interest in the facility.

Covanta s insurance and contractual protections may not always cover lost revenues, increased expenses or liquidated damages payments.

Although Covanta maintains insurance, obtains warranties from vendors, requires contractors to meet certain performance levels and attempts, where feasible, to pass risks Covanta cannot control to the service recipient or output purchaser, the proceeds of such insurance, warranties, performance guarantees or risk sharing arrangements may not be adequate to cover lost revenues, increased expenses or liquidated damages payments.

Performance reductions could materially and adversely affect Covanta and its projects may operate at lower levels than expected.

Most service agreements for Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities provide for limitations on damages and cross-indemnities among the parties for damages that such parties may incur in connection with their performance under the contract. In most cases, such contractual provisions excuse Covanta from performance obligations to the extent affected by uncontrollable circumstances and provide for service fee adjustments if uncontrollable circumstances increase its costs. We cannot assure you that these provisions will prevent Covanta from incurring losses upon the occurrence of uncontrollable circumstances or that if Covanta were to incur such losses it would continue to be able to service its debt.

Covanta and certain of its subsidiaries have issued or are party to performance guarantees and related contractual obligations associated with its waste-to-energy, independent power and water facilities. With respect to its domestic businesses, Covanta has issued guarantees to its municipal clients and other parties that Covanta s subsidiaries will perform in accordance with contractual terms, including, where required, the payment of damages or other obligations. The obligations guaranteed will depend upon the contract involved. Many of Covanta s subsidiaries have contracts to operate and maintain waste-to-energy facilities. In these contracts the subsidiary typically commits to operate and maintain the facility in compliance with legal requirements; to accept minimum amounts of solid waste; to generate a minimum amount of

S-20

Table of Contents

electricity per ton of waste; and to pay damages to contract counterparties under specified circumstances, including those where the operating subsidiary s contract has been terminated for default. Any contractual damages or other obligations incurred by Covanta could be material, and in circumstances where one or more subsidiary s contract has been terminated for its default, such damages could include amounts sufficient to repay project debt. Additionally, damages payable under such guarantees on Covanta-owned waste-to-energy facilities could expose Covanta to recourse liability on project debt. Covanta may not have sufficient sources of cash to pay such damages or other obligations. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to continue to avoid incurring material payment obligations under such guarantees or that if it did incur such obligations that it would have the cash resources to pay them.

With respect to the international projects, Covanta Power International Holdings, Inc., referred to in this prospectus supplement as CPIH, Covanta and certain of Covanta s domestic subsidiaries have issued guarantees of CPIH s operating obligations. The potential damages that may be owed under these guarantees may be material. Covanta is generally entitled to be reimbursed by CPIH for any payments it may make under guarantees related to international projects; however we cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to collect any amount owned to it by CPIH.

Covanta generates its revenue primarily under long term contracts and must avoid defaults under its contracts in order to service its debt and avoid material liability to contract counterparties.

Covanta must satisfy its performance and other obligations under contracts governing waste-to-energy facilities. These contracts typically require Covanta to meet certain performance criteria relating to amounts of waste processed, energy generation rates per ton of waste processed, residue quantity and environmental standards. Covanta s failure to satisfy these criteria may subject it to termination of its operating contracts. If such a termination were to occur, Covanta would lose the cash flow related to the projects and incur material termination damage liability. In circumstances where the contract of one or more subsidiaries has been terminated due to Covanta s default, Covanta may not have sufficient sources of cash to pay such damages. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to continue to perform its obligations under such contracts in order to avoid such contract terminations, or damages related to any such contract termination, or that if it could not avoid such terminations that it would have the cash resources to pay amounts that may then become due.

Covanta may face increased risk of market influences on its domestic revenues after its contracts expire.

Covanta s contracts to operate waste-to-energy projects expire on various dates between 2007 and 2023, and its contracts to sell energy output generally expire when the project s operating contract expires. One of Covanta s contracts will expire in 2007. During the twelve-month period January 1 to December 31, 2004, this contract contributed \$12.5 million in revenues. Expiration of these contracts will subject Covanta to greater market risk in maintaining and enhancing its revenues. As its operating contracts at municipally-owned projects approach expiration, Covanta will seek to enter into renewal or replacement contracts to continue operating such projects. However, we cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to enter into renewal or replacement contracts on favorable terms to Covanta, or at all. Covanta will seek to bid competitively for additional contracts to operate other facilities as similar contracts of other vendors expire. The expiration of Covanta s existing energy sales contracts, if not renewed, will require Covanta to sell project energy output either into the electricity grid or pursuant to new contracts.

At some of Covanta s facilities, market conditions may allow Covanta to effect extensions of existing operating contracts along with facility expansions. Such extensions and expansions are currently being considered at a limited number of Covanta s facilities in conjunction with its municipal clients. If Covanta were unable to reach agreement with its municipal clients on the terms under which it would implement such extensions and expansions, or if the implementation of these extensions and expansions is materially delayed, this may adversely affect Covanta s cash flow and profitability.

S-21

Table of Contents

Covanta s cash flow and profitability may be adversely affected if it is unable to obtain contracts acceptable to it for such renewals, replacements or additional contracts, or extension and expansion contracts. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to enter into such contracts or that the terms available in the market at the time will be favorable to Covanta.

Covanta depends on performance by third parties under contractual arrangements.

Covanta depends on a limited number of third parties to, among other things, purchase the electric and steam energy produced by its facilities, and supply and deliver the waste and other goods and services necessary for the operation of Covanta's facilities. The viability of Covanta's facilities depends significantly upon the performance by third parties in accordance with long-term contracts, and such performance depends on factors which may be beyond Covanta's control. If those third parties do not perform their obligations, or are excused from performing their obligations because of nonperformance by Covanta or other parties to the contracts, or due to force majeure events or changes in laws or regulations, Covanta may not be able to secure alternate arrangements on substantially the same terms, if at all, for the services provided under the contracts. In addition, the bankruptcy or insolvency of a participant or third party in Covanta's facilities could result in nonpayment or nonperformance of that party's obligations to Covanta.

Concentration of suppliers and customers may expose Covanta to heightened financial exposure.

Covanta often relies on single suppliers and single customers at Covanta s facilities, exposing such facilities to financial risks if any supplier or customer should fail to perform its obligations.

Covanta often relies on a single supplier to provide waste, fuel, water and other services required to operate a facility and on a single customer or a few customers to purchase all or a significant portion of a facility s output. In most cases Covanta has long-term agreements with such suppliers and customers in order to mitigate the risk of supply interruption. The financial performance of these facilities depends on such customers and suppliers continuing to perform their obligations under their long-term agreements. A facility s financial results could be materially and adversely affected if any one customer or supplier fails to fulfill its contractual obligations and Covanta is unable to find other customers or suppliers to produce the same level of profitability. We cannot assure you that such performance failures by third parties will not occur, or that if they do occur, such failures will not adversely affect Covanta s cash flow or profitability.

In addition, for its waste-to-energy facilities, Covanta relies on its municipal clients as a source not only of waste for fuel but also of revenue from fees for disposal services Covanta provides. Because Covanta s contracts with its municipal clients are generally long term, Covanta may be adversely affected if the credit quality of one or more of its municipal clients were to decline materially.

Covanta s international businesses emerged from bankruptcy with a large amount of debt, and we cannot assure you that its cash flow from international operations will be sufficient to pay this debt.

Covanta s subsidiary holding the equity interests in its international businesses, CPIH, is also highly leveraged, and its debt will be serviced solely from the cash generated from the international operations. Cash distributions from international projects are typically less dependable as to timing and amount than distributions from domestic projects, and we cannot assure you that CPIH will have sufficient cash flow from operations or other sources to pay the principal or interest due on its debt. As of March 31, 2005, Covanta s outstanding international debt was \$178 million, consisting of \$77 million of CPIH recourse debt and \$101 million of project debt.

Although CPIH is currently not in default under its debt covenants, CPIH s ability to service its debt will depend upon:

its ability to continue to operate and maintain its facilities consistent with historical performance levels;

stable foreign political environments that do not resort to expropriation, contract renegotiations or currency or exchange changes;

S-22

Table of Contents

the financial ability of the electric and steam purchasers to pay the full contractual tariffs on a timely basis;

the ability of its international project subsidiaries to maintain compliance with their respective project debt covenants in order to make equity distributions to CPIH; and

its ability to sell existing projects in an amount sufficient to repay CPIH indebtedness at or prior to its maturity in March 2007 or to refinance its indebtedness at or prior to such maturity.

For a more detailed discussion of CPIH s international debt covenants, please see Item 7 of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, and Item 7 of Covanta s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

CPIH s debt is due in March 2007, and it will need to refinance its debt or obtain cash from other sources to repay this debt at maturity.

Covanta believes that cash from CPIH s operations, together with liquidity available under CPIH s revolving credit facility, will provide CPIH with sufficient liquidity to meet its needs for cash, including cash to pay debt service on CPIH s debt prior to maturity in March 2007. Covanta believes that CPIH will not have sufficient cash from its operations and its revolving credit facility to pay off its debt at maturity, and so if it is unable to generate sufficient additional cash from asset sales or other sources, CPIH will need to refinance its debt at or prior to maturity. While CPIH s debt is non-recourse to Covanta, it is secured by a pledge of Covanta s stock in CPIH and CPIH s equity interests in certain of its subsidiaries. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

CPIH s assets and cash flow will not be available to Covanta.

Although CPIH s results of operations are consolidated with Danielson s and Covanta s for financial reporting purposes, as long as the existing CPIH term loan and revolver remain outstanding, CPIH is restricted under its existing credit agreements from distributing cash to Covanta. Under these agreements, CPIH s cash may only be used for CPIH s purposes and to service CPIH s debt. Accordingly, although reported on Danielson s and Covanta s consolidated financial statements, Covanta does not have access to CPIH s revenues or cash flows and will have access only to Covanta s domestically generated cash flows. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

A sale or transfer of CPIH or its assets may not be sufficient to repay CPIH indebtedness.

Although CPIH s results of operations are consolidated with Danielson s and Covanta s for financial reporting purposes, due to CPIH s indebtedness and the terms of Covanta s credit agreements, CPIH s cash flow is available only to repay CPIH s debt. Similarly, in the event that CPIH determines that it is desirable to sell or transfer all or any portion of its assets or business, the proceeds would first be applied to reduce CPIH s debt. We cannot assure you that the proceeds of any such sale would be sufficient to repay all of CPIH s debt, consisting of principal and accrued interest or, if sufficient to repay CPIH s debt, that such proceeds would offset the loss of CPIH s revenues and earnings as reported by Danielson and Covanta in their respective consolidated financial statements.

S-23

Table of Contents

Although Danielson has received a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston for a debt financing package for Covanta necessary to finance the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, as well as to refinance the existing recourse debt of Covanta and repay all of CPIH s recourse debt, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that this financing will close. In the absence of a successful closing of the Ref-Fuel acquisition and its related financing, we cannot assure you that CPIH will be able to obtain refinancing on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

Exposure to international economic and political factors may materially and adversely affect Covanta s business.

CPIH s operations are entirely outside the United States and expose it to legal, tax, currency, inflation, convertibility and repatriation risks, as well as potential constraints on the development and operation of potential business, any of which can limit the benefits to CPIH of a foreign project. For the twelve months ended March 31, 2005, CPIH contributed \$131.1 million, or 19%, to Covanta s consolidated revenues.

CPIH s projected cash distributions from existing facilities over the next five years comes from facilities located in countries with sovereign ratings below investment grade, including Bangladesh, the Philippines and India. In addition, Covanta continues to provide operating guarantees and letters of credit for certain of CPIH s projects, which, if drawn upon, would require CPIH to reimburse Covanta for any related payments it may be required to make. The financing, development and operation of projects outside the United States can entail significant political and financial risks, which vary by country, including:

changes in law or regulations;

changes in electricity tariffs;

changes in foreign tax laws and regulations;

changes in United States federal, state and local laws, including tax laws, related to foreign operations;

compliance with United States federal, state and local foreign corrupt practices laws;

changes in government policies or personnel;

changes in general economic conditions affecting each country, including conditions in financial markets;

changes in labor relations in operations outside the United States;

political, economic or military instability and civil unrest; and

expropriation and confiscation of assets and facilities.

The legal and financial environment in foreign countries in which CPIH currently owns assets or projects also could make it more difficult for it to enforce its rights under agreements relating to such projects.

In addition, the existence of the operating guarantees and letters of credit provided by Covanta for CPIH projects could expose us to any or all of the risks identified above with respect to the CPIH projects, particularly if CPIH s cash flow or other sources of liquidity are insufficient to reimburse Covanta for amounts due under such instruments. As a result, these risks may have a material adverse effect on Covanta s business, consolidated financial condition and results of operations and on CPIH s ability to service its debt.

S-24

Table of Contents

Exposure to foreign currency fluctuations may affect Covanta s costs of operations.

CPIH participates in projects in jurisdictions where limitations on the convertibility and expatriation of currency have been lifted by the host country and where such local currency is freely exchangeable on the international markets. In most cases, components of project costs incurred or funded in the currency of the United States are recovered with limited exposure to currency fluctuations through negotiated contractual adjustments to the price charged for electricity or service provided. This contractual structure may cause the cost in local currency to the project s power purchaser or service recipient to rise from time to time in excess of local inflation. As a result, there is a risk in such situations that such power purchaser or service recipient will, at least in the near term, be less able or willing to pay for the project s power or service.

Exposure to fuel supply prices may affect CPIH s costs and results of operations.

Changes in the market prices and availability of fuel supplies to generate electricity may increase CPIH s cost of producing power, which could adversely impact Covanta s profitability and financial performance.

The market prices and availability of fuel supplies of some of CPIH s facilities fluctuate. Any price increase, delivery disruption or reduction in the availability of such supplies could affect CPIH s ability to operate its facilities and impair its cash flow and profitability. CPIH may be subject to further exposure if any of its future operations are concentrated in facilities using fuel types subject to fluctuating market prices and availability. Covanta may not be successful in its efforts to mitigate its exposure to supply and price swings.

Covanta s inability to obtain resources for operations may adversely affect its ability to effectively compete.

Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities depend on solid waste for fuel, which provides a source of revenue. For most of Covanta s facilities, the prices it charges for disposal of solid waste are fixed under long-term contracts and the supply is guaranteed by sponsoring municipalities. However, for some of Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities, the availability of solid waste to Covanta, as well as the tipping fee that Covanta must charge to attract solid waste to its facilities, depends upon competition from a number of sources such as other waste-to-energy facilities, landfills and transfer stations competing for waste in the market area. In addition, Covanta may need to obtain waste on a competitive basis as its long-term contracts expire at its owned facilities. There has been consolidation and there may be further consolidation in the solid waste industry which would reduce the number of solid waste collectors or haulers that are competing for disposal facilities or enable such collectors or haulers to use wholesale purchasing to negotiate favorable below-market disposal rates. The consolidation in the solid waste industry has resulted in companies with vertically integrated collection activities and disposal facilities. Such consolidation may result in economies of scale for those companies as well as the use of disposal capacity at facilities owned by such companies or by affiliated companies. Such activities can affect both the availability of waste to Covanta for disposal at some of Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities and market pricing.

Compliance with environmental laws could adversely affect Covanta s results of operations.

Costs of compliance with federal, state and local existing and future environmental regulations could adversely affect Covanta's cash flow and profitability. Covanta's business is subject to extensive environmental regulation by federal, state and local authorities, primarily relating to air, waste (including residual ash from combustion) and water. Covanta is required to comply with numerous environmental laws and regulations and to obtain numerous governmental permits in operating Covanta's facilities. Covanta may incur significant additional costs to comply with these requirements. Environmental regulations may also limit Covanta's ability to operate Covanta's facilities at maximum capacity or at all. If Covanta fails to comply with these requirements, Covanta could be subject to civil or criminal liability,

S-25

Table of Contents

damages and fines. Existing environmental regulations could be revised or reinterpreted and new laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable to Covanta or its facilities, and future changes in environmental laws and regulations could occur. This may materially increase the amount Covanta must invest to bring its facilities into compliance. In addition, lawsuits or enforcement actions by federal and/or state regulatory agencies may materially increase our costs. Stricter environmental regulation of air emissions, solid waste handling or combustion, residual ash handling and disposal, and waste water discharge could materially affect Covanta s cash flow and profitability.

Covanta may not be able to obtain or maintain, from time to time, all required environmental regulatory approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory approvals or if Covanta fails to obtain and comply with them, the operation of Covanta s facilities could be jeopardized or become subject to additional costs.

Federal energy regulation could adversely affect Covanta s revenues and costs of operations.

Covanta s business is subject to extensive energy regulations by federal and state authorities. The economics, including the costs, of operating Covanta s facilities may be adversely affected by any changes in these regulations or in their interpretation or implementation or any future inability to comply with existing or future regulations or requirements.

The Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, commonly referred to as PUHCA, and the Federal Power Act, commonly referred to as FPA, regulate public utility holding companies and their subsidiaries and place constraints on the conduct of their business. The FPA regulates wholesale sales of electricity and the transmission of electricity in interstate commerce by public utilities. Under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, commonly referred to as PURPA, Covanta s domestic facilities are exempt from regulations under PUHCA, most provisions of the FPA and state rate regulation. Covanta s foreign projects are also exempt from regulation under PUHCA.

If Covanta becomes subject to either the FPA or PUHCA, the economics and operations of Covanta's energy projects could be adversely affected, including as a result of rate regulation by the FERC with respect to its output of electricity, which could result in lower prices for sales of electricity. If an alternative exemption from PUHCA was not available, Covanta could be subject to substantial regulation by the SEC as a public utility holding company and may incur material administrative costs to comply with additional regulatory requirements. In addition, depending on the terms of the project's power purchase agreement, a loss of Covanta's exemptions could allow the power purchaser to cease taking and paying for electricity under existing contracts or to seek refunds of past amounts paid. Such results could cause the loss of some or all contract revenues or otherwise impair the value of a project and could trigger defaults under provisions of the applicable project contracts and financing agreements. Defaults under such financing agreements could render the underlying debt immediately due and payable. Under such circumstances, Covanta cannot assure you that revenues received, the costs incurred, or both, in connection with the project could be recovered through sales to other purchasers.

Failure to obtain regulatory approvals could adversely affect Covanta s operations.

Covanta is continually in the process of obtaining or renewing federal, state and local approvals required to operate Covanta s facilities. While Covanta currently has all necessary operating approvals, Covanta may not always be able to obtain all required regulatory approvals, and Covanta may not be able to obtain any necessary modifications to existing regulatory approvals or maintain all required regulatory approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required regulatory approvals or if Covanta fails to obtain and comply with any required regulatory approvals, the operation of Covanta s facilities or the sale of electricity to third parties could be prevented, made subject to additional regulation or subject Covanta to additional costs.

S-26

Table of Contents

The energy industry is becoming increasingly competitive, and Covanta might not successfully respond to these changes.

Covanta may not be able to respond in a timely or effective manner to the changes resulting in increased competition in the energy industry in both domestic and international markets. These changes may include deregulation of the electric utility industry in some markets, privatization of the electric utility industry in other markets and increasing competition in all markets. To the extent U.S. competitive pressures increase and the pricing and sale of electricity assumes more characteristics of a commodity business, the economics of Covanta s business may come under increasing pressure. Regulatory initiatives in foreign countries where Covanta has or will have operations involve the same types of risks.

Changes in laws and regulations affecting the solid waste and the energy industries could adversely affect Covanta s business.

Covanta s business is highly regulated. Covanta cannot predict whether the federal or state governments or foreign governments will adopt legislation or regulations relating to the solid waste or energy industries. These laws and regulations can result in increased capital, operating and other costs to Covanta, particularly with regard to enforcement efforts. The introduction of new laws or other future regulatory developments that increase the costs of operation or capital to Covanta may have a material adverse effect on Covanta s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Changes in technology may have a material adverse effect on Covanta s profitability.

Research and development activities are ongoing to provide alternative and more efficient technologies to dispose of waste or produce power, including fuel cells, microturbines and solar cells. It is possible that advances in these or other technologies will reduce the cost of waste disposal or power production from these technologies to a level below Covanta s costs. Furthermore, increased conservation efforts could reduce the demand for power or reduce the value of Covanta s facilities. Any of these changes could have a material adverse effect on Covanta s revenues and profitability.

Insurance Services Specific Risks

Insurance regulations may affect NAICC s operations.

The insurance industry is highly regulated. NAICC is subject to regulation by state and federal regulators, and a significant portion of NAICC s operations are subject to regulation by the state of California. Changes in existing insurance regulations or adoption of new regulations or laws which could affect NAICC s results of operations and financial condition may include, without limitation, proposed changes to California regulations regarding a broker s fiduciary duty to select the best carrier for an insured, extension of California s Low Cost Automobile Program beyond Los Angeles and San Francisco counties and changes to California s workers compensation laws. We cannot predict the impact of changes in existing insurance regulations or adoption of new regulations or laws on NAICC s results of operations and financial condition.

The insurance products sold by NAICC are subject to intense competition.

The insurance products sold by NAICC are subject to intense competition from many competitors, many of whom have substantially greater resources than NAICC. The California non-standard personal automobile marketplace consists of over 100 carriers.

In order to decrease rates, insurers in California must obtain the prior permission for rate reductions from the California Department of Insurance. In lieu of requesting rate decreases, competitors may soften underwriting standards as an alternative means of attracting new business. Such tactics, should they occur, would introduce new levels of risk for NAICC and could limit NAICC s ability to write new policies or renew existing profitable policies. We cannot assure you that NAICC will be able to successfully compete in these markets and generate sufficient premium volume at attractive prices to be profitable. This risk is

S-27

Table of Contents

enhanced by the reduction in lines of business NAICC writes as a result of its decision to reduce underwriting operations.

If NAICC s loss experience exceeds its estimates, additional capital may be required.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are based on estimates of reported losses, historical company experience of losses reported for reinsurance assumed and historical company experience for unreported claims. Such liability is, by necessity, based on estimates that may change in the near term. NAICC cannot assure you that the ultimate liabilities will not exceed, or even materially exceed, the amounts estimated. If the ultimate liability materially exceeds estimates, then additional capital may be required to be contributed to some of our insurance subsidiaries. NAICC and the other insurance subsidiaries received additional capital contributions from Danielson in 2003 and 2002, and NAICC cannot provide any assurance that it and its subsidiaries will be able to obtain such additional capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

In addition, due to the fact that NAICC and its other insurance subsidiaries are in the process of running off several significant lines of business, the risk of adverse development and the subsequent requirement to obtain additional capital is heightened.

Failure to satisfy capital adequacy and risk-based capital requirements would require NAICC to obtain additional capital.

NAICC is subject to regulatory risk-based capital requirements. Depending on its risk-based capital, NAICC could be subject to various levels of increasing regulatory intervention ranging from company action to mandatory control by insurance regulatory authorities. NAICC s capital and surplus is also one factor used to determine its ability to distribute or loan funds to us. If NAICC has insufficient capital and surplus, as determined under the risk-based capital test, it will need to obtain additional capital to establish additional reserves. NAICC cannot provide any assurance that it will be able to obtain such additional capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Proposed tort reform legislation could decrease demand for liability insurance, thereby reducing our revenues.

Legislation concerning tort reform has been considered, from time to time, in the United States Congress and in several states. Among the provisions considered for inclusion in proposed legislation have been limitations on damage awards and various restrictions applicable to class action lawsuits. Enactment of these or similar provisions could result in a reduction in the demand for liability insurance policies or a decrease in limits on policies NAICC sells, thereby reducing our commission and fee revenues.

Risks Related to the Ref-Fuel Acquisition

The business of Ref-Fuel is substantially similar to that of Covanta. Accordingly, risks associated with Covanta s business generally are also associated with Ref-Fuel and would be associated with a combined Covanta and Ref-Fuel. Specifically, risks associated with Ref-Fuel s ability to:

repay its outstanding debt;	
refinance its existing debt;	
grow its business;	
construct new facilities;	
commence new operations;	
comply with environmental laws, rules and regulations;	
expand using new technology;	8

Table of Contents

perform at expected levels;

avoid contract defaults; and

respond to increased market influences upon expiration of long-term contracts;

as well as other risk factors facing Covanta s business as described in this prospectus supplement may have an effect on the combined business. In addition to these general risks, set forth below are additional risks specific to the acquisition of Ref-Fuel by Covanta.

In connection with the Ref-Fuel acquisition, Covanta will incur a large amount of debt, and we cannot assure you that our cash flow from operations will be sufficient to pay this debt.

Covanta expects that following the acquisition it will have corporate debt of \$675 million, which we will guarantee. Our ability to service this debt will depend upon:

the continued operation and maintenance of our facilities, including those of Ref-Fuel, consistent with historical performance levels;

compliance with our debt covenants under our various credit arrangements;

compliance by the Ref-Fuel subsidiaries with their respective debt covenants in order to permit distributions of cash to Covanta;

maintenance or enhancement of revenue from renewals or replacement of existing contracts, which begin to expire in 2007 and from new contracts to expand existing facilities or operate additional facilities;

market conditions affecting waste disposal and energy pricing, as well as competition from other companies for contract renewals, expansions, and additional contracts, particularly after Covanta s existing contracts expire; and

the continued availability to Covanta of the benefit of Danielson s NOLs under a tax sharing agreement. For a more detailed discussion of Covanta s expected new domestic debt covenants, please see *Danielson s Business Description of Acquisition Debt* in this prospectus supplement.

Covanta s ability to make payments on its indebtedness, to refinance its indebtedness, and to fund planned capital expenditures and other necessary expenses will depend on its ability to generate cash in the future. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. We cannot assure you that Covanta s business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that Covanta will be able to refinance any of its indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

We may be unable to integrate the operations of Ref-Fuel and Covanta successfully and may not realize the full anticipated benefits of the acquisition.

Achieving the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of Ref-Fuel will depend in part upon our ability to integrate the two companies businesses in an efficient and effective manner. Our attempt to integrate two companies that have previously operated independently may result in significant challenges, and we may be unable to accomplish the integration smoothly or successfully. In particular, the necessity of coordinating organizations in additional locations and addressing possible differences in corporate cultures and management philosophies may increase the difficulties of integration. The integration will require the dedication of significant management resources, which may temporarily distract management s attention from the day-to-day operations of the businesses of the combined company. The process of integrating operations after the transaction could cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of one or more of the combined company s businesses and the loss of key personnel. Employee uncertainty and lack of focus during the integration process may also disrupt the businesses of the combined company.

S-29

Table of Contents

Any inability of management to successfully integrate Ref-Fuel s operations with the operations of Covanta could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

The anticipated benefits of the transaction include the elimination of duplicative costs, the strategic expansion of Covanta's core waste-to-energy business in the northeast region of the United States and the strengthening of Covanta's credit profile and lowering of our costs of capital. We may not be able to realize, in whole or in part, or within the anticipated time frames, any of these expected costs of savings or improvements. The realization of the anticipated benefits of the transaction are subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. As a result, we may not be able to achieve our expected results of operations and our actual income, cash flow or earnings available to satisfy debt obligations may be materially lower than the pro forma results which are included in this prospectus supplement.

We will incur significant transaction and combination-related costs in connection with the transaction.

If the proposed transaction with Ref-Fuel closes, we expect that we will incur transaction fees and other expenses related to the transaction of approximately \$45 million, including financial advisors fees, legal and accounting fees, and fees and expenses to refinance the existing Covanta recourse debt. Furthermore, we expect to incur significant costs, which we currently estimate to be approximately \$20 million through 2007, associated with combining the operations of the two companies. However, we cannot predict with certainty the specific size of those charges before we begin the integration process. Although we expect the elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses, we cannot give any assurance that this net benefit will be achieved as planned in the near future or at all.

Failure to close the Ref-Fuel acquisition may adversely affect our financial condition.

If we are unable to consummate our planned acquisition of Ref-Fuel, we will have incurred substantial transaction fees and other expenses in connection with our pursuit of the transaction, without achieving the benefits of the acquisition. If our inability to close the Ref-Fuel acquisition results from our failure to complete this rights offering and the related financing for the transaction, and all other closing conditions are capable of being satisfied, then we must pay the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel a termination fee of \$25 million, not less than \$10 million of which must be paid in cash. In addition, if we fail to close the transaction, the refinancing of Covanta s existing recourse debt which is contemplated in connection with the acquisition will not occur. Covanta s and CPIH s need to either satisfy their debts upon maturity or refinance them will continue and there can be no assurance that Covanta or CPIH will be able to refinance their respective debts on acceptable terms or at all, or obtain sufficient cash to satisfy their debts at maturity.

Fees payable in Danielson's common stock if the Ref-Fuel acquisition fails to close may have a dilutive effect on your interest.

If we fail to close the Ref-Fuel acquisition due to our failure to complete this rights offering and the related financing for the transaction, and all other closing conditions are capable of being satisfied, then we must pay the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel a termination fee of \$25 million. Not less than \$10 million of this termination fee must be paid in cash and up to \$15 million of the fee may be paid in stock at our election, at a price of \$8.13 per share. In addition, in connection with their commitments to participate in this rights offering and acquire their respective pro rata portions of the shares in this rights offering, we have agreed to pay each of SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar an amount equal to 1.5% to 2.25% of their respective equity commitments depending upon the timing of the transaction. If this rights offering is terminated before August 15, 2005, we may elect to pay this amount to SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar in the form of our common stock at a price based upon the 10-day average closing price of our common stock following termination of this rights offering. Payment of these fees in our common stock will have a dilutive effect on your relative ownership interest in our stock.

S-30

Table of Contents

Ref-Fuel s business model includes greater risk in the waste disposal market than does Covanta s.

While Covanta and Ref-Fuel both sell the majority of energy pursuant to long-term contracts, Covanta typically sells a greater proportion of its aggregate waste processing capacity under long-term contracts than does Ref-Fuel. Following the acquisition, a larger percentage of our revenue from our waste-to-energy facilities will be subject to market risk from fluctuations in waste market prices than has historically been the case. Consequently, short-term fluctuations in the waste markets may have a greater impact on our waste-to energy revenues than we have previously experienced.

Ref-Fuel s operations are concentrated in one region, and our acquisition of Ref-Fuel will expose us to regional economic declines.

All of Ref-Fuel s operating facilities are located in the northeastern United States. Adverse economic developments in the northeast region could affect regional waste generation rates and demand for services from waste-to-energy facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on distributions to us from Ref-Fuel.

Ref-Fuel s energy contracts involve greater risk of exposure to performance levels which could result in materially lower revenues.

While Covanta typically is contractually entitled to only a small share (generally 10%) of the energy revenues generated by a waste-to-energy project, Ref-Fuel typically is entitled to a materially greater share of such revenues from its projects. Of these projects, Ref-Fuel receives 100% of the energy revenues it generates in four of its six projects.

As a result, if we are unable to operate the Ref-Fuel facilities at their historical performance levels for any reason, our revenues from energy sales could materially decrease.

A material portion of Ref-Fuel s revenues are derived from three of its projects.

Ref-Fuel receives a substantial portion of its revenue from three projects, and we expect these projects will continue to account for a substantial amount of revenues for the foreseeable future. With respect to one of these facilities, the existing waste supply contract and power purchase agreement will expire in 2009. During the twelve month period January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004, this project contributed approximately \$77 million in revenues. During that same period, all three projects contributed approximately \$258 million in revenues. We may not be able to secure alternative arrangements on substantially the same terms, if at all, to replace existing waste supply contracts or power purchase agreements.

ARC is obligated to provide guarantees and support in connection with its subsidiaries projects.

ARC is obligated to guarantee or provide financial support for its subsidiaries projects in one or more of the following forms:

direct guarantees of certain debt relating to its Hempstead, Niagara and Seconn facilities;

support agreements in connection with service or operating agreement-related obligations for each of its facilities;

contingent obligation to pay lease payment installments in connection with Hempstead and Seconn facilities;

contingent credit support for damages for performance failures;

environmental indemnities; and

contingent capital and credit support to finance costs, in most cases in connection with a corresponding increase in service fees, relating to uncontrollable circumstances.

S - 31

Table of Contents

Many of these contingent obligations cannot readily be quantified, but, if we were required to provide this support, it may be material to our cash flow and financial condition.

We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance the change of control offer required by the MSW Energy Holdings LLC and MSW Energy Holdings II LLC indentures.

Under the terms of the indentures governing the 8½% senior secured notes of MSW Energy Holdings LLC, referred to in this prospectus supplement as MSW I, and thể/8% senior secured notes of MSW Energy Holdings II LLC, referred to in this prospectus supplement as MSW II, the acquisition of Ref-Fuel will constitute a change of control of MSW I and MSW II. As a result, MSW I and/or MSW II may be required to offer to purchase all of the outstanding MSW I notes and/or MSW II notes, respectively, and to purchase all of the notes tendered in such an offer to purchase. The purchase price, in either case as provided under the terms of the indentures, would be equal to 101% of the outstanding principal amount of such notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.

We have obtained a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston to provide bridge financing of senior unsecured notes to provide the funds necessary to purchase the MSW I notes and the MSW II notes tendered, if such an offer to purchase is required or made. However, such commitment is subject to various conditions and the negotiation of definitive documentation. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be able to complete such bridge financing or obtain alternate financing on acceptable terms or at all. If MSW I or MSW II are required to make such repurchase offers, their inability to repurchase all the tendered MSW I or MSW II notes would constitute an event of default under the respective indentures governing the MSW I notes and MSW II notes. Such an event of default could, in turn, result in an event of default under our new senior secured credit facility and our other outstanding indebtedness, which would have a material and adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

We may not be able to integrate our disclosure controls and procedures with Ref-Fuel s in a timely manner.

Our management is required to evaluate the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information we must disclose in reports we file with the SEC is accumulated and communicated to allow timely decisions to be made by our management regarding disclosure, and to allow that information to be recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC s rules and forms.

We are unable to determine how long it will take to integrate Ref-Fuel s and our systems of disclosure controls and procedures. As a result, we cannot be certain when our management will be able to evaluate the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as they relate to the acquired businesses. Until such time as our management is able to reach a determination as to the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as they relate to the acquired businesses, there may be uncertainty with respect to our disclosure controls, and procedures and our auditors may be unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, and we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports which could have an adverse effect on our stock price.

S-32

Table of Contents

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement contain forward-looking statements as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Any statements that express or involve discussions as to expectations, beliefs and plans involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results to materially differ from those considered by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include: our ability to fund our capital requirements in the near term and in the long term, and other factors, risks and uncertainties that are described in this prospectus supplement, and Covanta s and our filings and MSW I s and MSW II s filings with the SEC. As a result, no assurances can be given as to future results, levels of activity and achievements. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements were made. Neither we nor Covanta undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law.

NO BOARD RECOMMENDATION

Our board of directors believes the rights offering is in our best interests. The rights offering proceeds will be used to pay a portion of the purchase price for the acquisition of Ref-Fuel. See *Use of Proceeds* for a discussion of how we intend to allocate and use the proceeds from the rights offering.

Our board of directors is not making any recommendation to you as to whether you should exercise your warrants. You must make your own decision as to whether to exercise your warrants.

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized by us to provide you with any information other than the information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the other documents delivered herewith. You should rely only on the information provided in this document or other information that we have referred you to. This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the other documents referred to do not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation to buy securities in any jurisdiction in which an offer or a solicitation would be unlawful.

The Information Agent for the rights offering, Innisfree M&A Incorporated, has agreed to provide services to us in connection with the rights offering. If you require assistance, please contact the Information Agent at 501 Madison Avenue, 20th Floor, New York, New York 10022, Telephone (888) 750-5834 (Toll-Free).

S-33

DANIELSON S BUSINESS

We are a holding company incorporated in Delaware. Substantially all of our current operations were conducted in the insurance services industry prior to our acquisition of Covanta in March 2004. We engage in insurance operations through our indirect subsidiaries, National American Insurance Company of California and related entities. A significant portion of our operating losses in the past three years stem from lines of insurance business, such as commercial automobile and workers—compensation insurance, which the company has ceased actively underwriting. Our insurance operations under National American Insurance Company of California and related subsidiaries reported segment losses of \$0.8 million, \$10.2 million and \$10.5 million, for the three fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Our strategy had been to grow by making strategic acquisitions. As part of this corporate strategy, we had sought acquisition opportunities, such as the recent acquisition of Covanta and the pending acquisition of Ref-Fuel, which management believed would enable us to earn an attractive return on our investment. Accordingly, with the recent acquisitions, our corporate strategy has evolved to focus on the waste and energy markets generally, and positioning Covanta as a leader in these sectors, specifically. Also see *Our Business Strategy* in this section below for a more detailed discussion of our new corporate strategy.

As a result of the consummation of the Covanta acquisition on March 10, 2004, our performance predominantly reflects the performance of Covanta s operations which are significantly larger than our other operations. The nature of our business, the risks attendant to such business and the trends that we face have been significantly altered by the acquisition of Covanta and our pending acquisition of Ref-Fuel. Accordingly, our financial results prior to the acquisition of Covanta in March 2004 are not directly comparable to our current and future financial results.

In May 2002, we acquired a 100% ownership interest in ACL, thereby entering into the marine transportation, construction and related service provider businesses. On January 31, 2003, ACL and many of its subsidiaries and its immediate direct parent entity, ACL Holdings, filed a petition with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. We wrote off our remaining investment in ACL at the end of the first quarter of 2003 as an other than temporary asset impairment.

As a result of ACL s bankruptcy filing, beginning in the year ended December 31, 2003, we accounted for our investment in ACL under the equity method, reflecting our significant influence, but not control, over ACL. On December 30, 2004, a plan of reorganization for ACL was confirmed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Indiana, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the ACL Plan of Reorganization. At the time of confirmation, there were no material conditions that needed to be fulfilled for emergence and, as a result of the confirmation of the ACL Plan of Reorganization, for purposes of generally accepted accounting principles, all of our equity interests in ACL were canceled. On January 10, 2005, ACL emerged from Chapter 11 proceedings and upon emergence a warrant was issued to us under the ACL Plan of Reorganization to purchase up to 3% of the common stock of ACL at a price of \$12.00 per share.

As of October 6, 2004, we sold our 5.4% interest and ACL sold its 50% interest in Global Materials Services, LLC.

As of the end of 2004, we had estimated aggregate consolidated NOLs for federal income tax purposes of approximately \$516 million. These losses will expire over the course of the next 18 years unless utilized prior thereto. These NOLs are primarily from the taxable results of certain grantor trusts established in 1990 as part of a reorganization in which Mission Insurance Group, Inc. emerged from bankruptcy as Danielson. These trusts were created for the purpose of assuming various liabilities of their grantors, consisting of certain present and former subsidiaries of Danielson, allowing state regulators to administer the run off of the Mission Insurance Group business while releasing Danielson and certain of its present and former subsidiaries from the proceedings free of claims and liabilities, including any obligation to provide for the funding to the trusts.

S-34

Table of Contents

As described in *Danielson-Specific Risks We cannot be certain that our net operating loss tax carryforwards will continue to be available to offset our tax liability*, possible changes in the status of certain liabilities and the manner of distributions to holders of certain claims in the Mission Insurance insolvency proceedings may require us to recognize significant taxable income, which may substantially reduce our available NOLs. While we cannot predict with certainty what amounts, if any, may be includable in our taxable income, we are in discussions with the representatives of the Mission Insurance entities in order to obtain additional information regarding the potential amount of includible taxable income.

We are considering a number of potential permissible actions and approaches intended to reduce the amount of taxable income we may be required to recognize. These include working cooperatively with representatives of the Mission Insurance entities and the California Commissioner of Insurance to clarify the treatment of certain liabilities and the manner of distributions to claimsholders in such insolvency proceedings, as well as the application of the tax rules consistent with the original Mission Insurance restructuring, and the terms of our agreement with the grantor trusts established in connection with that restructuring. Depending upon the type of arrangements that could be implemented, a possibility exists that additional losses could be recognized by us. Given the preliminary stage of some of these issues and the lack of definitive information available as of the date of this prospectus supplement, we cannot assure you that any such arrangements will be agreed to, or the amount, if any, of additional income or losses that could possibly be recognized.

Our principal executive offices are located at 40 Lane Road, Fairfield, New Jersey 07004 and our telephone number is (973) 882-9000.

Acquisition of Covanta Energy Corporation

On December 2, 2003, we executed a definitive investment and purchase agreement to acquire Covanta in connection with Covanta s emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings. The primary components of the transaction were: (1) the purchase by us of 100% of the equity of Covanta in consideration for a cash purchase price of \$30 million, and (2) agreement as to new letter of credit and revolving credit facilities for Covanta s domestic and international operations, provided by some of the existing Covanta lenders and three additional lenders arranged by us. We amended this agreement with Covanta as of February 23, 2004 to reduce the purchase price and release from an escrow account \$175,000 so that a limited liability company formed by us and one of our subsidiaries could acquire an equity interest in Covanta Lake, Inc., a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Covanta, in a transaction separate and distinct from the acquisition of Covanta out of bankruptcy.

As required by the investment and purchase agreement Covanta filed a proposed plan of reorganization, a proposed plan of liquidation for specified non-core businesses, and the related draft disclosure statement, each reflecting the transactions contemplated under the investment and purchase agreement, with the Bankruptcy Court and collectively referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Covanta Plan of Reorganization. On March 5, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the proposed plans. As part of the Covanta Plan of Reorganization, we agreed to offer to sell up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock, at a price of \$1.53 per share, to holders, as of January 12, 2004, of the \$100 million of principal amount of 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta who voted in favor of the Covanta Plan of Reorganization.

Under the terms of the investment and purchase agreement, on March 10, 2004, we acquired 100% of Covanta's equity in consideration for \$30 million (net of \$175,000 discussed above). As part of the investment and purchase agreement, we arranged for a new \$118 million replacement letter of credit facility for Covanta, secured by a second lien on Covanta's domestic assets. This financing was provided by each of SZ Investments, a Danielson stockholder, Third Avenue, a Danielson stockholder, and Laminar, a creditor of Covanta and a Danielson stockholder. In addition, in connection with a note purchase agreement, Laminar arranged for a \$10 million revolving loan facility for Covanta's international assets that we acquired, secured by these assets.

S-35

Table of Contents

The purchase price we recognized in our financial statements was \$47.5 million, which included the cash purchase price of \$29.8 million, an expense estimate of approximately \$6.4 million for professional fees and other costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, and an estimated fair value of \$11.3 million for our commitment to conduct the 9.25% Offering under which we have agreed to offer and sell up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock at \$1.53 per share to the holders, as of January 12, 2004, of the \$100 million of principal amount of 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta who voted in favor of the Covanta Plan of Reorganization.

Based upon information provided to us by Laminar, Laminar was a holder of \$10.4 million in principal amount of the 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta as of January 12, 2004. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, we have not had any discussions with Laminar regarding Laminar s participation in the 9.25% Offering.

On May 18, 2004, we commenced a pro rata rights offering to our stockholders to purchase 0.75 shares of our common stock, at a price of \$1.53 per share, for each share of our common stock held by our stockholders. The rights offering was completed on June 11, 2004. We issued a total of 27,438,118 additional shares of our common stock in the rights offering, constituting all of the shares offered for sale, with net proceeds to us of approximately \$42 million. We repaid \$40 million of bridge financing notes obtained in connection with the Covanta acquisition with the proceeds from the rights offering and through the conversion of a portion of the notes held by Laminar.

As part of our negotiations with Laminar and its becoming a 5% stockholder, pursuant to a letter agreement dated December 2, 2003, Laminar agreed to additional restrictions on the transferability of the shares of our common stock that Laminar holds or will acquire. Further, in accordance with the transfer restrictions contained in Article Fifth of our certificate of incorporation restricting the resale of our common stock by 5% stockholders, we have agreed with Laminar to provide it with limited rights to resell the common stock that it holds. Finally, pursuant to our agreement with the bridge financing lenders on July 28, 2004, we have filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the shares of Danielson common stock issued to or acquired by them under the note purchase agreement. The registration statement was declared effective on August 24, 2004. In addition, we also agreed to amend an existing registration rights agreement to provide these stockholders with the right to demand that we undertake an underwritten offering within twelve months of the closing of the Ref-Fuel acquisition in order to provide such stockholders with liquidity.

Our Business Strategy

With the acquisition of Covanta and our pending acquisition of Ref-Fuel, Danielson has a materially different business profile. Accordingly, our previous strategy has changed from seeking opportunistic acquisitions to focusing on Covanta taking a leadership role in the waste and energy businesses. Our mission statement is to be a world-class waste disposal and energy generation company by providing our clients safe, reliable, environmentally sound and cost-effective service. In order to accomplish this mission, we intend to:

Leverage our core competencies by:

providing outstanding client service,

utilizing an experienced management team,

developing and utilizing world-class technologies and operational expertise, and

applying proven asset management and cost control; Maximize long-term value of our existing portfolio by: continuing to operate at historic production levels,

continuing to execute effective maintenance programs,

S-36

Table of Contents

extending operating contracts, and

enhancing the value of Covanta-owned facilities after expiration of existing contracts; and Capitalize on growth opportunities by:

expanding existing waste-to-energy facilities in attractive markets,

developing TransRiver and its waste procurement and other expertise by leveraging that knowledge across a larger platform,

seeking new operating contract opportunities for waste-to-energy and other energy projects; and

seeking additional opportunities in businesses ancillary to its existing business, including additional waste transfer, transportation, processing and landfill businesses.

Energy Service Business

Domestic Energy Business

Covanta s domestic business is the design, construction and long-term operation of key infrastructure for municipalities and others in waste-to-energy and independent power production. Covanta s largest operations are in waste-to-energy projects, and it currently operates 25 waste-to-energy projects, the majority of which were developed and structured contractually as part of competitive procurements conducted by municipal entities. The waste-to-energy plants combust municipal solid waste as a means of environmentally sound disposal and produce energy that is typically sold as electricity to utilities and other electricity purchasers. Covanta processes approximately 4% of the municipal solid waste produced in the United States.

Waste-to-Energy Projects

The essential purpose of Covanta s waste-to-energy projects is to provide waste disposal services, typically to municipal clients who sponsor the projects. Generally, Covanta provides these services pursuant to long-term service contracts. The electricity or steam is sold pursuant to long-term power purchase agreements with local utilities or industrial customers, with one exception, and most of the resulting revenues reduce the overall cost of waste disposal services to the municipal clients. The original terms of the service contracts are each 20 or more years, with the majority now in the second half of the applicable term. Most of Covanta s service contacts may be renewed for varying periods of time, at the option of the municipal client. Covanta receives its revenue in the form of fees pursuant to the service contracts, and in some cases, power purchase agreements, at facilities it owns.

Independent Power Projects

Since 1989, Covanta has been engaged in developing, owning and/or operating independent power production facilities utilizing a variety of energy sources including hydroelectric, waste wood (biomass) and landfill gas. Covanta currently owns 12 of the 13 such facilities it operates domestically. The electrical output from each facility, with one exception, is sold to local utilities. Covanta s revenue from the independent power production facilities is derived primarily from the sale of energy and capacity. During 2003, Covanta sold its interests in its geothermal business.

International Energy Business

As with its domestic business, Covanta conducts its international energy businesses through wholly-owned subsidiaries. Internationally, the largest element of Covanta's energy business is its 26.2% ownership in and operation of the 460 MW (net) pulverized coal-fired electrical generating facility in Quezon Province, the Philippines. Covanta has interests in other fossil-fuel generating projects in Asia, a waste-to-energy project in Italy and two small hydroelectric projects in Costa Rica. In general, these projects provide returns primarily from equity distributions and, to a lesser extent, operating fees. The

S-37

Table of Contents

projects sell the electricity and steam they generate under long-term contracts or market concessions to utilities, governmental agencies providing power distribution, creditworthy industrial users or local governmental units. In select cases, such sales of electricity and steam may be provided under short-term arrangements as well. Similarly, Covanta seeks to obtain long-term contracts for fuel supply from reliable sources.

Covanta Reorganization

On March 10, 2004, Covanta and most of its domestic affiliates consummated a plan of reorganization and emerged from their reorganization proceedings under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As a result of the consummation of the plan, Covanta is our wholly-owned subsidiary. The Covanta bankruptcy commenced on April 1, 2002, when Covanta and most of its domestic subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York. After the first petition date, 32 additional subsidiaries filed their Chapter 11 petitions for relief under the Bankruptcy Code. Prior to emergence, the debtors under the Chapter 11 cases operated their businesses as debtors-in-possession pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code.

Acquisition of Ref-Fuel

As of January 31, 2005, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Ref-Fuel, an owner and operator of waste-to-energy facilities in the northeast United States, and Ref-Fuel s stockholders to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Ref-Fuel capital stock. Under the terms of the agreement, we will pay \$740 million in cash for the stock of Ref-Fuel and will assume the consolidated net debt of Ref-Fuel, which as of March 31, 2005 was approximately \$1.2 billion. See *Description of Acquisition Debt* below for a more detailed description of the indebtedness that will be assumed in connection with the transaction. After the transaction is completed, Ref-Fuel will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covanta.

The acquisition is expected to close after all of the closing conditions to the purchase agreement obligations have been satisfied or waived. These closing conditions include receipt of approvals, consents and the satisfaction of all waiting periods as required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and as required by certain governmental authorities, such as FERC, and other applicable regulatory authorities. For a more complete discussion of the conditions to closing, see *Description of Significant Ref-Fuel Acquisition Agreements Stock Purchase Agreement* below. While it is anticipated that all of the applicable conditions will be satisfied, there can be no assurance as to whether or when all of those conditions will be satisfied or, where permissible, waived.

Either we or the stockholders of Ref-Fuel may terminate the purchase agreement if the acquisition does not occur on or before June 30, 2005, but if a required governmental or regulatory approval has not been received by such date or there shall be a pending governmental proceeding to enjoin or otherwise prevent the consummation of the acquisition, then either party may extend the closing to a date that is no later than the later of August 31, 2005 or the date 25 days after which Ref-Fuel has provided us with certain financial statements described in the purchase agreement.

We intend to finance this transaction through a combination of debt and equity financing. The equity component of the financing is this rights offering. SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar, representing ownership of approximately 40.4% of our outstanding common stock, have each separately committed to acquire their respective pro rata portion of the shares offered in this rights offering. As consideration for their commitments, we will pay each of these stockholders an amount equal to 1.75% of their respective equity commitments, provided that no further extensions of the commitments are required prior to the closing of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We also agreed to amend an existing registration rights agreement to provide these stockholders with the right to demand that we undertake an underwritten offering within twelve months of the closing of the acquisition of Ref-Fuel in order to provide such stockholders with liquidity.

S-38

Table of Contents

As part of our obligations as the sponsor of a second plan of reorganization for Covanta, we agreed to offer rights to purchase 3.0 million shares of our common stock in the 9.25% Offering. We have executed a letter agreement with Laminar pursuant to which have agreed that because the 9.25% Offering has not closed prior to the record date for this rights offering, we will revise the terms of the 9.25% Offering so that participants in the 9.25% Offering are offered up to 2.7 million additional shares of our common stock at the same \$6.00 per share purchase price as in this rights offering. We have filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the 9.25% Offering, which registration statement has not been declared effective. Since the 9.25% Offering was not commenced prior to this rights offering, we will amend and restructure the 9.25% Offering in accordance with our agreement.

Assuming exercise of all rights in this rights offering and the purchase of 5.7 million shares in the 9.25% Offering, we estimate that we will have approximately 146.5 million shares outstanding following the consummation of both rights offerings.

We have received a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston for a debt financing package for Covanta necessary to finance the acquisition, as well as to refinance the existing recourse debt of Covanta and provide additional liquidity for us. This financing shall consist of two tranches, each of which is secured by pledges of the stock of Covanta subsidiaries that has not otherwise been pledged, guarantees from certain of Covanta subsidiaries and all other available assets of Covanta subsidiaries. The first tranche, a first priority senior secured bank facility, is expected to be made up of a \$250 million term loan facility due 2012, a \$100 million revolving credit facility due 2011 and a \$340 million letter of credit facility due 2012. The second tranche, a second priority senior secured term loan facility due 2013, is expected to be in the principal amount of \$425 million, up to \$212.5 million of which may be replaced with fixed rate notes within 120 days after the closing of the financing without premium or penalty. See *Description of Acquisition Debt* in this section below for a more detailed description of this debt financing.

The closing of the financing and receipt of proceeds under this rights offering are closing conditions under the purchase agreement.

Immediately upon closing of the acquisition, Ref-Fuel will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covanta, and Covanta will control the management and operations of the Ref-Fuel facilities. The current project and other debt of Ref-Fuel subsidiaries will not be refinanced in connection with the acquisition, except to the extent certain subsidiaries of Ref-Fuel may be required to repurchase outstanding notes, at a premium of 101% of par value, from existing holders. The principal amount of notes repurchased, if any, may not exceed \$425 million. Our existing commitments from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston provide sufficient financing for any such repurchases. In addition, existing revolving credit and letter of credit facility of American Ref-Fuel Company LLC (the direct parent of each Ref-Fuel project company) will be canceled and replaced with the new facilities, described above, at the Covanta level.

We estimate that we will incur approximately \$45 million in aggregate transaction expenses, including customary underwriting and commitment fees, relating to the first and second tranches described above. To the extent that Ref-Fuel subsidiaries are required to repurchase notes as described above, we will incur additional commitment fees on the notes repurchased, plus additional transaction costs relating to such repurchases. The amount of such additional fees and transaction costs will depend on whether and to what extent any such repurchases are required.

If the Ref-Fuel acquisition is completed, Ref-Fuel will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covanta, and Covanta will control the management and operations of the ARC facilities. The current project and other debt of Ref-Fuel subsidiaries will be unaffected by the acquisition, except that the revolving credit and letter of credit facility of ARC (the direct parent of each Ref-Fuel project company) will be canceled and replaced with new facilities at the Covanta level.

S-39

Table of Contents

Acquisition Rationale

We believe that the Ref-Fuel acquisition will strengthen our business in several important respects, including primarily the following:

complementing and building upon our recent acquisition of Covanta, through which we operate our core waste-to-energy business, and in which our management team has extensive experience;

materially adding to our existing base of contracted revenues, as approximately 70% of our combined revenues are derived from long-term contracts;

diversifying our cash flow with which to service our corporate debt;

materially adding to our existing asset base, as Ref-Fuel owns five of the six waste-to-energy projects it operates, which we will continue to operate after existing contracts expire;

expanding our presence in the attractive Northeast region, where population density, waste generation rates, high demand for waste disposal services and difficulty in siting new disposal facilities combine to create favorable industry fundamentals;

allowing us to create additional value through cost savings and efficiencies, which we estimate to be approximately \$15 million to \$20 million annually phased in through 2007;

strengthening our credit profile and lowering our overall cost of capital;

providing the opportunity for material deleveraging, which we expect to be approximately \$900 million through 2009 from scheduled payments alone;

providing more flexible financial covenants, through the related refinancing, in our principal financing arrangements, which will allow us to execute our business strategy;

providing us, through the related refinancing, with access to, and the ability to manage cash from, our international businesses in a manner consistent with our overall business strategy; and

allowing us to capitalize on TransRiver s market knowledge in waste procurement, transfer operations, materials handling and other areas to ensure our facility capacity is utilized fully through municipal solid waste and specialty waste deliveries and to leverage that expertise over a broader platform of facilities.

Description of Acquisition Debt

We have negotiated the terms and conditions of two credit and guaranty agreements with a syndicate of lenders led by Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston, collectively with all other lenders party thereto referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Lenders, and other parties thereto. Under these credit and guaranty agreements, the Lenders have agreed to provide secured revolving credit, letter of credit and term loan facilities, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the senior secured credit facilities, in the amount of up to \$1.115 billion as described below.

The following is a description of the general terms of the senior secured credit facilities. This information relating to the senior secured credit facilities is subject to execution of definitive documentation and we cannot assure you that the terms and conditions set forth herein will be the final terms and conditions upon execution. The senior secured credit facilities are expected to be comprised of the following:

a first priority secured term loan facility in the amount of \$250 million that will mature in 2012, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the First Lien Term Loan Facility;

a first priority secured revolving credit facility in the amount of \$100 million, available for revolving loans, up to \$75 million of which may be utilized for letters of credit, that will mature in 2011, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Revolving Credit Facility;

S-40

Table of Contents

a first priority secured synthetic letter of credit facility in the amount of \$340 million that will mature in 2012, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Synthetic L/C Facility; and

a second priority secured term loan facility in the amount of \$425 million that will mature in 2013, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Second Lien Term Loan Facility.

The First Lien Term Loan Facility, the Revolving Credit Facility and the Synthetic L/ C Facility are referred to collectively in this prospectus supplement as the First Lien Facilities.

Amortization Payments

We expect the First Lien Term Loan Facility will have mandatory annual amortization, paid on a quarterly basis, through the date of maturity according to the following schedule:

First Lien Term

	Loan Facility	
	(In millions)	
2005	\$ 1.2	5
2006	2.5	0
2007	2.5	0
2008	2.5	0
2009	2.5	0
2010	2.5	0
2011	118.7	5
2012	117.5	0

We expect that the Second Lien Term Loan Facility will have no mandatory amortization requirements and will be required to be repaid in full on its maturity date.

Interest

For purposes of calculating interest, loans under the senior secured credit facilities are designated as eurodollar rate loans or, in certain circumstances, base rate loans.

Eurodollar loans bear interest at a reserve adjusted British Bankers Association Interest Settlement Rate, commonly referred to as LIBOR, for deposits in dollars plus a borrowing margin as described below. Interest on eurodollar rate loans is payable at the end of the applicable interest period of one, two, three and six months (and at the end of every three months in the case of six month eurodollar loans).

Base rate loans bear interest at (a) a rate per annum equal to the greater of (i) the rate most recently quoted in *The Wall Street Journal* Money Rates Section as the prime rate or (ii) the federal funds rate plus 0.50% per annum, plus (b) a borrowing margin as described below.

We expect letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility to accrue fees at the then effective borrowing margins on eurodollar rate loans, plus a fee on each issued letter of credit payable to the issuing bank. Letter of credit availability under the Synthetic Letter of Credit Facility accrues fees (whether or not letters of credit are issued thereunder) at the then-effective borrowing margin for eurodollar rate loans described below times the total availability under letters of credit (whether or not then utilized), plus a fee on each issued letter of credit payable to the issuing bank.

We are currently negotiating the applicable borrowing margins for the First Lien Facilities and the Second Lien Term Loan Facility with the Lenders.

Security and Guarantees

We expect the obligations of Covanta under the First Lien Facilities to be guaranteed by Danielson and by certain of Covanta s subsidiaries, referred to as the subsidiary guarantors. Covanta s obligations

S-41

Table of Contents

under the First Lien Facilities and certain interest rate or other hedging arrangements entered into with any of the Lenders and their affiliates and the subsidiary guarantors—guaranty obligation will be secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all assets, including substantially all of the personal, real and mixed property of Covanta and its subsidiary guarantors. The First Lien Facilities also will be secured by a first priority perfected lien or pledge on 100% of the capital stock of Covanta and certain direct subsidiaries of Covanta and their subsidiary guarantors, at least 65% of the capital stock of each first tier foreign subsidiary of Covanta and the subsidiary guarantors, and all intercompany debt owed to Covanta or the subsidiary guarantors. Other subsidiaries of Danielson will not be subject to any guaranty.

The Second Lien Term Loan Facility is expected to be secured by a second priority security interest in substantially all assets, including substantially all of the personal, real and mixed property of Covanta and its subsidiary guarantors. The Second Lien Term Loan Facility will be secured by a second priority perfected lien or pledge on 100% of the capital stock of Covanta and certain direct subsidiaries of Covanta and their subsidiary guarantors, at least 65% of the capital stock of each first tier foreign subsidiary of Covanta and the subsidiary guarantors, and all intercompany debt owed to Covanta or the subsidiary guarantors.

Intercreditor Agreement

The priority of the security interests and related creditor rights between the First Lien Facilities, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the First Lien Obligations, and those of the Second Lien Term Loan Facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Second Lien Obligations, will be set forth in an intercreditor agreement. For as long as any of the First Lien Obligations are outstanding, we expect that:

liens securing the Second Lien Obligations will be junior and subordinated in all respects to liens securing the First Lien Obligations;

the collateral agent for the Second Lien Obligations will not exercise any rights or remedies with respect to any collateral for 180 days from the date of delivery of notice in writing to the collateral agent for the First Lien Obligations;

the collateral agent for the Second Lien Obligations will not take or receive any collateral or any proceeds of collateral in connection with the exercise of any right or remedy (including setoff) with respect to any collateral;

any proceeds of collateral received in connection with the sale or disposition of such collateral by the collateral agent for the holders of the First Lien Obligations will be applied to the First Lien Obligations in the order specified by the applicable First Lien Obligation documents. Upon discharge of the First Lien Obligations, any proceeds of collateral held by the collateral agent for the First Lien Obligations will be delivered to the collateral agent for the Second Lien Obligations to be applied in the order specified by the applicable Second Lien Obligation documents; and

except as permitted under the intercreditor agreement and the senior secured credit facilities, Covanta will not make prepayments of the Second Lien Obligations prior to any voluntary or mandatory prepayment of any amounts outstanding under the First Lien Obligations.

Covenants

The loan documentation is expected to contain customary affirmative and negative covenants and financial covenants. During the term of the senior secured credit facilities, we expect that the negative covenants will restrict our ability to take specified actions, subject to exceptions including, but not limited to:

incurring additional indebtedness, including guarantees;

creating, incur, assume or permit to exist liens on property and assets;

S-42

Table of Contents

making loans and investments and entering into mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and joint ventures;

engaging in sales, transfers and other dispositions of our property or assets;

paying, redeeming or repurchasing debt, or amending or modifying the terms of certain material debt or certain other agreements;

declaring or paying dividends to, making distributions to, or making redemptions and repurchases from, equity holders;

entering into certain affiliate transactions; and

entering into agreements that would restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends and make distributions, making certain loans and advances to Covanta, incurring liens or transfer property or assets to Covanta or its subsidiaries.

The financial covenants are expected to include the following:

maximum Covanta leverage ratio measuring recourse debt to a specified Covanta cash flow;

maximum capital expenditures;

minimum Covanta interest coverage ratio measuring recourse debt interest expense to a specified Covanta cash flow; and

minimum consolidated adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Mandatory Prepayment

We expect that we will be required to make mandatory annual prepayments of the senior secured credit facilities in an amount equal to 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the loan documentation, or 25% of excess cash flow when the consolidated leverage ratio is lower than specified levels to be negotiated. In addition, we expect that we will be required to make a mandatory prepayment of the senior secured credit facilities with, among other things:

100% of the net cash proceeds of any property or asset sale, subject to certain exceptions and reinvestment requirements;

100% net insurance and condemnation proceeds, subject to certain exceptions and reinvestment provisions;

50% of the net cash proceeds from the issuance of additional equity securities, subject to certain exceptions; and

100% of the net cash proceeds of certain debt issuances, subject to certain exceptions.

Mandatory prepayments are expected to be applied to the senior secured credit facilities, first, to prepay the First Lien Term Loan Facility and then to the remaining senior secured credit facilities in amounts and orders to be negotiated with the Lenders.

Events of Default

The loan documentation for the senior secured credit facilities is expected to contain events of default, including, but not limited to, failure to make payments when due, cross defaults to our other material debt, certain change of control events and specified material reductions in NOLs available to us, other than through utilization.

Description of Significant Ref-Fuel Acquisition Agreements

The following summary is qualified by reference to each of these agreements and certain exhibits thereto, each of which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

S-43

Table of Contents

Stock Purchase Agreement

On January 31, 2005, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Ref-Fuel and Ref-Fuel s stockholders to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Ref-Fuel capital stock.

Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we will pay \$740 million in cash for all of the stock of Ref-Fuel and will assume the consolidated net debt of Ref-Fuel, which, as of March 31, 2005, was approximately \$1.2 billion. After the transaction is completed, Ref-Fuel will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of our subsidiary, Covanta.

The transaction is expected to close after all of the closing conditions in the purchase agreement have been satisfied or waived. These closing conditions include the receipt of approvals and clearances and the satisfaction of all waiting periods as required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and as required by certain governmental authorities such as FERC and other applicable regulatory authorities. On March 21, 2005 we received notice from the Federal Trade Commission that the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act had been terminated. On March 29, 2005 we received our required approval from FERC. We have also received all other regulatory approvals. Other closing conditions of the transaction include our completion of this rights offering and the other financing described in this prospectus supplement, the cancellation of all outstanding options to purchase stock of Ref-Fuel, our entering into letter of credit or other financial accommodations in the aggregate amount of \$100 million to replace two currently outstanding letters of credit that have been entered into by two respective subsidiaries of Ref-Fuel and issued in favor of a third subsidiary of Ref-Fuel, and other customary closing conditions.

The purchase agreement contains customary representations and warranties of the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel, Ref-Fuel and us, including representations of:

the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel as to the validity of their respective organization, authority to enter into the transactions, any pre-approvals or consents required by them to consummate the transaction and as to their ownership and title to their shares of Ref-Fuel stock;

representations of Ref-Fuel as to the validity of its organization, capitalization, authority to enter into the transactions, any pre-approvals or consents required by it to consummate the transaction, its respective capital resources, solvency and the accuracy and validity of its securities filings with the SEC and financial statements, the liabilities and certain actions taken by it, various operational matters, including insurance, property, litigation, compliance with laws, contracts, taxes, labor and employee matters, environmental matters, intellectual property, regulatory matters and related party transactions, among others; and

representations of us as to the validity of our organization, authority to enter into the transactions, any pre-approvals or consents required by us to consummate the transaction, our respective capital resources, solvency and the accuracy and validity of our securities filings with the SEC.

Under the purchase agreement, Ref-Fuel is required to operate its business in the ordinary and usual course of business and maintain its assets and properties in their current condition until the closing. However, prior to the closing of the transaction, the board of directors of Ref-Fuel shall take the necessary actions to cancel all outstanding options to purchase stock of Ref-Fuel as of the closing.

The purchase agreement contains several other covenants typical to a transaction of this nature. Certain material covenants contained in the purchase agreement include the following:

Ref-Fuel will adopt, and we will be required to maintain for a period of one year, a severance policy with respect to individuals who are employed by Ref-Fuel immediately prior to the closing of the transaction. Ref-Fuel will also make payments required under its management incentive plan immediately following the closing;

On or before the closing date, Ref-Fuel will terminate all contracts between itself and its affiliates, other than its subsidiaries, without the payment of any consideration for such termination;

S-44

Table of Contents

Until the closing, Ref-Fuel will provide us with unaudited monthly financial statements and operating or management reports;

All transaction-related expenses of Ref-Fuel and its subsidiaries will be paid by Ref-Fuel prior to the closing of the transactions; and

For a period of 90 days prior to the closing date, Ref-Fuel will not effect any plant closing, mass layoff, or other action requiring notification under the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act.

The purchase agreement contains an exclusivity provision prohibiting the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel and Ref-Fuel from engaging in discussions or negotiations with anyone other than us with respect to the acquisition of Ref-Fuel from the date of the agreement until the earlier of the closing of the transaction or the termination of the purchase agreement.

The purchase agreement does not provide us with indemnification by the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel or Ref-Fuel. Following the closing, Ref-Fuel will continue to provide indemnification for its officers and directors and will maintain directors and officers liability insurance with similar coverage and amounts as currently in place at Ref-Fuel. We will not be permitted to amend any of the indemnification provisions of Ref-Fuel s certificate of incorporation or by-laws.

The closing of the financing and receipt of proceeds under this rights offering are closing conditions under the purchase agreement. The proceeds that must be received by us in this rights offering will be equal to the difference between \$399 million and the sum of (1) the cash contributed as common equity to Covanta by us from our unrestricted cash, and (2) not more than \$25 million of cash from Covanta.

Either we or the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel may terminate the purchase agreement if the acquisition does not occur on or before June 30, 2005, but if a required governmental or regulatory approval has not been received by such date or there shall be a pending governmental proceeding to enjoin or otherwise prevent the consummation of the acquisition, then either party may extend the closing to a date that is no later than the later of August 31, 2005 or the date 25 days after which Ref-Fuel has provided us with certain financial statements described in the purchase agreement. The selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel may terminate the purchase agreement if we breach certain of our obligations under the agreement, and we may terminate the agreement if Ref-Fuel or its selling stockholders breach certain of their obligations under the purchase agreement.

If the purchase agreement is terminated because of our failure to complete the offering described in this prospectus supplement and the other financing described herein, and all other closing conditions are capable of being satisfied, we must pay a termination fee of \$25 million to the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel, of which not less than \$10 million will be paid in cash and of which up to \$15 million may be paid, at our election, in shares of our common stock based on a price of \$8.13 per share. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement, we have deposited \$10 million in cash in an escrow account, which will be released to the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel in the event that the termination fee becomes payable.

Registration Rights Agreement

Also on January 31, 2005, we entered into a registration rights agreement granting registration rights to the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel with respect to shares of our common stock which we may elect to issue to the selling stockholders in connection with the payment of a termination fee under the purchase agreement, as described in the preceding paragraph. Pursuant to this registration rights agreement, we have agreed with the selling stockholders to file, upon their request and at our expense, a shelf registration statement with the SEC to register such shares of our common stock issued to each of them under the purchase agreement. The selling stockholders were also granted certain piggy-back registration rights with respect to such shares of our common stock. The registration rights agreement terminates on the earlier to occur of (1) the termination or closing of the purchase agreement, (2) the expiration of the shelf registration statement, or (3) January 31, 2010.

S-45

Table of Contents

Equity Commitment for Rights Offering

SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar, together representing ownership of approximately 40.4% of our outstanding common stock, have each separately committed to participate in this rights offering and acquire their respective pro rata portion of the shares, as set forth in the equity commitments for rights offering agreements entered into between us and each of them respectively. Their obligations initially were to expire on May 31, 2005, but we have the option to extend their obligations up to three times (through August 31, 2005) by increasing their consideration by 0.25% of their respective equity commitments for each such extension. On May 10, 2005, we exercised our option under the equity commitment agreements with each of these stockholders to extend their obligations to June 30, 2005. As consideration for their commitments, we will pay each of these stockholders an amount equal to 1.75% of their respective equity commitment amounts, provided that no further extensions of the commitments are required prior to closing of the Ref-Fuel acquisition.

In the event that this rights offering is terminated, we have agreed to pay the consideration otherwise payable to these stockholders in shares of our common stock. We have also agreed to amend an existing registration rights agreement to provide these stockholders with the right to demand that we undertake an underwritten offering within twelve months of the closing of the acquisition of Ref-Fuel in order to provide such stockholders with liquidity. We also agreed to reimburse these stockholders for their reasonable out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred in connection with the execution of the respective equity commitments.

S-46

Table of Contents

REF-FUEL S BUSINESS

Ref-Fuel s Structure

Ref-Fuel is a holding company whose sole source of operating cash flow relates to its indirect ownership interest in MSW I and MSW II. The sole source of operating cash flow for MSW I and MSW II depends on the cash flow of Ref-Fuel Holdings and, indirectly, ARC. MSW I and MSW II are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Ref-Fuel. Ref-Fuel, which, through a series of transactions between December 12, 2003 and April 30, 2004, is owned 60% by DLJ Merchant Banking Partners III, L.P. and several affiliated private equity funds, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the DLJMB Funds, each of which is managed by entities affiliated with Credit Suisse First Boston Private Equity, Inc. and 40% by investment funds, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the AIG Highstar Funds, managed by AIG Global Investment Corp., referred to in this prospectus supplement as AIGGIC, an indirect subsidiary of American International Group, Inc.

S-47

Table of Contents

The following chart reflects Ref-Fuel s current ownership structure (certain intermediary companies not presented):

- (1) To simplify the presentation, the ownership shown includes a 49.9% membership interest directly held by MSW Energy Holdings II and a 0.1% membership interest held by ARC II Corp. (formerly known as UAE Ref-Fuel II Corp.), a wholly owned subsidiary of MSW Energy Holdings II.
- (2) MSW Energy Holdings holds its 49.8% membership interest through its wholly-owned subsidiary, MSW Energy Hudson LLC. MSW Energy Holdings also has the right to vote an additional 0.2% interest held by Duke Energy Corporation.

S-48

Ref-Fuel s History And Reorganization

Ref-Fuel (formerly known as United American Energy Holdings Corp.) was principally engaged in the ownership, management and operation of electric power generating facilities, including coal, municipal solid waste, natural gas, oil and water power. Ref-Fuel owned interests in twelve facilities, including an equity interest in the six ARC waste-to-energy facilities. In December 1997, Ref-Fuel acquired a 17.5% indirect interest in ARC through a joint venture with Duke Energy Corporation. In April 2001, Ref-Fuel increased its ownership interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings (which at such time owned 50% of ARC) from 35% to 50% with the purchase of a 15% interest from Duke Energy Corporation. In separate transactions on the same date, Ref-Fuel Holdings increased its ownership in ARC from 50% to 100% by acquiring certain interests of Allied Waste Industries, Inc., referred to in this prospectus supplement as Allied, in ARC and restructuring Ref-Fuel Holdings remaining interests in ARC. On December 12, 2003, MSW Merger LLC, an entity formed by the DLJMB Funds, merged with and into Ref-Fuel, following which the DLJMB Funds became the sole stockholders of Ref-Fuel. Prior to completing the merger, Ref-Fuel primarily derived its revenue from:

the sale of electrical energy and capacity, thermal energy and waste disposal services;

earnings on equity investments; and

providing operation and management services to various energy businesses for fixed and variable fees. Following the merger, Ref-Fuel sold, on December 15, 2003, several of its operating subsidiaries to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Delta Power Company, LLC. In addition, Ref-Fuel sold, on August 18, 2004, its interest in UAE Mecklenberg Cogeneration LLP, which owns a coal fired generating facility in Clarksville, Virginia, to Virginia Electric and Power Company. As a result of the sale of Ref-Fuel s assets, other than its interests in Ref-Fuel Holdings, Ref-Fuel derives all of its operating cash flow from its indirect investment in Ref-Fuel Holdings. Upon the completion of these transactions and a series of additional transactions in which Ref-Fuel, the DLJMB Funds, the AIG Highstar Funds and affiliates of AIGGIC restructured their equity investments in Ref-Fuel and in MSW I, Ref-Fuel now has a 99.8% indirect equity interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings, and Ref-Fuel is now owned 60% by the DLJMB Funds and 40% by the AIG Highstar Funds.

MSW I

MSW I was formed in March 2003 as a Delaware limited liability company for the purpose of acquiring an indirect membership interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings.

On June 25, 2003, MSW I completed the issuance of \$200 million aggregate principal amount of 8.5% senior secured notes due 2010. Net proceeds from the financing were used, together with capital contributions, to fund the acquisition of a 49.8% indirect membership interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings.

Interest on MSW I s notes is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year. Interest only is payable throughout the term of such notes with the principal and unpaid interest payable at maturity on September 1, 2010. MSW I s notes are general obligations of MSW I and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets of MSW I, including a first priority pledge of the membership interest in MSW I s subsidiaries and of Ref-Fuel Holdings indirectly owned by MSW I.

The indenture under which MSW I s notes were issued provides for restrictive covenants including, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, certain payments to related and unrelated parties, acquisitions and assets sales. Such indenture also requires, among other things, that MSW I offer to repurchase the notes upon a change of control at 101% of par value and meet certain ratio tests and be in compliance with other covenants prior to paying a dividend or making a distribution to Ref-Fuel. See *MSW I and MSW II Financings* for a more detailed description of the change of control offer and the restrictions imposed by the MSW I s indenture on distributions to Ref-Fuel.

S-49

Table of Contents

MSW II

MSW II was formed in August 2003 as a Delaware limited liability company for the purpose of issuing notes, the proceeds of which were used to partially fund the merger, in December 2003, of MSW Merger LLC, an entity formed by DLJ Merchant Banking Partners III, L.P. and affiliated investment funds, with and into Ref-Fuel.

On November 24, 2003, MSW II completed the issuance of \$225 million aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior secured notes due 2010. Interest on MSW II s notes is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year. Interest only is payable throughout the term of such notes with the principal and unpaid interest payable at maturity on September 1, 2010. MSW II s notes are general obligations of MSW II and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets of MSW II, including a first priority pledge of the capital stock of MSW II s subsidiaries and of Ref-Fuel Holdings held directly and indirectly by MSW II.

The indenture under which MSW II s notes were issued provides for certain restrictive covenants including, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, certain payments to related and unrelated parties, acquisitions and asset sales. Such indenture also requires, among other things, that MSW II offer to repurchase the notes upon a change of control at 101% of par value and meet certain ratio tests and be in compliance with other covenants prior to paying a dividend or making a distribution to Ref-Fuel. See *MSW I and MSW II Financings* for a more detailed description of the change of control offer and the restrictions imposed by MSW II s indenture on distributions to Ref-Fuel.

Ref-Fuel Holdings and ARC

Overview

Ref-Fuel Holdings was formed for the purpose of obtaining ownership and control of partnerships that develop, own and operate waste-to-energy facilities that combust municipal solid waste and produce energy in the form of electricity and steam.

Ref-Fuel Holdings owns a 100% interest in ARC which in turn owns interests in the following: American Ref-Fuel Company of Hempstead, a New York general partnership and the beneficial owner of the Hempstead facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Hempstead Partnership;

American Ref-Fuel Company of Essex County, a Delaware general partnership and the beneficial owner of the Essex facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Essex Partnership;

American Ref-Fuel Company of Southeastern Connecticut, a Connecticut general partnership and the beneficial owner of the Seconn facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Seconn Partnership;

American Ref-Fuel Company of Niagara, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership and the beneficial owner of the Niagara facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Niagara Partnership;

American Ref-Fuel Company of Semass, L.P., a Massachusetts limited partnership, referred to in this prospectus supplement as Semass L.P. and the owner of 90% of the Semass Partnership, the owner of the Semass facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Semass Partnership, and American Ref-Fuel Operations of Semass, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership and the operator of the Semass facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Semass Operator; and

American Ref-Fuel Company of Delaware Valley, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership and the lessee of the Delaware Valley facility, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the Delaware Partnership.

S-50

Table of Contents

These entities, including the Semass Partnership and Semass Operator but not including Semass, L.P., are sometimes referred to in this prospectus supplement collectively as the ARC operating companies.

Ref-Fuel Holdings also owns a 100% indirect interest in TransRiver Marketing Company, L.P., a waste procurement company, and American Ref-Fuel Company, ARC s management subsidiary.

The following is a chart of the ARC operating companies and TransRiver, each of which is indirectly 100% owned by ARC, except for the Semass Partnership, which is indirectly 90% owned by ARC:

The ARC operating facilities are located in:

Hempstead, New York;

Newark, New Jersey;

Preston, Connecticut;

Niagara Falls, New York;

Rochester, Massachusetts; and

Chester, Pennsylvania.

The ARC operating facilities together process approximately 5 million tons of waste and sell approximately 2.6 million megawatt hours, or MWH, of electricity each year.

TransRiver provides waste marketing services to ARC and owns a transfer station in Lynn, Massachusetts. ARC, through ARC Management Company, provides technical support, environmental permitting support, operating and maintenance support, and general and administrative services to the ARC operating companies and TransRiver.

For a description of operating information regarding the ARC operating companies, please see *Item 1. Business Overview* and for a description of the ARC operating companies facilities, please see *Item 2. Properties* in the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 for MSW I and MSW Energy Finance Co., Inc., which is incorporated by reference herein.

For a description of energy regulatory matters and environmental matters relating to Ref-Fuel and its subsidiaries, please see *Item 1. Business Recent Developments Energy Regulatory Matters* and *Environmental Matters* and for a description of legal proceedings relating to Ref-Fuel and its subsidiaries, please see *Item 3. Legal Proceedings* in the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 for MSW I and MSW Energy Finance Co., Inc., which is incorporated herein by reference.

S-51

ARC Financing

ARC has outstanding debt financing consisting of \$275 million original principal amount of 6.26% senior notes due 2015, and a \$75 million revolving credit facility, which is expected to be canceled as part of the acquisition. ARC is obligated to make semi-annual principal payments on the senior notes. The ARC senior notes outstanding as of March 31, 2005 were \$240 million. There were approximately \$10.9 million of letters of credit outstanding and no advances outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2005, all of which are expected to be replaced with new letters of credit. The indebtedness under the ARC senior notes requires that ARC maintain debt service reserve amounts solely for the benefit of the bond holders and lenders in an amount equal to the greater of 50% of the next twelve months interest and scheduled principal and other payments or 100% of the next six months interest and scheduled principal and other payments. They also maintain indirect equity interests in the ARC operating companies as collateral.

The agreements governing the indebtedness evidenced by the ARC senior notes include, among other restrictive covenants, limitations on the ability of ARC and its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness. Permitted indebtedness under these agreements is generally limited to:

the notes, the revolving credit facility and other existing indebtedness;

purchase money indebtedness;

intercompany debt;

indebtedness that is non-recourse to ARC;

indebtedness incurred to finance capital expenditures required by law;

subordinated debt:

up to \$5 million of indebtedness incurred in the ordinary course;

other indebtedness so long as cash flow coverage tests are satisfied and the ratings are not reduced on the ARC senior notes; and

refinancing indebtedness.

In addition, these agreements also require ARC to redeem, on a pro rata basis, any outstanding indebtedness under the notes from the net cash proceeds that ARC receives from:

the sale of assets, other than in the ordinary course of business;

any condemnation or casualty loss or damage; or

the restructuring of power, steam sales, waste processing or disposal service contracts or other material contracts, unless all of the net cash proceeds received are reinvested or segregated for reinvestment and other conditions are met. In accordance with the terms of these agreements, ARC is limited in making distributions to Ref-Fuel Holdings. ARC will not make any distribution, unless, at the time of and after giving effect to such distribution:

no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing or would occur as a consequence of such distribution;

the debt service reserve accounts are funded at their required levels;

recourse debt coverage ratio (described below) for the preceding rolling four fiscal quarters is equal to or greater than 1.75 to 1.00;

S-52

Table of Contents

the projected recourse debt coverage ratio for the succeeding rolling four fiscal quarters is equal to or greater than 1.75 to 1.00; and

no material adverse effect will occur as a result of making such distribution.

The recourse debt coverage ratio under the agreements is the ratio of (1) adjusted cash flow available for fixed charges to (2) fixed charges, in each case for the twelve months immediately preceding or ending on any date of determination.

Adjusted cash flow available for fixed charges under the agreements is (1) distributions from ARC subsidiaries, plus (2) other cash income received by ARC, minus (3) any expenses paid by ARC (other than fixed charges), minus the sum of (4) distributions and other cash income that are attributable to extraordinary gains or other non-recurring items, plus (5) fixed charges paid by each of the ARC subsidiaries in respect of recourse debt.

Fixed charges for any period under the agreements are the sum of (1) the aggregate amount of interest expense, letter of credit and other fees with respect to recourse debt, and (2) the aggregate amount of all payments with respect to principal of any recourse debt.

The agreement for the revolving credit facility also contains financial covenants that require ARC to maintain a recourse debt leverage ratio of not more than 5.0 to 1.0 and to maintain a recourse debt coverage ratio of not less than 1.6 to 1.0 for the preceding rolling four fiscal quarters. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, ARC was in compliance with these covenants.

MSW I and MSW II Financings

MSW I Financing

MSW I has outstanding debt financing consisting of \$200 million of 8.50% senior secured notes due 2010, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the MSW I notes. Interest on the MSW I notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on March 1st and September 1st of each year. The MSW I notes mature on September 1, 2010. Holders of MSW I notes may require MSW I to repurchase the MSW I notes upon a change in control or if MSW I or any of its restricted subsidiaries receives any proceeds from certain financings or asset sales by Ref-Fuel Holdings and its subsidiaries.

The MSW I notes are general obligations of MSW I and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all the assets of MSW I, including a first priority pledge of the membership interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings.

The indenture under which the MSW I notes were issued, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the MSW I indenture, provides for certain restrictive covenants including, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, creation of liens, certain payments to related and unrelated parties, acquisitions, asset sales and transactions with affiliates.

The MSW I indenture provides that MSW I is not permitted to make certain distributions or other restricted payments, subject to certain exceptions, unless, and at the time of and after giving effect to such restricted payment: no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing or would occur as a consequence of such restricted payment;

MSW I is not required to make an offer, which they have not yet consummated, to repurchase or redeem MSW I notes with the net proceeds received from Ref-Fuel Holdings or its subsidiaries upon the issuance of debt or equity securities, incurrence of indebtedness or consummation of an asset sale by Ref-Fuel Holdings or any of its subsidiaries; and

at the time of such restricted payment, the proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio for MSW I s most recently ended four full fiscal quarters would have been at least 2.0 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis as if the restricted payment had been made at the beginning of such four-quarter

S-53

Table of Contents

period, and the projected proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio for MSW I s four full fiscal quarters commencing with the first full fiscal quarter after the date of the proposed restricted payment would be at least 2.0 to 1.0.

Proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio is defined in the MSW I indenture to mean the ratio obtained by dividing an amount equal to the applicable ownership percentage multiplied by the consolidated cash flow of Ref-Fuel Holdings for such period, by the sum of (1) an amount equal to the applicable ownership percentage multiplied by the consolidated interest expense of Ref-Fuel Holdings for the period, plus (2) without duplication, the consolidated interest expense of MSW I for such period. The consolidated interest coverage ratio of MSW I was 3.3x for the twelve month period ended March 31, 2005.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the MSW I indenture, MSW I shall be required to make an offer to each holder of MSW I notes to repurchase all or any part of such holder s MSW I notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase. Within 30 days following a change of control, MSW I shall mail a notice to each holder of MSW I notes stating that a change of control offer is being made and setting forth, among other things, the purchase price and the purchase date, which shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is mailed.

The MSW I indenture governing the MSW I notes includes limitations on the ability of MSW I and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness or issue preferred equity. The MSW I indenture provides that MSW I and its subsidiaries may only incur indebtedness or issue preferred equity if the proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio tests set forth above are met. Other permitted indebtedness under the MSW I indenture is generally limited to:

the MSW I notes:

indebtedness in respect of member loans;

refinancing indebtedness;

intercompany debt among MSW I and its restricted subsidiaries;

indebtedness in respect of hedging obligations;

guarantees of permitted indebtedness;

if ARC becomes a subsidiary of MSW I, under specific circumstances indebtedness may be permitted to be incurred by ARC and its subsidiaries including:

indebtedness under the ARC credit facility not to exceed \$75 million;

purchase money indebtedness;

indebtedness incurred to finance capital expenditures required by law;

indebtedness that is non-recourse to ARC; and other indebtedness not to exceed \$30 million.

Ref-Fuel Holdings and its subsidiaries are not currently deemed to be restricted subsidiaries under the MSW I indenture, including for purposes of the restrictive covenants described above.

MSW II Financing

MSW II has outstanding debt financing consisting of \$225 million aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior secured notes due 2010, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the MSW II notes. Interest on the MSW II notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on March 1st and September 1st of each year. The MSW II notes mature on September 1, 2010. Holders of MSW II notes may require MSW II to repurchase the MSW II notes upon a change in

S-54

Table of Contents

subsidiaries receives any proceeds from certain financings or asset sales by Ref-Fuel Holdings and its subsidiaries.

The MSW II notes are general obligations of MSW II and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all the assets of MSW II, including a first priority pledge of the membership interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings.

The indenture under which the MSW II notes were issued, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the MSW II indenture provides for certain restrictive covenants including, among other things, restrictions on incurrence of indebtedness, creation of liens, certain payments to related and unrelated parties, acquisitions, asset sales and transactions with affiliates.

The MSW II indenture provides that MSW II is not permitted to make certain distributions or other restricted payments, subject to certain exceptions, unless, and at the time of and after giving effect to such restricted payment,

no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing or would occur as a consequence of such restricted payment;

MSW II is not required to make an offer, which it has not yet consummated, to repurchase or redeem MSW II notes with the net proceeds received from Ref-Fuel Holdings or its subsidiaries upon the issuance of debt or equity securities, incurrence of indebtedness or consummation of an asset sale by Ref-Fuel Holdings or any of its subsidiaries; and

at the time of such restricted payment, the proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio for MSW II s most recently ended four full fiscal quarters would have been at least 2.0 to 1.0 on a pro forma basis as if the restricted payment had been made at the beginning of such four-quarter period, and the projected proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio for MSW II s four full fiscal quarters commencing with the first full fiscal quarter after the date of the proposed restricted payment would be at least 2.0 to 1.0.

Proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio is defined in the indenture to mean the ratio obtained by dividing an amount equal to the applicable ownership percentage multiplied by the consolidated cash flow of Ref-Fuel Holdings for such period, by the sum of (1) an amount equal to the applicable ownership percentage multiplied by the consolidated interest expense of Ref-Fuel Holdings for the period, plus (2) without duplication, the consolidated interest expense of MSW II for such period. The consolidated interest coverage ratio of MSW II was 3.3x for the twelve-month period ended March 31, 2005.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the MSW II indenture, MSW II shall be required to make an offer to each holder of MSW II notes to repurchase all or any part of such holder s MSW II notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase. Within 30 days following a change of control, MSW II shall mail a notice to each holder of MSW II notes stating that a change of control offer is being made and setting forth, among other things, the purchase price and the purchase date, which shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from the date such notice is mailed.

The MSW II indenture governing the MSW II notes includes limitations on the ability of MSW II and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness or issue preferred equity. The MSW II indenture provides that MSW II and its subsidiaries may only incur indebtedness or issue preferred equity if the proportionate consolidated interest coverage ratio tests set forth above are met. Other permitted indebtedness under the MSW II indenture is generally limited to:

the MSW II notes;

indebtedness in respect of member loans;

refinancing indebtedness;

S-55

intercompany debt among MSW II and its restricted subsidiaries;

indebtedness in respect of hedging obligations;

guarantees of permitted indebtedness;

if ARC becomes a subsidiary of MSW II, under specific circumstances indebtedness may be permitted to be incurred by ARC and its subsidiaries including:

indebtedness under the ARC credit facility not to exceed \$75 million;

purchase money indebtedness;

indebtedness incurred to finance capital expenditures required by law;

indebtedness that is non-recourse to American Ref-Fuel; and other indebtedness not to exceed \$30 million.

Ref-Fuel Holdings and its subsidiaries are not currently deemed to be restricted subsidiaries under the MSW II indenture, including for purposes of the restrictive covenants described above.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the rights offering will be used to pay a portion of the \$740 million in cash we have agreed to pay for all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Ref-Fuel. See *Danielson s Business Description of Significant Ref-Fuel Acquisition Agreements Stock Purchase Agreement* for a discussion of the specific terms of the acquisition. We have not engaged an underwriter so no underwriting fees or commission will be payable in connection with this rights offering.

Assuming full participation, we expect to receive approximately \$400 million from this rights offering.

As part of our obligations as the sponsor of a second plan of reorganization for Covanta, we agreed to offer rights to purchase 3.0 million shares of our common stock, at a price of \$1.53 per share, in the 9.25% Offering. We have executed a letter agreement with Laminar pursuant to which we agreed that if the 9.25% Offering has not closed prior to the record date for this rights offering, that we will revise the terms of the 9.25% Offering, so that the participants in the 9.25% Offering are offered up to 2.7 million additional shares of our common stock at the same \$6.00 per share purchase price as in this rights offering. Since the 9.25% Offering was not commenced prior to this rights offering, we will amend and restructure the 9.25% Offering in accordance with our agreement. The 9.25% Offering will not be made until after (1) the closing or termination of this rights offering and (2) a registration statement registering the 9.25% Offering has been declared effective by the SEC. The proceeds of the 9.25% Offering are not required in order to consummate the Ref-Fuel acquisition.

Assuming full participation by the public in this rights offering, we would expect to have a net cash inflow as shown below as of May 27, 2005:

	(In millions)		
Expected proceeds from this rights offering	\$	400.0	
Estimated offering expenses of this rights offering		(4.0)	
Net cash to Danielson	\$	396.0	

Assuming full participation in the rights offering, information as to share issuance and resulting outstanding shares follows:

This rights offering	66.7	million shares

Common stock outstanding prior to this rights offering	74.1	million shares
Common stock outstanding following issuances in this rights offering	140.8	million shares
S-56		

Table of Contents

Although our common stock is currently trading at a significant premium to the \$6.00 per share exercise price applicable to this rights offering, there can be no assurances as to the extent of the public participation in this rights offering. If, for example, only 50% of this rights offering was subscribed for by the public (*i.e.*, approximately 33.3 million shares) the net cash result would be as follows at May 27, 2005:

	(In millions)	
Expected proceeds from this rights offering	\$	200.0
Estimated offering expenses of this rights offering		(4.0)
Net cash to Danielson	\$	196.0

In that case, Danielson would not have sufficient cash to make its cash payment to the Ref-Fuel stockholders and a material condition to the Ref-Fuel acquisition purchase agreement would not be satisfied and the offering would be terminated and not consummated.

Assuming full participation by the public in this rights offering and full participation in the 9.25% Offering, we would expect to have a net cash inflow as shown below as of May 27, 2005:

	(In m	nillions)
Expected proceeds from this rights offering	\$	400.0
Estimated offering expenses of this rights offering		(4.0)
Estimated proceeds from 9.25% Offerings		20.8
Estimated offering expenses of 9.25% Offering		(0.5)
Net cash available to Danielson		416.3

Assuming full participation in the rights offering and the 9.25% Offering, information as to share issuance and resulting outstanding shares follows:

This rights offering	66.7 million shares
9.25% Offering	5.7 million shares
Common stock outstanding prior to both rights offerings	74.1 million shares
Common stock outstanding following issuances	146.5 million shares

Table of Contents

We will use net proceeds from this rights offering and borrowings under the new credit facilities to finance the Ref-Fuel acquisition and to refinance existing Covanta recourse debt. The following table summarizes the estimated sources and uses of funds for the transactions at closing:

A mount

	Α	mount		
	(In millions)			
Sources of Funds:				
Cash on hand		21.3		
Rights Offering ⁽¹⁾	\$	400.0		
New senior secured credit facilities				
Revolving credit facility ⁽²⁾				
Synthetic letter of credit facility ⁽²⁾				
First lien term loan		250.0		
Second lien term loan		425.0		
Total Sources	\$	1,096.3		
Uses of Funds:				
Acquisition purchase price ⁽³⁾	\$	740.0		
Repayment of Covanta senior secured debt ⁽⁴⁾		208.7		
Repayment of Covanta subordinated unsecured debt ⁽⁵⁾		28.0		
Repayment of Covanta international term loan facility ⁽⁶⁾		77.1		
Estimated fees and expenses ⁽⁷⁾		42.5		
Total Uses	\$	1,096.3		

- (1) The Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements presented below and presented in our current report on Form 8-K/A filed on May 12, 2005 reflected gross proceeds of \$398.3 million based on an assumed offering of 66,370,000 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding at that date. The gross proceeds illustrated above of \$400.0 million reflect the actual offering of 66,673,004 shares of our common stock at \$6.00 per share.
- (2) The senior secured credit facilities will provide for a total of \$440 million of credit facilities. After giving effect to the transactions, we expect to have \$340 million of letters of credit capacity and \$100 million of availability for borrowing under the revolving portion of the senior credit facilities. See *Capitalization* and *Danielson s Business Description of Acquisition Debt*.
- (3) Based on a purchase price of \$740 million. See *Danielson s Business Acquisition of Ref-Fuel* and *Description of Acquisition Debt* for additional information related to the acquisition.
- (4) Consists of \$208.7 million of 8.25% senior secured notes due 2011, the principal amount of which accretes to \$230 million at maturity. Funds necessary to repay such debt at closing will include all additional accretion through the date of closing.
- (5) Consists of approximately \$28 million of 7.5% subordinated unsecured notes due 2012.

- (6) Consists of \$77.1 million as of March 31, 2005, of a CPIH term loan that bears interest at 10.5% per annum and matures in December 2006. Funds necessary to repay such debt at closing may be less than \$77.1 million if additional principal payments are made prior to closing.
- (7) Unpaid fees and expenses as of the closing.

S-58

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of March 31, 2005, on an actual basis and as adjusted to give effect to the rights offering. You should read this summary in conjunction with the following:

Use of Proceeds located elsewhere in this prospectus supplement;

Selected Consolidated Financial Data Danielson located elsewhere in this prospectus supplement;

Selected Consolidated Financial Data Ref-Fuel located elsewhere in this prospectus supplement;

Our consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement;

Ref-Fuel s consolidated financial statements and related notes for the three years ended December 31, 2004 were filed as Exhibit 99.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated April 8, 2005 and incorporated into this prospectus supplement by reference thereto; and

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements located elsewhere in this prospectus supplement.

As of March 31, 2005

	Da	Danielson		Pro orma		
		(In millions)				
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted funds held in trust						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	58.0	\$	94.3		
Restricted funds held in trust		245.4		384.6		
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted funds held in trust	\$	303.4	\$	478.9		
Debt						
Non-recourse project debt:						
Ref-Fuel non-recourse project	\$		\$	471.2		
Covanta non-recourse project debt		879.0		879.0		
Project and intermediate debt:						
Other recourse project debt				251.2		
ARC 6.26% senior notes due 2015				240.0		
MSW I 8.5% senior secured notes due 2010				200.0		
MSW II 7.375% senior secured notes due 2010 ⁽¹⁾				225.0		
Covanta 8.25% senior secured debt ⁽²⁾		208.7				
Covanta 7.5% subordinated unsecured debt		28.0				

Table of Contents 63

S-59

As of March 31, 2005

	Da	anielson	Pr	o Forma	
		(In mil	llions)		
Senior secured credit facilities:					
First lien revolving credit facility ⁽³⁾					
First lien letter of credit facility ⁽³⁾					
First lien term loan				250.0	
Second lien term loan				425.0	
International term loan facility ⁽⁴⁾		77.1			
Unamortized premium on debt		35.1		98.3	
Total debt	\$	1,227.9	\$	3,039.7	
Stockholders equity:					
Preferred Stock (\$0.10 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares; none					
issued and outstanding)	\$		\$		
Common Stock (\$0.10 par value; authorized 150,000,000 shares;					
issued and outstanding 74,081,116 actual and 140,754,120, as adjusted					
shares) ⁽⁵⁾		7.4		14.0	
Additional Paid-in Capital		197.0		586.4	
Unearned Compensation		(2.7)		(2.7)	
Accumulated other comprehensive income		(0.5)		(0.5)	
Accumulated Deficit		(54.0)		(54.0)	
Treasury Stock (Cost of 10,796 shares)		(0.1)		(0.1)	
Total stockholders equit(9)	\$	147.1	\$	543.1	
Total capitalization	\$	1,375.0	\$	3,582.8	

- (1) Although the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements presented below and presented in our current report on Form 8-K/A filed on May 12, 2005 assumed that all of the outstanding MSW II notes were redeemed at 101% of par value and replaced with new MSW II notes, we did not incorporate such assumption into this capitalization table since the principal amount of outstanding debt would not be materially different.
- (2) The principal amount of such debt accretes to \$230 million at maturity in March 2011. The outstanding principal amount of such debt to be repaid at closing will include all additional accreted amounts through closing.
- (3) The senior secured credit facilities will provide for a total of \$440 million of credit facilities. After giving effect to the transactions, we expect to have \$340 million of letters of credit capacity and \$100 million of availability for borrowing under the revolving portion of the senior credit facilities. See *Capitalization* and *Danielson s Business Description of Acquisition Debt*.

- (4) As of March 31, 2005, Covanta Energy s international debt consisted of \$77.1 million of borrowing under an international term loan credit facility.
- (5) As of May 27, 2005.
- (6) Assumes receipt of \$396.0 million of net proceeds from this rights offering.

S-60

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, and as of and for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 are based on the historical financial statements of Danielson, Covanta, Ref-Fuel and Ref-Fuel Holdings LLC, and give effect to the acquisition of Covanta and the proposed acquisition of Ref-Fuel and related financings. The unaudited pro forma condensed statements of combined operations are presented as if the transactions discussed below occurred on January 1, 2004 and are adjusted for events that are (1) directly attributable to the transactions, (2) expected to have continuing impact and (3) factually supportable. The unaudited pro forma condensed balance sheet is presented as if the transactions discussed below occurred on March 31, 2005 and is adjusted for events that are (1) directly attributable to the transactions and (2) factually supportable.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements reflect the following assumptions:

Covanta Transactions

We purchased Covanta on January 1, 2004, pursuant to an investment and purchase agreement (the Investment and Purchase Agreement) for an assumed aggregate purchase price of \$47.5 million which includes the cash purchase price of \$29.8 million, approximately \$6.4 million for professional fees and other costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, and an estimated fair value of \$11.3 million for our commitment to sell up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock at \$1.53 per share to certain creditors of Covanta.

All shares associated with the acquisition of Covanta are considered issued and outstanding as of January 1, 2004, including 5.1 million of contingently returnable shares to the bridge lenders, 8.75 million shares that resulted from the conversion of a part of the convertible bridge loan and 27.4 million shares issued in connection with the pro rata rights offering to all of our stockholders.

Covanta emerged from bankruptcy on January 1, 2004 simultaneous with our purchase of Covanta. Accordingly, a purchase price allocation of fair values to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed has been performed at the assumed date of acquisition in conformity with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141

Business Combinations and SFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes. In addition to purchase price allocation adjustments, Covanta s assumed emergence from Chapter 11 proceedings on January 1, 2004 resulted in a new reporting entity and adoption of fresh-start accounting as of that date, in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position (SOP) 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code.

The new debt structure of Covanta that was in place on March 10, 2004 upon Covanta s emergence from bankruptcy was assumed to be refinanced in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel as of January 1, 2004 as more fully described below.

Ref-Fuel Transactions

The pro forma financial information has been prepared assuming the probable acquisition of Ref-Fuel by us for an assumed aggregate purchase price of \$2,211 million which includes the cash purchase price of \$740 million, assumed debt of \$1,451 million at its estimated fair value, and estimated direct transaction costs and restructuring charges of \$20 million related to the acquisition.

At January 1, 2004, proceeds of \$398 million from the issuance and stockholder exercise of rights to purchase our common stock in this rights offering are used to finance the transaction. In this rights offering, our existing stockholders will be issued rights to purchase our stock on a pro rata basis, with each holder entitled to purchase approximately 0.9 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00 per full share for each share of our common stock then held. Assuming a full participation in this rights offering, an additional 66,377,000 shares were assumed issued and outstanding as of January 1, 2004 (based on the factor of 0.9 applied to 73,752,000 shares outstanding near the time of this filing).

S-61

Table of Contents

The consummation of a debt financing package to finance the transaction, refinance the existing recourse debt of Covanta, and provide additional liquidity for Covanta, referred to in this prospectus supplement as the debt financing package, is assumed to have occurred as of January 1, 2004. The financing consists of two tranches, each of which will be secured by pledges of the stock of Covanta s subsidiaries that has not otherwise been pledged, guarantees from certain of Covanta s subsidiaries and all other available assets of Covanta s subsidiaries. The first tranche, a first priority senior secured bank facility, is expected to be comprised of a funded \$250 million term loan facility, a \$100 million revolving credit facility and a \$340 million letter of credit facility. The revolving credit facility and the letter of credit facility will be available for Covanta s needs in connection with its domestic and international businesses, including the existing businesses of Ref-Fuel. The second tranche is expected to be a second priority senior secured funded \$425 million term loan facility, \$212.5 million of which may be replaced by fixed rate notes within 120 days after the closing of the financing without premium or penalty.

The April 30, 2004 Equalization Transactions, as defined in *Adjustments for the Ref-Fuel Transaction*, and the ownership changes that occurred on August 31, 2004 between and among Ref-Fuel and its owners are assumed to have taken place on January 1, 2004.

The current project and other debt of Ref-Fuel subsidiaries will not be refinanced in connection with the acquisition, except for the assumed repurchase of the MSW II notes with an outstanding principal amount of \$225 million at a price equal to 101% plus accrued and unpaid interest. Our existing commitments from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston provide sufficient financing for any such repurchases. In addition, existing revolving credit and letter of credit facilities of American Ref-Fuel Company LLC (the parent of each Ref-Fuel project company) will be canceled and replaced with new facilities at the Covanta level. Danielson will incur additional fees on the notes repurchased, plus additional transaction costs relating to such repurchases. The amount of such additional fees and transaction costs will depend on whether and to what extent any such repurchases are required.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with: accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements;

Covanta s separate historical financial statements (i) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 included in Covanta s annual report on Form 10-K, as amended, and (ii) as of and for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 included in Covanta s quarterly report on Form 10-Q;

our separate historical financial statements (i) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 included in our annual report on Form 10-K, as amended, and (ii) as of and for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 included in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q; and

Ref-Fuel s separate historical financial statements (i) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 included in our Form 8-K filed on April 7, 2005, and (ii) as of and for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 included in our current report on Form 8-K/ A filed on May 12, 2005.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is provided for informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations or financial position of the combined companies that would have occurred had the transactions been consummated on January 1, 2004, nor is it indicative of future operating results or financial position. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not give consideration to expense savings or asset dispositions and are based upon currently available information and upon certain assumptions that management believes are reasonable under the circumstances. The adjustments made to the financial statements are based upon the preliminary work of our management and our consultants. Since the Ref-Fuel transactions have not been consummated, the allocation of purchase price to Ref-Fuel is

preliminary and subject to change as additional information and analysis is obtained and as more detailed valuation studies are completed. Based upon this preliminary purchase price

S-62

Table of Contents

allocation, the excess of purchase price over the net assets acquired, or goodwill, is approximately \$353.7 million. The actual amounts that will be recorded based upon our final assessment of fair values may differ substantially from the information presented in these pro forma condensed financial statements, particularly with respect to the purchase price allocation between tangible and intangible assets and the amount of goodwill recorded.

Our management and our external valuation consultants used a blend of the income and cost valuation approaches to determine the fair values for Ref-Fuel s property, plant and equipment. Relatively greater weight was placed on the income approach, consistent with the methodologies previously used by us to value the assets of Covanta upon its emergence from bankruptcy. The income approach determines the present value of estimated income over the remaining life of the specific asset or business using a discount rate appropriate for the related risk.

Our management and our external valuation consultants based estimates of future energy prices on recent market information and trends. In some cases, these prices are higher then those previously used by Ref-Fuel and its valuation consultants in determining fair values pursuant to a prior valuation of Ref-Fuel as of December 12, 2003. Use of higher estimates of future energy prices has the impact of allocating higher values to Ref-Fuel s property, plant and equipment and reduces the values allocated to the contractual intangible assets. Higher future energy prices result in lower values for contracts with fixed pricing, resulting in lower fair values ascribed to contract-related intangible assets. Conversely, the value of future benefits of ownership of the business would be higher, resulting in higher fair values ascribed to property, plant and equipment.

S-63

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet As of March 31, 2005

]	Danielson Holding		American Ref-Fuel	Pı	ro Forma	P	Pro Forma
		Corp.		Holdings Corp.	Ad	justments	ts Combin	
				(Dollars in	thous	ands)		
ENERGY SERVICES ASSETS								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	58,012	\$	57,610	\$	(32,000)1	\$	83,622
Marketable securities available for sale		4,100						4,100
Restricted funds held in trust		121,525		46,734				168,259
Restricted funds for emergence costs		24,476						24,476
Receivables, net		112,146		68,241				180,387
Unbilled service receivables		56,650						56,650
Deferred income taxes		14,747		9,806				24,553
Other current assets		52,514		16,140		(1,500)1		67,154
		444 170		100 521		(22.500)		600.201
Current assets		444,170		198,531		(33,500)		609,201
Property, plant and equipment, net Service and energy contracts and other		814,110		1,185,048		599,191 q		2,598,349
e. .		173,108		526,445		(142.240)~		557,213
intangible assets, net Goodwill		173,108				(142,340)q 229,739 m		
Restricted funds held in trust		123,918		123,984 92,389		229,739 III		353,723 216,307
Investments in and advances to investees		123,916		92,369				210,307
and joint ventures		67,784						67,784
Unbilled service receivables		95,799						95,799
Other assets		61,305		11,755		33,000 n		112,810
Other assets		01,303		11,733		6,750 t		112,610
						0,730 t		
Total Energy Services assets		1,780,194		2,138,152		692,840		4,611,186
PARENT COMPANY AND								
INSURANCE ASSETS								
Cash and cash equivalents		20,384						20,384
Investments in fixed maturity debt								
securities and equity securities		57,345						57,345
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and								
unpaid losses, net of allocations		19,540						19,540
Deferred income taxes		18,083						18,083
Other assets		12,535						12,535
Total Parent Company and Insurance assets		127,887						127,887
Total assets	\$	1,908,081	\$	2,138,152	\$	692,840	\$	4,739,073
	-	, ,	-	,,		, , , , , ,	-	, ,

ENERGY SERVICES LIABILITIES

Edgar Filing: DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO - Form 10-Q

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 124,322	\$ 74,602	\$ 10,500 o	\$ 209,424
Current portion of recourse debt	113	20,000		20,113
Current portion of project debt	114,719	55,713	4,465 q	174,897
Accrued emergence costs	24,476			24,476
Other current liabilities	14,167			14,167
Current liabilities	277,797	150,315	14,965	443,077
Long-term recourse debt	313,891	903,325	13,269 q	1,591,685
			361,200 n	
Long-term project debt	799,259	459,768	(5,982)q	1,253,045
Deferred taxes	116,406	156,584	169,455 r	442,445
Other liabilities	98,281	219,963	(6,871)q	311,373
Total Energy Services liabilities	1,605,634	1,889,955	546,036	4,041,625
PARENT COMPANY AND				
INSURANCE LIABILITIES				
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment				
expenses	61,190			61,190
Other liabilities	10,355			10,355
Total Parent Company and Insurance				
liabilities	71,545			71,545
Minority interests	83,825	701		84,526
Total stockholders equity	147,077	247,496	146,804 p	541,377
Total liabilities and stockholders				
equity	\$ 1,908,081	\$ 2,138,152	\$ 692,840	\$ 4,739,073

S-64

Unaudited pro forma condensed statement of combined operations for the three months ended March 31, 2005

American

Danielson

	Holding Corp.	Ref-Fuel Holdings Corp.	Pro Forma Adjustments	Pro Forma Combined
		(In thousands, exce	ept per share data)	
REVENUES				
Energy:				
Service revenues	\$ 111,458	\$ 64,639	\$ (1,758)h	\$ 174,339
Energy and steam sales	58,788	32,388	14,764 h	105,940
Other	690	3,204		3,894
	150.026	100.221	12.006	204.172
T 1 4	170,936	100,231	13,006	284,173
Insurance and other:	2.471			2.471
Net earned premiums	3,471			3,471
Net investment income	487			487
Net other income	43			43
	4,001			4,001
COSTS AND EXPENSES	4,001			4,001
Energy:				
Plant operating expenses	119,496	52,794		172,290
Depreciation and amortization	16,320	16,736	13,006 h	49,554
Depreciation and amortization	10,520	10,750	3,492 q	15,551
Net interest on project debt	9,633		7,460 i	17,408
I J	,		315 t	,
Selling, general and administrative	12,402	12,420		24,822
Other	(617)	1,386		769
	157,234	83,336	24,273	264,843
Insurance and other:				
Net losses and loss adjustment	2,307			2,307
Other	1,437			1,437
	3,744			3,744
	12.070	4600	(44.067)	40.505
Operating earnings	13,959	16,895	(11,267)	19,587
Interest income	779	1,233	7.460:	2,012
Interest expense	(10,321)	(21,472)	7,460 i	(30,559)
			10,560 j	
			(16,447)k	
Other income not	3,718	360	(339)q	4,078
Other income, net	3,/10	300		4,070
Earnings before minority interests,				
income taxes and equity earnings	8,135	(2,984)	(10,033)	(4,882)
meome maes and equity curmings	0,133	(2,70-1)	(10,033)	(1,002)

Edgar Filing: DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO - Form 10-Q

Minority interests		(1,550)		(37)				(1,587)		
Tax benefit (expense)		(2,742)		1,259		4,070 s		2,587		
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated										
subsidiaries		6,460						6,460		
Net Earnings	\$	10,303	\$	(1,762)	\$	(5,963)	\$	2,578		
Earnings per common share										
Basic	\$	0.14					\$	0.02		
Diluted	\$	0.13					\$	0.02		
Weighted average common shares										
outstanding										
Basic		72,964				66,377		139,341		
Diluted		77,072				69,077		146,149		
S-65										

Jan 1 to

Jan 1 to

Unaudited pro forma condensed statement of combined operations for the year ended December 31, 2004

Jan 1 to

Jan 1 to

Jan 1 to

	Dec 31, 2004	Mar 10, 2004	Mar 10, 2004	Dec 31, 2004	Apr 30, 2004		
	Danielson	D	econsolidatio	onAmerican Ownership Changes			
	Holding	Covanta	of Covanta	Ref-Fuel	of Ref-Fuel	Pro Forma	Pro Forma
	Corp.	Energy Corp.	Entities(a)	Holdings Corp.	Entities(g)	Adjustments	Combined
			(In thous	ands, except 1	oer share data))	
REVENUES			Ì	,	·		
Energy:							
Service revenues	\$ 374,622	\$ 89,867	\$ (5,282)	\$ 194,950	\$ 89,496	\$ (7,171)h	\$ 736,482
Energy and							
steam sales	181,074	53,307	(535)	93,188	41,566	59,770 h	428,370
Other	1,506	58		10,506	6,475		18,545
	557,202	143,232	(5,817)	298,644	137,537	52,599	1,183,397
Insurance and	331,202	113,232	(3,017)	270,011	137,337	32,377	1,105,577
other:							
Net earned							
premiums	17,998						17,998
Net investment							
income	2,405						2,405
Net other							
income	465						465
	20,868						20,868
COSTS AND							
EXPENSES							
Energy:							
Plant operating							
expenses	354,542	100,774	(3,632)	116,089	73,322		641,095
Depreciation							
and amortization	52,632	13,426	(786)	45,154	22,842	(12,640)b	199,168
						8,598 c	
						3,375 d	
						52,599 h	
NI-4 lines						13,968 q	
Net interest on	20.506	10 407	(1.045)			(0.410)	75 705
project debt	32,586	13,407	(1,045)			(3,419)e	75,785
						1,263 t	
						32,993 i	

		_	_						
Selling, general									
and administrative		29.076	7.507	(222)	20.216	15 021			00.500
Other		38,076 (832)	7,597 (2,234)	(322) 116	30,216 1,765	15,031 342			90,598 (843)
Other		(632)	(2,234)	110	1,703	342			(043)
		477,004	132,970	(5,669)	193,224	111,537	96,737	1	,005,803
Insurance and									
other:									
Net losses and									
loss adjustment		12,861							12,861
Other		10,850							10,850
		23,711							23,711
Operating									
earnings		77,355	10,262	(148)	105,420	26,000	(44,138)		174,751
Interest income		1,858	935	(140)	2,967	1,022	(44,130)		6,782
Interest expense		(43,739)	(6,142)	6	(69,219)	(21,626)	32,993 i		(125,666)
1		, ,	() /			, , ,	53,213 j		, ,
							(65,788)k		
							(5,364)q		
Other income, net					303	122			425
Reorganization			(=0 =0=)				.		
items			(58,282)				58,282 f		
Fresh start adjustments			(399,063)				399,063 f		
Gain on			(399,003)				399,003 1		
extinguishment of									
debt			510,680				(510,680)f		
Earnings before			,				(==,==)=		
equity earnings,									
minority									
interests, income									
taxes and									
discontinued		25 47 4	50.200	(1.40)	20. 471	5.510	(02.410)		56.000
operations		35,474	58,390	(142)	39,471	5,518	(82,419)		56,292
Minority interests Tax benefit		(6,869)	(2,511)		(12,283)	11,372			(10,291)
(expense)		(11,535)	(30,240)		(17,818)		33,699 s		(25,894)
Equity in income		(11,555)	(30,240)		(17,010)		33,077 8		(23,074)
(loss) of									
unconsolidated									
subsidiaries		17,024	3,924	142	6,148	(6,148)			21,090
Net earnings	\$	34,094	\$ 29,563	\$	\$ 15,518	\$ 10,742	\$ (48,720)	\$	41,197
Faminas va-									
Earnings per common share									
Basic	\$	0.54						\$	0.30
Diluted	\$	0.52						\$	0.30
	r								32

Edgar Filing: DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO - Form 10-Q

Weighted				
average comm	on			
shares				
outstanding				
Basic	63,469		75,477	138,946
Diluted	65,742		78,460	144,202
		S-66		

Note 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Danielson

As required by the investment and purchase agreement pursuant to which we agreed to acquire Covanta, Covanta filed a proposed plan of reorganization, proposed plan of liquidation for specified non-core businesses, and the related draft disclosure statement, each reflecting the transactions contemplated under the Investment and Purchase Agreement, with the Bankruptcy Court of the Southern District of New York (the Bankruptcy Court). On March 5, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the proposed plans (the Covanta Reorganization Plan). Under the terms of the investment and purchase agreement, we acquired 100% of Covanta s equity on March 10, 2004. The results of operations from Covanta are included in our consolidated results of operations from March 10, 2004.

The aggregate purchase price was \$47.5 million which included the cash purchase price of \$29.8 million, approximately \$6.4 million for professional fees and other estimated costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, and an estimated fair value of \$11.3 million for our commitment to sell up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock at \$1.53 per share to certain creditors of Covanta.

The pro forma financial information has been prepared based upon the allocation of values to Covanta s assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the pro forma date of acquisition, in conformity with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141 Business Combinations and SFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes. Final fair value determinations of the tangible and intangible assets were made by management based on anticipated discounted cash flows using currently available information. Management s estimate of the fair value of long-term debt was based on the new principal amounts of recourse debt that was part of the reorganized capital structure of Covanta upon emergence. Management s estimate of the fair value of project debt was based on market information available to Covanta. Covanta engaged valuation consultants to review its valuation methodology which concluded in the first quarter of 2005.

The following depicts the summary balance sheet of Covanta after the final purchase price allocation as of March 10, 2004 (dollars in thousands):

Current assets	\$ 522,659
Property, plant and equipment	814,369
Intangible assets	191,943
Other assets	327,065
Total assets acquired	\$ 1,856,036
Current liabilities	\$ 364,480
Long-term debt	328,053
Project debt	850,591
Deferred income taxes	88,405
Other liabilities	176,982
Total liabilities acquired	\$ 1,808,511
Net assets acquired	\$ 47,525

The acquired intangible assets of \$191.9 million primarily related to service on publicly-owned waste-to-energy projects and energy contracts, with an approximate 17-year weighted average useful life. However, many such contracts have remaining lives that are significantly shorter.

Ref-Fuel

The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of values to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the pro forma date of acquisition of March 31, 2005. Since the Ref-Fuel transactions

S-67

Table of Contents

have not been consummated, the allocation of purchase price to Ref-Fuel is preliminary and subject to change as additional information and analysis is obtained. We are in the process of performing the valuation studies necessary to finalize the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Ref-Fuel and the related allocation of purchase price. We expect that adjustments to preliminary fair values may include those relating to:

property, plant and equipment, intangibles, goodwill and debt, all of which may change based on consideration of additional analysis by Danielson and its valuation consultants;

accrued expenses for transaction costs and restructuring efforts which may change based on identification of final fees and costs; and

tax liabilities and deferred taxes, which may be adjusted based upon additional information to be received from taxing authorities and which result from changes in the allocated book basis of items for which deferred taxes are provided.

The following depicts the summary balance sheet of Ref-Fuel after the preliminary purchase price allocation as of March 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

Purchase price	
Cash	\$ 740,000
Debt assumed	1,450,558
Estimated direct transaction costs	9,250
Estimated restructuring charges	10,500
Total	\$ 2,210,308
Preliminary purchase price allocation	
Tangible assets less liabilities assumed	\$ 1,971,920
Intangible assets, net	211,405
Goodwill	353,723
Deferred tax liability	(326,039)
Minority interest	(701)
Total preliminary purchase price allocation	\$ 2,210,308

Note 2: PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustments for the Covanta Transactions

- a. The Deconsolidation of Covanta Entities column of the unaudited pro forma condensed statements of combined operations pertains to six of Covanta s subsidiaries which had not reorganized or filed a liquidation plan under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code as of March 10, 2004. For the 2004 pro forma period presented, these entities were not consolidated because Covanta did not control these debtors or the ultimate outcome of their respective Chapter 11 cases. The subsidiaries related to the Tampa Bay desalination and Lake County waste-to-energy projects emerged from Chapter 11 on August 6, 2004 and December 14, 2004, respectively, when they were reconsolidated.
- b. To reverse Covanta s historical depreciation and amortization expense, for the period January 1, 2004 to March 10, 2004.
- c. To include pro forma depreciation expense based on fair values assigned to Covanta s property, plant and equipment for the period January 1, 2004 to March 10, 2004. The weighted average remaining useful life of property, plant and equipment acquired in the Covanta acquisition was approximately 19 years, consisting principally of energy

facilities and buildings with a weighted average remaining useful life of approximately 21 years, and machinery and equipment with a weighted average remaining useful life of approximately 13 years.

S-68

Table of Contents

- d. To include pro forma amortization expense based on fair values assigned to Covanta s acquired intangible assets for the period January 1, 2004 to March 10, 2004, primarily service agreements on publicly owned waste-to-energy projects.
- e. To reverse Covanta s historical amortization of bond issuance costs (\$0.8 million) on outstanding project debt and include pro forma amortization of the premium on project debt (\$2.6 million) based on fair values assigned to Covanta s project debt, for the period January 1, 2004 to March 10, 2004.
- f. To remove historical reorganization items, fresh-start adjustments and the gain on extinguishment of debt resulting from Covanta s bankruptcy proceedings. Since the pro forma condensed statement of combined operations has been prepared on the basis that Covanta s emergence from bankruptcy and the business combination with Danielson both occurred on January 1, 2004, these items have been removed, as these transactions to effect Covanta s reorganization would have been completed and these items would have been recorded prior to January 1, 2004.

Adjustments for the Ref-Fuel Transactions

g. On April 30, 2004, Ref-Fuel entered into a series of transactions (Equalization Transactions) that changed its ownership structure. As a result of the Equalization Transactions, Ref-Fuel gained control of MSW I, together with MSW II (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ref-Fuel) on a combined basis, which owned substantially all interests in Ref-Fuel Holdings. Ref-Fuel Holdings is a holding company with a 100% membership interest in ARC, which through subsidiaries, owns and operates six waste-to-energy facilities in the United States. As a result of the Equalization Transactions, Ref-Fuel has effective control of Ref-Fuel Holdings, and therefore began consolidating its results of operations from May 1, 2004.

The Ownership Changes of Ref-Fuel Entities column of the unaudited pro forma condensed statement of combined operations for the year-ended December 31, 2004, pertains to entities that were not consolidated by Ref-Fuel until ownership interests changed effective April 30, 2004 (the Equalization Transactions described above). Ref-Fuel reported its 50% share of earnings from its investment in Ref-Fuel Holdings under the equity method from January 1, 2004 to April 30, 2004 (four-month period) and consolidated such operations from May 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004 (eight-month period). In addition, as a result of the Equalization Transactions, Ref-Fuel obtained a 0.01% interest and was named managing member of MSW and began consolidating its operations as of April 30, 2004. On August 31, 2004, in another transaction, Ref-Fuel acquired the 99.99% non-managing interests in MSW I. As a result, Ref-Fuel owned 100% of the interests in MSW I after that date.

This column reverses the impact of accounting under the equity method for the investment in Ref-Fuel Holdings for the four-month period ended April 30, 2004, and reflects the results of operations as if they had been consolidated as of January 1, 2004. In addition, this column reflects the results of operations for MSW I as if Ref-Fuel had owned a 100% interest in MSW I as of January 1, 2004, which includes reversing the minority interest relating to MSW I for the period of May 1, 2004 through August 31, 2004.

h. In conjunction with a prior ownership change, Ref-Fuel s energy and waste disposal revenue contracts were recorded at fair value as of December 12, 2003. Fair value adjustments for below-market contracts (primarily waste disposal) were amortized as an increase to Service Revenues. Fair value adjustments for the above-market contracts (primarily energy) were amortized as a decrease to Energy Revenues. The pro forma adjustments reclassify such amortization and record the net impact as amortization expense, consistent with our presentation.

- i. To conform to our accounting policy of classifying interest expense on nonrecourse project debt as an operating expense.
- j. To reverse historical interest expense (including letter of credit fees) associated with recourse debt and unfunded credit facilities refinanced with the debt financing package and net proceeds from this rights offering and to reverse interest expense related to the \$40 million, 9% interest senior notes contributed by Ref-Fuel s members as a result of the August 31, 2004 transactions (dollars in thousands).

S-69

	A	Annual 2004	•	uarter 2005
Covanta recourse debt (January 1 to March 10, 2004)	\$	6,142	\$	
Danielson recourse debt (January 1 to December 31, 2004)		9,033		
Covanta recourse debt and credit facilities (March 11 to December 31, 2004)		34,706		10,320
Ref-Fuel credit facilities		932		240
Ref-Fuel senior notes		2,400		
Total	\$	53,213	\$	10,560

k. To include pro forma interest expense based on the debt financing package (dollars in thousands):

	Principal		Principal Rate		Annual 2004		Q	Quarter 2005
Borrowings:								
First Lien Facility	\$	250,000	6.25%	\$	15,625	\$	3,906	
Second Lien Facility		425,000	8.25%		35,063		8,766	
Total Borrowings	\$	675,000		\$	50,688	\$	12,672	
Available for letters of credit and revolving credit:								
Letter of credit fees under First Lien Facility	\$	340,000	3.00%	\$	10,200	\$	2,550	
Revolving credit facility*		100,000	0.50%		500		125	
·								
Total unfunded	\$	440,000		\$	10,700	\$	2,675	
Amortization of debt financing package financing								
costs					4,400		1,100	
Total				\$	65,788	\$	16,447	

S-70

^(*) Available for up to \$75 million of letters of credit as an alternative to borrowings. This facility remains unused. Interest rates under the debt financing package are based on the three month LIBOR plus an additional percentage based on commitments from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston, which percentages are tied to our credit ratings. The rates used to determine the pro forma adjustments above were selected with regard to our current credit ratings and the three month LIBOR rate of 3.25% as of May 9, 2005. Each 1/8 percentage point change in the rates would impact earnings before taxes by \$1.3 million for the annual period ended December 31, 2004, and \$0.3 million for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005.

Table of Contents

1. To record the difference between the following sources and uses of cash (dollars in thousands):

\$ 250,000
425,000
398,300
225,000
\$ 1,298,300
\$ 740,000
313,800
42,500
227,250
6,750
\$ 1,330,300
\$ 32,000
\$ \$ \$

In addition to the estimated transaction costs of \$42.5 million, approximately \$1.5 million was paid as of March 31, 2005, and other current assets have been adjusted accordingly for pro forma purposes.

- m. To record the difference between (i) historical goodwill of Ref-Fuel (\$124 million) and (ii) goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Ref-Fuel based on the preliminary purchase price allocation (\$353.7 million).
- n. To reverse \$313.8 million of post-emergence, Covanta recourse debt and include \$675 million under the debt financing package, of which \$212.5 million may be replaced by fixed rate notes within 120 days after the closing of the financing without premium or penalty. To record related financing costs of \$33 million amortized over 7.5 years based on the average terms of the new facilities.
- o. Management has begun to assess and formulate plans to eliminate certain costs of the combined organization. These assessments are still in process. Based on a preliminary analysis, costs of approximately \$10.5 million have been accrued for severance and benefit costs related to Ref-Fuel employees. The accrued costs have been considered as part of the purchase price. This pro forma adjustment is reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2005. This adjustment is not reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed statements of combined operations as the adjustment is non-recurring in nature. This estimate is preliminary and subject to change based on management s further assessments.
 - p. Adjustments to stockholders equity (dollars in thousands):

Proceeds from this rights offering, net of transaction costs of \$4,000	\$ 394,300
To eliminate historical Ref-Fuel stockholders equity	(247,496)
Total	\$ 146,804

q. To record the difference between the preliminary estimates of the fair values and the historical amounts of Ref-Fuel s assets and debt that will be assumed by us, and the related impacts on depreciation, amortization, and interest expense. Contract-related assets (classified as intangible assets) are attributable to revenue arrangements for which the contractual rates are greater than the market rates on the assumed date that we acquired Ref-Fuel. Contract-related liabilities (classified as Other Liabilities) are attributable to revenue arrangements for which contractual rates are less than the market rates on the assumed date we acquired Ref-Fuel. Since we are in the process

of performing the valuation studies necessary to finalize the

S-71

Table of Contents

fair values and related allocation of purchase price, the adjustments are preliminary and subject to change as additional information and analysis are obtained (dollars in thousands):

	Historical Preliminary Balance				Expense l (Decre	
	Balance	Preliminary Fair Value	Adjustment	Life (Yrs)	Annual	Quarter
Property, plant and equipment Intangible assets:	\$ 1,185,048	\$ 1,784,239	\$ 599,191	20	\$ 29,960	\$ 7,490
Service and energy contracts Non-amortizable	479,489	337,149	(142,340)	10	(14,234)	(3,559)
intangibles	46,956	49,956		N/A	N/A	N/A
Service and energy contracts and other intangibles	526,445		(142,340)		(14,234)	(3,559)
Other liabilities:						
Waste contracts and operating lease	155,122	172,700	17,578	10	(1,758)	(439)
Other	64,841	40,392	(24,449)	N/A	N/A	N/A
Other liabilities, net	219,963		(6,871)		(1,758)	(439)
Net impact on depreciation and amortization					\$ 13,968	\$ 3,492
Debt, current and non-current balances	1,483,806	1,450,558	11,752		\$ (10,847)	\$ (2,712)
Reverse historical premium amortization					16,211	3,051
Net impact on interest expense					\$ 5,364	\$ 339

Other adjustments

- r. To record estimated deferred income taxes at an assumed 41% combined federal and state tax rate associated with the pro forma adjustments for the fair value of debt (\$4.9 million asset), property, plant and equipment (\$245.7 million liability), intangible assets (\$61 million asset), other temporary differences (\$5.5 million liability) and estimated utilization of an additional \$45 million of our net operating loss tax carryforwards from the inclusion of Ref-Fuel in our consolidated income tax return (\$15.8 million asset using the federal tax rate of 35%).
- s. To record the estimated income tax effects associated with the pro forma adjustments to pre-tax income other than item (g) to arrive at a blended assumed effective tax rate of 46% and 53% for the combined company for the year ended December 31, 2004, and the quarter ended March 31, 2005, respectively.

t. To record the impact of an assumed refinancing of the MSW II notes with the new MSW II notes, as described in Note 5. The estimated refinancing costs are based on 3% of the face amount of the notes and approximate \$6.8 million.

	A	Annual	Q	uarter		
		(Dollars in thousands)				
Historical MSW II interest expense at 7.375%	\$	16,594	\$	4,148		
New MSW II Senior Notes interest at 8.125%		(18,282)		(4,570)		
Amortization of historical MSW II financing costs		1,389		348		
Amortization of refinancing fees		(964)		(241)		
Net (increase) in interest expense	\$	(1,263)	\$	(315)		

S-72

Note 3: EARNINGS PER SHARE

The pro forma basic income (loss) per common share data has been computed using average number of shares of our common stock, par value \$0.10 per share outstanding during the relevant period, adjusted on a pro forma basis for the following:

Basic and diluted earnings per share and the average shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock and shares of common stock outstanding for the pro forma year ended December 31, 2004 and quarter ended March 31, 2005 have been adjusted, as necessary, to reflect the following equity transactions, as if they occurred on January 1, 2004, the issuance of: (a) 5.1 million of bridge shares, (b) 27.4 million shares in connection with a pro rata rights offering to all our stockholders on May 18, 2004, (c) 8.75 million shares pursuant to the conversion of approximately \$13.4 million in principal amount of our convertible notes and (d) 66.4 million shares associated with this rights offering. In addition, diluted earnings per share and the average shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share of common stock and shares of common stock outstanding for the pro forma year ended December 31, 2004 and quarter ended March 31, 2005 have been adjusted, as necessary, to reflect the following additional equity transactions, as if they occurred on January 1, 2004; (i) our commitment to sell up to 3.0 million shares of its common stock at \$1.53 per share to certain creditors of Covanta and (ii) an additional 2.7 million shares to such creditors in such offering.

Note 4: PENSION COST

At March 10, 2004, the amount of acquired Covanta unfunded pension liability totaled \$18.5 million, net of previously recorded amounts. The \$18.5 million was recorded as a liability in the successor s opening balance sheet. Covanta s historical net periodic pension and postretirement benefit costs for the periods March 11, 2004 through December 31, 2004, January 1, 2004 through March 10, 2004, and for the year ended December 31, 2003, amounted to \$7.6 million, \$1.8 million and \$8.8 million, respectively for pension costs; and amounted to \$0.6 million, \$0.3 million and \$2.0 million, respectively for post-retirement benefit costs. Covanta s net periodic and postretirement benefit costs for three months ended March 31, 2005 amounted to \$2.0 million and \$0.2 million, respectively.

Note 5: POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL FINANCING

The current project and other debt of Ref-Fuel subsidiaries is not intended to be refinanced in connection with the acquisition. Under certain conditions, existing note holders of two subsidiaries of Ref-Fuel, MSW I and MSW II, may require that such notes be repurchased by those subsidiaries at a price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. The outstanding principal amount of the MSW I notes is \$200 million, while the outstanding principal amount of the MSW II notes is \$225 million. Whether any or all of these notes will be tendered for repurchase will depend upon market conditions prevailing immediately prior to the closing date for such repurchases, which may be between 30 to 120 days after the closing of our acquisition of Ref-Fuel.

We have assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, based in part on the current trading price of the notes, that all of the MSW II notes, and none of the MSW I notes, are required to be repurchased. If some or all of the note holders of MSW I notes were to require their notes to be repurchased, we would incur additional fees and transaction costs, as well as additional annual interest expense. If all of the MSW I notes were repurchased along with all of the MSW II notes, we estimate that based upon discussions with its financial advisors, the maximum amount of such additional fees and transaction costs on the MSW I refinancing would be approximately \$6.0 million, and estimates the maximum amount of such additional annual interest expense would be approximately \$1.0 million on an annual basis. This incremental \$1.0 million of interest expense on the MSW I notes assumes a refinanced interest rate of 9%.

S-73

Table of Contents

The interest rate on the MSW II refinancing is assumed to be 8.125%. If the MSW I notes and MSW II notes are both required to be refinanced in full, and if the refinanced interest rate on the MSW II notes was 9%, we would incur approximately \$2.0 million of additional interest expense.

We have existing commitments from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston to provide financing sufficient to repurchase all or a portion of such notes. We can provide no assurance as to whether any such repurchases will occur, the principal amount of any such repurchases, whether it could successfully finance such repurchases, or that the above estimates of maximum cost and expense will not be exceeded.

S-74

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA DANIELSON

The following table presents our selected consolidated financial data. The selected financial data for each of our fiscal years in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, December 27, 2002, and December 31, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.

Our selected financial data should be read in conjunction with *Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations* and our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes, each contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.

Vears Ended

				Yea	rs Ended			
	2004(1)	2	2003(2)		2002(3)		2001	2000
		(Iı	n thousand	s, exc	ept per share	amo	ounts)	
Statement of Operations								
Data								
Operating revenue	\$ 578,555	\$	41,123	\$	531,501	\$	92,104	\$ 84,331
Operating expense	501,200		54,029		528,168		106,365	85,073
Operating income (loss)	77,355		(12,906)		3,333		(14,261)	(742)
Other income (loss)					2,793			(1,906)
Interest expense	41,881		1,424		38,735			
Income (loss) before taxes,								
minority interest and equity								
income	35,474		(14,330)		(32,609)		(14,261)	1,164
Minority interest expense	6,869							
Income taxes	11,535		18		346		73	134
Equity in net income (loss)								
from consolidated investments	17,024		(54,877)					
Net income (loss)	\$ 34,094	\$	(69,225)	\$	(32,955)	\$	(14,334)	\$ 1,030
Income (loss) per share ⁽⁵⁾								
Basic	0.54		(1.46)		(0.82)		(0.48)	0.04
Diluted	0.52		(1.46)		(0.82)		(0.48)	0.04
Balance Sheet Data								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 96,148	\$	17,952	\$	25,183	\$	17,866	\$ 12,545
Restricted funds held in trust	239,918							
Investments	65,042		71,057		93,746		148,512	147,667
Properties net	819,400		254		654,575		131	56
Service and energy contracts	177,290							
Deferred tax asset	26,910							
Total assets	1,939,081		162,648		1,032,945		208,871	210,829
Deferred income taxes	109,465							
Unpaid losses and LAE	64,270		83,380		101,249		105,745	100,030
Recourse debt	312,896		40,000		597,246		,	,
Project debt ⁽⁶⁾	944,737		,		,			
Project debt premium	37,910							
Minority interest	83,350							
Shareholders equity	134,815		27,791		77,360		74,463	81,330

Edgar Filing: DAWSON GEOPHYSICAL CO - Form 10-Q

Book value per share of					
common stock ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 1.84	\$ 0.50	\$ 1.63	\$ 2.48	\$ 2.74
Shares of common stock					
outstanding (4),(5)	73,430	55,105	47,459	30,039	29,716

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2004, Covanta s results of operations are included in Danielson s consolidated results since March 10, 2004. As a result of the consummation of the Covanta acquisition on March 10, 2004, our future performance will predominantly reflect the performance of Covanta s operations which are significantly larger than our insurance operations. As a result, the nature of our business, the risks attendant to such business and the trends that it will face has been

S-75

Table of Contents

significantly altered by the acquisition of Covanta. Accordingly, our historic financial performance and results of operations will not be indicative of its future performance.

- (2) ACL, which was acquired on May 29, 2002, and certain of its subsidiaries, filed a petition on January 31, 2003 with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Indiana, New Albany Division to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. As a result of this filing we no longer maintained control of the activities of ACL and our equity interest in ACL was canceled when ACL s plan of reorganization was confirmed on December 30, 2004 and it emerged from bankruptcy on January 11, 2005. Accordingly, we no longer include ACL and its subsidiaries as consolidated subsidiaries in our financial statements. Our investments in these entities are presented using the equity method effective as of the beginning of the year ending December 31, 2003. Other (loss) income above consists of our equity in the net loss of ACL, GMS and Vessel Leasing in 2003.
- (3) In 2002, we purchased 100% of ACL, 5.4% of GMS and 50% of Vessel Leasing.
- (4) Does not give effect to currently exercisable options, and, in 2001 and 2000, warrants to purchase shares of common stock.
- (5) Basic and diluted earnings per share and the average shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share and book value per share of common stock and shares of common stock outstanding for all periods have been adjusted retroactively to reflect the bonus element contained in the rights offering issued on May 18, 2004.
- (6) Includes \$38 million of unamortized debt premium.

S-76

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA REF-FUEL

Historically, Ref-Fuel engaged in the business of acquiring and operating energy-related businesses in the United States, including a 50% equity interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings. Upon completion of the sale of all of Ref-Fuel s assets except for its indirect interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings, Ref-Fuel s sole source of operating cash flow will be its 99.8% indirect equity interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings. Ref-Fuel s historical reported results of operations for the periods prior to April 2004 accounted for the 50% interest in Ref-Fuel Holdings that Ref-Fuel owned at the time on an equity basis, while substantially all of Ref-Fuel s revenues, expenses, and cash flows during those periods related to discontinued operations. The following table presents selected financial data derived from Ref-Fuel s audited financial statements.

	For the Year December 31, 2004		For the Period from December 12 through December 31, 2003	For the Period from January 1 through December 12, 2003	For the Year Ended December 31, 2002	
			(In the	ousands)		
Statement of Operations Data	\$	200 644	\$	\$	\$	
Operating revenue Earnings from equity	Þ	298,644	\$	D	D	
investment in Ref-Fuel Holdings		6,148	3,969	50,204	52,898	
Operating expenses Depreciation and amortization		(116,089)				
expense General and administrative		(45,154)	(4)	(258)	(281)	
expenses Transactions costs related to		(30,216)	(358)	(4,634)	(7,548)	
MSW Merger		(1.765)		(16,600)		
Losses on asset retirements Interest income		(1,765) 2,967	133	519	616	
Interest expense Loss on early extinguishment		(69,219)	(2,677)	(10,651)	(12,202)	
of debt Minority interest in net				(1,655)		
income of subsidiaries		(12,283)			2.020	
Other, net		303		3,278	2,020	
Earnings before income taxes Provision for income taxes		33,336 (17,818)	1,063 (498)	20,203 (12,362)	35,503 (15,639)	
Earnings from continuing operations		15,518	565	7,841	19,864	
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income tax		5,589	429	2,888	2,612	

expense of \$5,373, \$382, \$3,310 and \$418, respectively Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income tax expense (benefit) of \$0, \$0, \$0 and					
(\$3,238), respectively					(10,427)
Earnings (losses) from					
discontinued operations	5,589		429	2,888	(7,815)
Net income	\$ 21,107	\$	994	\$ 10,729	\$ 12,049
Balance Sheet Data					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ \$88,945	\$	17,537		
Total assets	2,201,075		705,441		
Total debt	1,471,013		308,179		
Total equity	284,258		124,903		
Cash Flow Data					
Cash from operating activities	\$ 154,230	\$	(3,095)	\$ 44,781	\$ 75,675
Cash from investing activities	57,064		548	(5,909)	(40,625)
Cash from financing activities	(139,886)		14,215	(110,097)	18,586
Capital expenditures	(13,047)			(1,049)	(4,381)
		S-	77		

Table of Contents

THE RIGHTS OFFERING

Pursuant to the rights offering, we are issuing at no charge one warrant with respect to each share of our common stock outstanding as of the record date. The warrants cannot be traded separately from the underlying shares of common stock. Holders of warrants will be entitled to purchase 0.90 shares of our common stock for every warrant held at the exercise price of \$6.00 per share. If all of the warrants are exercised in the rights offering, the total purchase price of all of our common stock sold in the rights offering will be \$400,038,024.

The warrants are exercisable beginning on the record date and will expire if they are not exercised by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on June 21, 2005, unless extended by us from time to time in our sole discretion.

Warrants that are not exercised by the expiration date of the rights offering will expire and will have no value. Holders should note that immediately available funds must be received by the expiration date for a subscription to be valid. Although personal checks will be accepted, if they have not cleared by the expiration date the subscription will not be valid. See Exercise of Warrants. We reserve the right to limit the exercise of any warrants that would result in a risk of any stockholder becoming the owner of 5% or more of our common stock. See Risk Factors We have the right to limit the exercise of the warrants and Certificate of Incorporation Restrictions; Escrow Protection Mechanics. Holders who exercise their warrants will not be entitled to revoke their exercise. Holders who do not exercise their warrants will relinquish any value inherent in the warrants.

The Warrants

Warrants distributed in the rights offering will not be separately certificated and will not trade separately from the underlying shares. In order to exercise warrants, we will require stockholders who hold their shares of our common stock in certificated form to deliver to the warrant agent the common stock certificates representing at least the warrants to be exercised. The warrant agent will hold this common stock in escrow for the stockholders. Because of this, if a stockholder exercises a warrant pursuant to such escrow arrangements, the stockholder will not be able to sell or otherwise transfer any common stock delivered to the warrant agent until the warrant agent returns such common stock after the expiration date of this rights offering or pursuant to an effective revocation prior to the time that exercises become irrevocable.

Stockholders who hold their shares of our common stock through DTC or other nominee will be required to agree to instruct their broker, custodian or other nominee to instruct DTC to transfer the shares of common stock representing the warrants to be exercised to the warrant agent, to be held in a suspense account on behalf of the stockholder, pending the closing of the rights offering. As soon as reasonably practicable following the expiration or completion of the rights offering, the warrant agent will return to stockholders or DTC, as the case may be, the common stock held in escrow on behalf of the stockholders and will issue the common stock underlying the existing warrants to holders validly exercising their warrants.

To determine the maximum number of shares that you may purchase, multiply the number of warrants you own by 0.90. For example, if you own 100 warrants, you may subscribe for 90 shares (100 warrants multiplied by 0.90 = 90). To avoid the inconvenience of issuing fractional shares, you will not receive fractional shares of our common stock, but instead, you will receive cash in lieu of fractional shares of our common stock as a result of your exercise of warrants pursuant to the rights offering, calculated as the product of the fraction of a share of common stock multiplied by the difference between the current market price of a share of common stock and the exercise price.

S-78

Table of Contents

Expiration of the Rights Offering

You may exercise your warrants at any time before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on June 21, 2005. We may, in our sole discretion, extend the time for exercising the warrants. If you do not exercise your warrants before the expiration date, your unexercised warrants will be null and void. We will not be obligated to honor your exercise of warrants if the warrant agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, receives the documents relating to your exercise after the rights offering expires, regardless of when you transmitted the documents. We may extend the expiration date by giving oral or written notice to the warrant agent on or before the scheduled expiration date. If we elect to extend the expiration date of the rights offering, we will issue a press release announcing the extension no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the most recently announced expiration date.

Subscription Privileges

Your warrants entitle you to the basic subscription privilege and the oversubscription privilege.

<u>Basic Subscription Privilege</u>. With your basic subscription privilege, you may purchase 0.90 shares of our common stock for every warrant you hold, by delivery of the required documents, including your stock certificates if you hold your shares in certificated form, and payment of the exercise price. There is no minimum number of shares you must purchase as a result of the exercise of your warrants, but you may not purchase fractional shares. The warrant agent will deliver to you certificates, or make the necessary book-entry transfers, representing the shares that you purchase upon the exercise of your warrants as soon as practicable after the rights offering has expired.

<u>Oversubscription Privilege</u>. In addition to your basic subscription privilege, you may subscribe for additional shares of our common stock, by delivery of the required documents, including your stock certificates if you hold your shares in certificated form, and payment of the exercise price, before the expiration of the rights offering.

<u>Pro Rata Allocation</u>. If all of the warrants are not exercised under the basic subscription privilege, we will issue additional shares to warrantholders who exercise their oversubscription privilege. If there are not enough shares to satisfy all subscriptions made under the oversubscription privilege, we will allocate the remaining shares pro rata, after eliminating all fractional shares, among those oversubscribing warrantholders. Pro rata means in proportion to the number of shares of our common stock which you and the other warrantholders subscribed for by exercising your basic subscription privileges. If there is a pro rata allocation of the remaining shares and you receive an allocation of a greater number of shares than you subscribed for under your oversubscription privilege, then we will allocate to you only the number of shares for which you subscribed under your oversubscription privilege. We will allocate the remaining shares among all other holders exercising their oversubscription privileges.

<u>Return of Excess Payment</u>. If you exercised your oversubscription privilege and are allocated less than all of the shares for which you wished to subscribe, your excess payment for shares that were not allocated to you will be returned by mail, without interest or deduction, as soon as reasonably practicable after the expiration date. The warrant agent will deliver to you certificates or make the necessary book-entry transfers, representing the shares which you purchased as soon as reasonably practicable after the expiration date and after all pro rata allocations and adjustments have been completed.

Exercise Price

The exercise price is \$6.00 per share, payable in immediately available funds. If the conditions to the completion of the rights offering are not satisfied or the rights offering is otherwise terminated, your funds will be returned to you as soon as practicable, without interest or deduction.

S-79

Table of Contents

Exercise of Warrants

You may exercise your warrants by delivering the following to the warrant agent at the address and in the manner described below under *Method of Payment* and *Delivery of Subscription Materials and Payment*, at or prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date:

your properly completed and executed exercise form with any required signature guarantees or other supplemental documentation; and

your full exercise price payment for each share subscribed for under your subscription privileges; and

if you hold your shares of our common stock in certificated form, certificates representing at least the number of shares of our common stock representing the warrants to be exercised; or

if you hold your shares of our common stock through DTC, an exercise form instructing your broker, nominee or other custodian to instruct DTC to transfer the shares of common stock representing the warrants to be exercised to a suspense account established by the warrant agent, to be held in escrow for you until after the expiration date.

Certificate of Incorporation Restrictions; Escrow Protection Mechanics

Our ability to utilize our NOLs would be substantially reduced if we were to undergo an ownership change within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. In order to reduce the risk of an ownership change, our certificate of incorporation restricts the ability of any record or beneficial, direct or indirect, holder of 5% or more of our common stock, however acquired, including acquisition though exercise of warrants, to purchase shares granted by us, to sell, transfer, pledge, encumber or dispose of any shares owned by such 5% stockholder, or to purchase, acquire, or otherwise receive additional shares of our common stock without our prior consent. Our certificate of incorporation also restricts the ability of any other holder whether direct or indirect, record or beneficial, to make an acquisition of our common stock which will result in total ownership, either direct or indirect, record or beneficial, by such stockholder of 5% or more of our common stock without our prior consent. These restrictions will apply unless and until we determine that such acquisition will not result in an unreasonable risk of an ownership change. In determining 5% ownership, the following attribution provisions apply for purposes of Section 382 of the Code:

Any family group consisting of an individual, spouse, children, grandchildren and parents are treated as one person. Note that an individual can be treated as a member of several different family groups. For example, your family group would include your spouse, children, father and mother, but your mother s family group would include her spouse, all her children and her grandchildren.

Any common stock owned by any entity will generally be attributed proportionately to the ultimate owners of that entity. Such attribution will also occur through tiered entity structures.

Any persons or entities acting in concert or having a formal or informal understanding among themselves to make a coordinated purchase of common stock will be treated as one stockholder.

In determining stock ownership, any person or entity that holds an option to acquire either common stock or another option or right to acquire common stock should be treated as owning the underlying common stock.

Ownership may not be structured with an abusive principal purpose of avoiding these rules.

We have the right, in our sole and absolute discretion, to limit the exercise of warrants, including instructing the warrant agent to refuse to honor any exercise of warrants, by 5% stockholders.

The total number of our common shares expected to be outstanding upon completion of the rights offering, assuming all of the warrants are exercised, is 140,754,120. Five percent of 140,754,120 is 7,037,706.

S-80

Table of Contents

In order to avoid an ownership change for federal income tax purposes, we have implemented the escrow protection mechanics as follows:

- (1) by exercising warrants, each holder will represent to us that such holder will not be, after giving effect to the exercise of warrants and assuming that such holder is issued all of the shares for which the holder subscribed, an owner, either direct or indirect, record or beneficial, or by application of Section 382 attribution provisions summarized above, of more than 6,500,000 shares, constituting approximately 4.5% of our outstanding common stock;
- (2) if such exercise would result in such holder owning more than 6,500,000 shares of our common stock, constituting approximately 4.5% of our outstanding common stock, such holder must notify the warrant agent at the telephone number set forth under *Delivery of Subscription Materials and Payment*;
- (3) if requested, each holder will be required to provide us with additional information regarding the amount of common stock that the holder owns; and
- (4) we shall have the right to instruct the warrant agent to refuse to honor such holder s exercise to the extent such exercise might, in our sole and absolute discretion, result in such holder owning 5% or more of our common stock

By exercising warrants in the rights offering, you agree that the escrow protection mechanics are valid, binding and enforceable against you.

The escrow protection mechanics are meant to be applied in conjunction with the restrictions in our certificate of incorporation and to provide us with a means to both supplement and enforce such restrictions with regard to the exercise of the warrants issued in the rights offering. We have previously received opinions of counsel that the provisions in our certificate of incorporation and the escrow protection mechanics are legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Delaware law. We intend to vigorously challenge any attempt to violate these restrictions and to pursue all available remedies in the event of any violation. Any purported exercise of warrants, in violation of either the restrictions in our certificate of incorporation or the escrow protection mechanics section, will be void and of no force and effect.

Conditions to the Rights Offering

We may terminate the rights offering if, at any time before completion of the rights offering, the Ref-Fuel purchase agreement is terminated or if there is any judgment, order, decree, injunction, statute, law or regulation entered, enacted, amended or held to be applicable to the rights offering that in the sole judgment of our board of directors would or could make the rights offering or its completion illegal or materially more burdensome to us or otherwise restrict or prohibit completion of the rights offering. We may waive any of these conditions and choose to proceed with the rights offering even if one or more of these events occurs.

In addition, if we determine that the exercise of the warrants would cause an unreasonable risk of a Section 382 ownership change, we may terminate the rights offering. See *United States Federal Income Tax Consequences Section 382 and Limitations on Use of Losses by Us.*

If the conditions to completion of the rights offering are not satisfied or we otherwise terminate the rights offering, all warrants will expire without value and all exercise payments received by the warrant agent will be returned promptly, without interest or deduction.

Amendments and Cancellation

We reserve the right to extend the expiration date and to amend the terms or conditions of the rights offering. If the offering is extended the warrant agent will hold your shares and exercise funds, and you will not be able to sell or transfer your shares so held during the extension period.

S-81

Table of Contents

We may amend the terms of the warrants without the approval of any of the warrantholders. After the record date, we may amend the terms of the warrants only to cure an ambiguity or correct or supplement a provision which may be defective or inconsistent with other provisions. We may also add provisions relating to questions or matters which arise and additions which we and the warrant agent deem necessary or desirable and which will not adversely affect the interests of the warrantholders. If we amend the terms or conditions of the rights offering, a new prospectus supplement will be distributed to all warrantholders who have previously exercised warrants and to holders of record of unexercised warrants on the date we amend the terms.

In addition, all warrantholders who have previously exercised warrants, or who exercise warrants within four business days after the mailing of the new prospectus supplement, shall be provided with a form of consent to amended rights offering terms on which they can confirm their exercise of warrants and their exercise under the terms of the rights offering as amended by us. A warrantholder who has previously exercised any warrants, or who exercises warrants within four business days after the mailing of the new prospectus supplement, and who does not return such consent within ten business days after the mailing of such consent by us will be deemed to have canceled his or her exercise of warrants, and the full amount of the exercise price previously paid by such warrantholder will be returned promptly by mail, without interest or deduction. Any completed exercise form received by the warrant agent five or more business days after the date of the amendment will be deemed to constitute the consent of the warrantholder who completed such exercise form to the amended terms.

We reserve the right to cancel the rights offering at any time. If the Ref-Fuel purchase agreement is terminated or the acquisition of Ref-Fuel does not occur for any reason, the rights offering will be terminated. Such cancellation would be effected by us by giving oral or written notice of such cancellation to the warrant agent and making a public announcement by press release. If canceled, the exercise price will be promptly returned by mail to exercising warrantholders, without interest or deduction. If the rights offering is canceled, the warrants will not be exercisable and will have no value.

Warrant Agent

We have appointed American Stock Transfer & Trust Company as warrant agent for the rights offering. The warrant agent s address, which is the address to which the exercise forms, payment of the exercise price and other subscription documents should be delivered, and telephone number is set forth under *Delivery of Subscription Materials and Payment* below.

We will pay the warrant agent customary fees and reimbursements for its expenses. We have also agreed to indemnify the warrant agent against any liability that it may incur in connection with the rights offering.

Information Agent

We have appointed Innisfree M&A Incorporated as information agent for the rights offering. Any questions or requests for additional copies of this prospectus supplement or any ancillary documents may be directed to the information agent at the following address and telephone number:

501 Madison Avenue

20th Floor

New York, New York 10022

Telephone: (888) 750-5834 (toll-free)

We will pay the information agent customary fees and reimbursements for its expenses. We have also agreed to indemnify the information agent against any liability that it may incur in connection with the rights offering.

S-82

Table of Contents

Method of Payment

Your payment of the exercise price must be made in U.S. dollars for the full number of shares of common stock you are subscribing for by either:

certified check or bank draft drawn upon a U.S. bank or postal, telegraphic or express money order payable to the warrant agent;

wire transfer of immediately available funds directed to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, c/o Chase Manhattan Bank, ABA No. 021-000021, Credit Account No. 323-836925; or

personal check payable to the warrant agent.

Receipt of Payment

Your payment will be considered received by the warrant agent only upon: clearance of any uncertified check;

receipt by the warrant agent of any certified check or bank draft drawn upon a U.S. bank or of any postal, telegraphic or express money order; or

receipt of collected funds in the warrant account designated above.

Clearance of Uncertified Checks

If you are paying by uncertified personal check, please note that uncertified checks may take at least five business days to clear. If you wish to pay the exercise price by uncertified personal check, we urge you to make payment sufficiently in advance of the expiration date to ensure that your payment is received and clears by that time. We urge you to consider using a certified or cashier scheck, money order or wire transfer of funds to avoid missing the opportunity to exercise your warrants. We will not be responsible for any delays in processing uncertified checks, even if such delays result in your warrants not being exercised.

Delivery of Subscription Materials and Payment

You should deliver your subscription documents and payment of the exercise price to the warrant agent at the following address:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Telephone: (877) 248-6417

Your delivery to an address other than the address set forth above will not constitute valid delivery.

Calculation of Warrants Exercised

If you do not indicate the number of warrants being exercised, or do not forward full payment of the total exercise price payment for the number of warrants that you indicate are being exercised, then you will be deemed to have exercised your subscription privileges with respect to the lesser of the maximum number of warrants that may be exercised with the aggregate exercise price payment and the maximum number of warrants that may be exercised with the number of our common stock certificates you delivered to the warrant agent or book-entry transfers effected. If your aggregate exercise price payment is in excess of the amount you owe for your subscription, we will return the excess amount to you by mail, without interest or deduction, as soon as practicable after the expiration date.

S-83

Table of Contents

Exercising A Portion of Your Warrants

If you wish to subscribe for fewer than all the shares of our common stock represented by your warrants, you should indicate on your exercise form the number of warrants you wish to exercise.

Your Funds Will Be Held by the Warrant Agent until Shares of Common Stock Are Issued

The warrant agent will hold your payment of the exercise price payment in a segregated account with other payments received from other warrantholders until we issue your shares to you or return your payment, without interest or deduction.

Signature Guarantee May Be Required

Your signature on each exercise form must be guaranteed by an eligible institution subject to standards and procedures adopted by the warrant agent, unless:

your exercise form provides that shares are to be delivered to you as record holder of those warrants; or

you are an eligible institution.

An eligible institution is a firm or other entity that is identified as an Eligible Guarantor Institution in Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including:

a bank;

a broker, dealer, municipal securities broker or dealer or government securities broker or dealer;

a credit union:

a member of a national securities exchange, registered securities association or clearing agency; or

a savings association that is a participant in a securities transfer association for the account of an eligible institution.

Notice to Beneficial Holders

If you are a bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee who holds shares of our common stock for the account of others on the record date, you should notify the respective beneficial owners of such shares of the rights offering as soon as possible to find out their intentions with respect to exercising their warrants. You should obtain instructions from the beneficial owner with respect to the warrants, as set forth in the instructions we have provided to you for your distribution to beneficial owners. If the beneficial owner so instructs, you should complete the appropriate exercise forms and submit them to the warrant agent with the proper payment. If you hold shares of our common stock for the account(s) of more than one beneficial owner, you may exercise the number of warrants that all such beneficial owners in the aggregate otherwise would have been entitled had they been direct record holders of our common stock on the record date, provided that you, as a nominee record holder, make a proper showing to the warrant agent by submitting the form entitled Nominee Holder Certification that we will provide to you with your rights offering materials.

Beneficial Owners

If you are a beneficial owner of shares of our common stock or will receive your warrants through a bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee, we will ask your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee to notify you of the rights offering. If you wish to exercise your warrants, you will need to have your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee act for you. If you hold certificates of our common stock directly and would prefer to have your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee hold them on your behalf, you should contact your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee and request it to effect the transactions for you. To indicate your decision with respect to your warrants, you

S-84

Table of Contents

should complete and return to your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee the form entitled Beneficial Owner Election Form. You should receive this form from your bank, broker, trustee, depository or other nominee with the other rights offering materials. If you wish to obtain a separate exercise form, you should contact the nominee as soon as possible and request that a separate exercise form be issued to you.

Instructions for Completing Your Exercise Form

You should read and follow the instructions for your exercise form carefully.

If you want to exercise your warrants, you should send your common stock certificates representing at least the number of warrants you want to exercise, or instruct your broker to instruct DTC to transfer the number of shares representing your exercise, your exercise form and your exercise price payment to the warrant agent. Do not send your common stock certificates, your exercise form or your exercise price payment to either the information agent or us.

You are responsible for the method of delivery of your common stock certificates, your exercise form and your exercise price payment to the warrant agent. If you send your common stock certificates, your exercise form or your exercise price payment by mail, we recommend that you send them by registered mail, properly insured, with return receipt requested. You should allow a sufficient number of days to ensure receipt by the warrant agent prior to the expiration date. Because uncertified personal checks may take at least five business days to clear, you are strongly urged to pay, or arrange for payment, by means of certified or cashier s check, money order or wire transfer of funds.

Determinations Regarding The Exercise of Your Warrants

We will decide all questions concerning the timeliness, validity, form and eligibility of your exercise of your warrants and our determinations will be final and binding. We, in our sole discretion, may waive any defect or irregularity, or permit a defect or irregularity to be corrected within such time as we may determine. We may reject the exercise of any of your warrants because of any defect or irregularity. We will not receive or accept any exercise until all irregularities have been waived by us or cured by you within such time as we decide, in our sole discretion.

Neither we nor the warrant agent will be under any duty to notify you of any defect or irregularity in connection with your submission of exercise forms and we will not be liable for failure to notify you of any defect or irregularity. We reserve the right to reject your exercise of warrants if your exercise is not in accordance with the terms of the rights offering or in proper form. We will also not accept your exercise of warrants if our issuance of shares of our common stock to you could be deemed to violate our certificate of incorporation, be unlawful under applicable law, is materially burdensome to us or as otherwise described under *Conditions to The Rights Offering*.

Questions about Exercising Warrants

If you have any questions, require assistance regarding the method of exercising your warrants or have any requests for additional copies of this prospectus supplement or the Danielson Holding Corporation Rights Offering Exercise Form, you should contact the information agent at the address and telephone number set forth above under *Information Agent*.

Procedures for DTC Participants

We expect that your exercise of your subscription privilege may be made through the facilities of DTC. If your warrants are held of record through DTC, you may exercise your subscription privileges by instructing your broker or other nominee to transfer your warrants from the broker s account to the account of the warrant agent, together with certification as to the aggregate number of warrants you are exercising and the number of shares of our common stock you are subscribing for under your subscription

S-85

Table of Contents

privileges, and your exercise price payment for each share you subscribed for pursuant to your subscription privileges. **Foreign and Other Stockholders**

Exercise forms will not be mailed to warrantholders whose addresses are outside the United States or who have an Army Post Office or a Fleet Post Office address. To exercise such warrants, you must notify the warrant agent and take all other steps that are necessary to exercise your warrants on or prior to the expiration date. If the procedures set forth in the preceding sentence are not followed prior to the expiration date your warrants will expire.

Shares of Common Stock Outstanding after the Rights Offering

If all the warrants are exercised in the rights offering, 140,754,120 shares of our common stock will be issued and outstanding, based on the number of shares outstanding on May 27, 2005. Based on the 74,081,116 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding as of May 27, 2005, our issuance of shares in the rights offering would result, on a pro forma basis as of May 27, 2005 in an approximate 90% increase in the number of outstanding shares of our common stock.

Other Matters

We are not making the rights offering in any state or other jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to do so, nor are we selling or accepting any offers to purchase any shares of our common stock from warrantholders who are residents of those states or other jurisdictions. We may delay the commencement of the rights offering in those states or other jurisdictions, or change the terms of the rights offering, in order to comply with the securities law requirements of those states or other jurisdictions. We may decline to make modifications to the terms of the rights offering requested by those states or other jurisdictions, in which case, if you are a resident in those states or jurisdictions you will not be eligible to participate in the rights offering.

Determination of Terms of the Rights Offering

The exercise price and the other terms of the rights offering were approved by an independent committee of members of our board of directors. Our board of directors was also advised by independent financial advisors. The members of the independent committee were not affiliated with Laminar, SZ Investments or William Pate, the Chairman of our board of directors, who is also affiliated with SZ Investments, or Third Avenue or David Barse, who is a director of Danielson and is an officer of the management company that manages the investments of Third Avenue.

In order to finance the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, we determined that the sale of common stock through a rights offering was the best method to allow all of our stockholders to participate in the sale of this new equity capital. The independent committee believed that the exercise price reflected our objective of achieving the maximum net proceeds obtainable from the rights offering, while providing our security holders with an opportunity to make an additional investment in our company, thus avoiding dilution of their ownership position in us.

In approving the exercise price, the other terms of the rights offering and the terms of the equity commitments, the independent committee considered the advice of its counsel and financial advisors as well as such factors as the alternatives available to us for financing our capital, other alternatives for raising capital, the market price of our common stock, our business prospects, and the general condition of the securities markets at the time the rights offering was approved.

S-86

Table of Contents

While our common stock has traded at a price in excess of the exercise price on the date of this prospectus supplement, there can be no assurance that the market price of our common stock will not decline during the exercise period to a level equal to or below the exercise price, or that, following the issuance of the warrants and of our common stock upon exercise of warrants, an exercising holder will be able to sell shares purchased in the rights offering at a price equal to or greater than the exercise price. See *Risk Factors* for a more complete discussion of risks associated with this rights offering and our businesses.

S-87

UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences to holders of our common stock upon the issuance of the warrants in the rights offering and upon the exercise of the warrants. The discussion is based upon the Internal Revenue Code, treasury regulations, judicial authorities, published positions of the IRS and other applicable authorities, all as in effect on the date hereof and all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations possibly with retroactive effect. The discussion does not address all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to a particular holder of our common stock or to holders subject to special treatment under federal income tax laws such as financial institutions, insurance companies, broker-dealers, tax-exempt organizations, foreign persons, or persons holding our common stock as part of a straddle or conversion transaction. This discussion is limited to U.S. persons that hold our common stock as capital assets. Except as otherwise stated herein, no ruling has been or will be sought from the IRS regarding any matter discussed herein. Our counsel has not rendered any legal opinion regarding any tax consequences relating to us or an investment in us. No assurance can be given that the IRS would not assert, or that a court would not sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax aspects set forth below.

Holders of our common stock and warrants on the record date should consult their tax advisors as to the federal income tax consequences of the rights offering that are relevant to their particular situations, as well as the effects of state, local and non-U.S. tax laws.

For purposes of this discussion, a U.S. person means any one of the following:

a citizen or resident of the United States:

a partnership, corporation or other entity created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof;

a trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more United States persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or the trust has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person; or

an estate, the income of which is includible in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes regardless of its source.

Issuance of Warrants, Basis and Holding Period

Holders of our common stock on the record date will not recognize taxable income in connection with the receipt of the warrants pursuant to the rights offering, provided that the distribution does not have the result of causing some holders of our stock or warrants to receive an increase in their proportionate interest in our assets or our earnings and profits and other holders of our stock or warrants to receive cash or property. The distribution of the warrants in the rights offering should not have the effect of causing some holders of our stock or warrants to receive an increase in their proportionate interest in our assets or our earnings and profits and other holders of our stock or warrants to receive cash or property. Therefore, no income should be recognized by any record date holders of our common stock in connection with the issuance of the warrants pursuant to the rights offering.

Except as provided in the following sentence, the basis of the warrants received by a holder with respect to such holder s common stock will be zero. If either (1) the fair market value of the warrants on the record date is 15% or more of the fair market value, on the trigger date, of the common stock with respect to which the warrants are received, or (2) the holder elects, on the holder s federal income tax return for the taxable year in which the warrants are received, to allocate part of the basis of the common stock with respect to which the warrants are received to the warrants, then upon exercise of the warrants, the holder s basis in such common stock will be allocated between the common stock and the warrants in proportion to the fair market values of each on the record date. We expect the value of the warrants received to exceed 15% of the fair market value of the common stock with respect to which it is distributed. As a result, the holder s basis in such common stock, upon exercise of the warrants, will be

S-88

Table of Contents

allocated between the common stock and the warrants in proportion to the fair market values of each on the record date

The holding period of the warrants received in the rights offering will include the holder s holding period for the common stock with respect to which the warrants were issued.

Expiration of the Warrants

Holders who receive warrants in the rights offering with respect to their common stock and who allow such warrants to expire unexercised will not recognize any gain or loss, and no adjustment will be made to the basis of the holder s common stock.

Exercise of the Warrants, Basis and Holding Period of Acquired Shares

No gain or loss is recognized by a holder upon the exercise of the warrants received in the rights offering with respect to the holder s common stock (except with respect to cash received in lieu of fractional shares). The basis of each share of common stock acquired through exercise of the warrants will be equal to the sum of the exercise price paid and the basis, if any, of the warrants. The holding period for the common stock acquired through exercise of the warrants received in the rights offering will begin on the date of the closing of the rights offering.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Generally, we must report annually to the IRS and to each holder the amount, if any, of the dividends paid on our stock and the amount of tax, if any, that we withheld on such distribution. Under current U.S. Treasury Regulations, U.S. information reporting requirements and backup withholding tax will generally apply to dividends and to gross proceeds of a sale or other taxable disposition of our stock received by a holder of our stock unless such holder furnishes a correct taxpayer identification number and provides other certification or is otherwise exempt from backup withholding.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules will be refunded or credited against the holder s U.S. federal income tax liability if certain required information is furnished to the IRS.

Section 382 and Limitations on Use of Losses by Us

As of December 31, 2004 we expect to report that we had NOLs estimated to be approximately \$516 million for federal income tax purposes, which expire in various amounts, if not used before December 31, 2023. Some or all of these NOLs may be available to offset our future taxable income, if any, but the continued availability of our NOLs is subject to the rules of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Section 382 generally restricts the use of an NOL after an ownership change, generally a more than 50% increase in stock ownership, measured by value, during a 3-year testing period by 5% stockholders. In the event of an ownership change, the amount of our NOLs that could be utilized in any taxable year would be generally limited to the product of the value of our stock on the date of the ownership change, multiplied by the long-term tax-exempt rate, which is a measure of interest rates on long-term tax-exempt bonds.

While the rights offering may result in a substantial increase in the ownership of our stock by 5% stockholders, we believe that it will not result in an ownership change. The rights offering has been structured to substantially comply with applicable treasury regulations and with the analysis in a previous private letter ruling that we had received from the IRS relating to the tax treatment under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of certain aspects of a similar rights offering previously made by us in connection with our acquisition of ACL.

In addition, our certificate of incorporation contains restrictions on the transfer and acquisition of our shares, which were designed to prevent an involuntary ownership change, although such restrictions cannot prevent an involuntary ownership change in all circumstances. The rights offering also contains certain

S - 89

Table of Contents

other provisions which will be applied in conjunction with the restrictions in our certificate of incorporation to provide us with a means to enforce such restrictions with regard to the exercise of the warrants issued in the rights offering. See *The Rights Offering Certificate of Incorporation Restrictions; Escrow Protection Mechanics* for a more complete discussion. We cannot be certain, however, that these restrictions will prevent a transaction that is outside of our control from triggering an ownership change.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The common stock covered by this prospectus supplement will be issued upon exercise of the warrants described above.

RELATED PARTY AGREEMENTS

SZ Investments, a company affiliated with Samuel Zell (the former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors) and William Pate (our current Chairman of the Board of Directors), was a holder through its affiliate, HYI Investments, L.L.C., which we refer to as HYI in this prospectus supplement, of approximately 42% of the senior notes and payment-in-kind notes of ACL, a former unconsolidated subsidiary of Danielson. In addition, we agreed to provide SZ Investments unlimited demand registration rights with respect to the ACL notes held by HYI. ACL Plan of Reorganization was confirmed, without material conditions, on December 30, 2004 and it emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings January 2005. Pursuant to the terms of ACL Plan of Reorganization, the notes held by HYI were converted into equity of ACL.

Following ACL s emergence from bankruptcy, we sold our entire 50% interest in Vessel Leasing to ACL on January 13, 2005 for \$2.5 million. The price and other terms and conditions of the sale were negotiated on an arm s length-basis for us by a special committee of our board of directors.

We entered into a corporate services agreement dated as of September 2, 2003, pursuant to which Equity Group Investments, L.L.C., which we refer to as EGI in this prospectus supplement, agreed to provide certain administrative services to us, including, among others, shareholder relations, insurance procurement and management, payroll services, cash management, tax and treasury functions, technology services, listing exchange compliance and financial and corporate record keeping. Samuel Zell, a former Chairman of our Board, is also the Chairman of EGI, and William Pate, the current Chairman of our Board, is also an executive officer of EGI. Under the agreement, we paid EGI \$20,000 per month plus specified out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred by EGI under this corporate services agreement. We terminated this agreement with the integration of Covanta s operations with ours as of November 2004.

As part of the investment and purchase agreement dated as of December 2, 2003, pursuant to which we agreed to acquire Covanta, we arranged for a new replacement letter of credit facility for Covanta, secured by a second priority lien on Covanta s available domestic assets, consisting of commitments for the issuance of standby letters of credit in the aggregate amount of \$118 million. This financing was provided by SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar. Each of SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar, or an affiliate, own over 5% of our common stock. Samuel Zell, former Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board, and William Pate, the current Chairman of our Board, are affiliated with SZ Investments. David Barse, one of our directors, is affiliated with Third Avenue. This second lien credit facility has a term of five years. The letter of credit component of the second lien credit facility requires cash collateral to be posted for issued letters of credit in the event Covanta has cash in excess of specified amounts. Covanta also paid an upfront fee of \$2.36 million upon entering into the second lien credit agreement, and will pay (1) a commitment fee equal to 0.5% per annum of the daily calculation of available credit, (2) an annual agency fee of \$30,000, and (3) with respect to each issued letter of credit, an amount equal to 6.5% per annum of the daily amount available to be drawn under such letter of credit. Amounts paid with respect to drawn letters of credit bear interest at the rate of 4.5% over the base rate on issued letters of credit, increasing to 6.5% over the base rate in specified default situations. Subsequent to the signing of the investment and purchase agreement, each of the bridge lenders assigned approximately

S-90

Table of Contents

30% of their participation in the second lien letter of credit facility to Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P., and Laminar assigned the remainder of its participation in the second lien letter of credit facility to TRS Elara, LLC.

We obtained the financing for our acquisition of Covanta pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated December 2, 2003, from the bridge lenders. Pursuant to the note purchase agreement, the bridge lenders provided us with \$40 million of bridge financing in exchange for notes issued by us. We repaid the notes with the proceeds from a rights offering of our common stock which was completed in June 2004 and in connection with the conversion of a portion of the note held by Laminar into 8.75 million shares of our common stock pursuant to the note purchase agreement. In consideration for the \$40 million of bridge financing, the arrangement by the bridge lenders of the \$118 million second lien credit facility, and the arrangement by Laminar of a \$10 million international revolving credit facility secured by Covanta s international assets, we issued to the bridge lenders an aggregate of 5,120,853 shares of common stock.

Pursuant to the registration rights agreements, we filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the shares of common stock issued to the bridge lenders under the note purchase agreement. The registration statement was declared effective on August 24, 2004.

As part of our negotiations with Laminar and their becoming a 5% stockholder, pursuant to a letter agreement dated December 2, 2003, Laminar agreed to transfer restrictions on the shares of common stock that Laminar acquired pursuant to the note purchase agreement. Further, in accordance with the transfer restrictions contained in Article Fifth of our certificate of incorporation restricting the resale of our common stock by 5% stockholders, we have agreed with Laminar to provide it with limited rights to resell the common stock that it holds.

Also in connection with the financing for the acquisition of Covanta, we agreed to pay up to \$0.9 million in the aggregate to the bridge lenders as reimbursement for expenses incurred by them in connection with the note purchase agreement.

The purchase agreement and other transactions involving SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar were negotiated, reviewed and approved by a special committee of our board of directors composed solely of disinterested directors and advised by independent legal and financial advisors.

SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar, representing ownership of approximately 40.4% of our outstanding common stock, have each separately committed to participate in this rights offering and acquire their respective pro rata portion of the shares. As consideration for their commitments, we will pay each of these stockholders an amount equal to 1.75% of their respective equity commitments, provided that the transaction closes on or prior to June 30, 2005. We also agreed to amend an existing registration rights agreement to provide these stockholders with the right to demand that we undertake an underwritten offering within twelve months of the closing of the acquisition of Ref-Fuel in order to provide such stockholders with liquidity.

We expect to complete previously announced 9.25% Offering for up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock to certain holders of 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta at a purchase price of \$1.53 per share which we are required to conduct in order to satisfy our obligations as the sponsor of the Covanta Plan of Reorganization. This 9.25% Offering will be made solely to holders of the \$100 million of principal amount of 9.25% debentures due 2002 issued by Covanta who voted in favor of the Covanta Plan of Reorganization on January 12, 2004. On January 12, 2004, holders of \$99.6 million in principal amount of 9.25% debentures voted in favor of the plan of reorganization and are eligible to participate in the 9.25% Offering.

We executed a letter agreement with Laminar on January 31, 2005 pursuant to which we have agreed that if the 9.25% Offering has not closed prior to the record date of this rights offering, that we would revise the terms of the 9.25% Offering so that participants in the 9.25% Offering are offered up to 2.7 million additional shares of our common stock at the same \$6.00 per share purchase price as in this rights offering. We have filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the 9.25% Offering, which registration statement has not been declared effective. Since the 9.25% Offering was not commenced prior

S-91

Table of Contents

to this rights offering, we will amend and restructure the 9.25% Offering in accordance with our agreement.

The statements contained herein with respect to the 9.25% Offering shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy shares of our common stock. Any such offer or solicitation will be made in compliance with all applicable securities laws.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Danielson Holding Corporation

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are part of a registration statement on Form S-3 we filed with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933. You should rely only on the information or representations provided in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We have authorized no one to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of the document.

We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, under which we file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies of such material also can be obtained at the SEC s website, www.sec.gov, or by mail from the public reference room of the SEC, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public on our corporate website, www.danielsonholding.com. Our common stock is traded on the American Stock Exchange. Material filed by us can be inspected at the offices of the American Stock Exchange at 86 Trinity Place, New York, NY 10006.

You may also request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning as follows: Danielson Holding Corporation, 40 Lane Road, Fairfield, New Jersey 07004 and our telephone number is (973) 882-9000.

Covanta Energy Corporation

Covanta also files periodic reports and other information with the SEC. Such reports and other information filed by Covanta with the SEC can be read and copied at the public reference room of the SEC at the address set forth above. Copies of such material also can be obtained at the SEC s website, www.sec.gov, or by mail from the public reference room of the SEC, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at the number set forth above for further information on the public reference room. Covanta s SEC filings are also available to the public on their corporate website at www.covantaenergy.com.

American Ref-Fuel Holdings Corp.

Ref-Fuel s subsidiaries, MSW I and MSW II also file periodic reports and other information with the SEC. Such reports and other information filed by MSW I and MSW II with the SEC can be read and copied at the public reference room of the SEC at the address set forth above. Copies of such materials can also be obtained at the SEC s website, www.sec.gov, or by mail from the public reference room of the SEC, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at the number set forth above for further information on the public reference room. MSW I and MSW II SEC filings are also available to the public on their corporate website at www.mswenergy.com.

S-92

Table of Contents

PROSPECTUS

DANIELSON HOLDING CORPORATION 70,200,000 Shares of Common Stock Issuable Upon Exercise of Non-Transferable Warrants

This prospectus will allow us to offer, from time to time, up to 70,200,000 shares of common stock issuable by us upon exercise of non-transferable warrants to be issued to our stockholders. The warrants will not be certificated and will not be separately tradeable. Each time we issue warrants we will provide a prospectus supplement and the prospectus supplement will inform you about the specific terms of the warrant issuance and may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. **This prospectus may not be used to consummate any sales of common stock unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.**

Our common stock is traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol DHC. On May 24, 2005, the closing price of our common stock was \$15.43 per share.

You should carefully consider the risk factors beginning on page 2 of this prospectus before exercising your rights to purchase any of the shares offered by this prospectus.

In order to avoid an ownership change for federal tax purposes, our certificate of incorporation prohibits any person from becoming a beneficial owner of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, except under limited circumstances. Consequently, there are limitations on the exercise of the warrants as described in this prospectus.

The Securities and Exchange Commission and state securities regulators have not approved or disapproved these securities, or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is May 26, 2005.

Table of Contents

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to Danielson, and we, our, us and similar te refer to Danielson Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries; references to NAICC refer to National American Insurance Company of California and its subsidiaries; references to ACL refer to American Commercial Lines, LLC and its subsidiaries; and references to Covanta refer to Covanta Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock is very risky. You should carefully consider the following factors and all the information in this prospectus and the information incorporated by reference herein.

Danielson-Specific Risks

The market for our common stock has been historically illiquid which may affect your ability to sell your shares.

The volume of trading in our stock has historically been low. In the last six months, the daily trading volume for our stock has been approximately 314,000 shares. Having a market for shares without substantial liquidity can adversely affect the price of the stock at a time an investor might want to sell his, her or its shares.

Reduced liquidity and price volatility could result in a loss to investors.

Although our common stock is listed on the American Stock Exchange, there can be no assurance as to the liquidity of an investment in our common stock or as to the price an investor may realize upon the sale of our common stock. These prices are determined in the marketplace and may be influenced by many factors, including the liquidity of the market for our common stock, the market price of our common stock, investor perception and general economic and market conditions.

Concentrated stock ownership and a restrictive certificate of incorporation provision may discourage unsolicited acquisition proposals.

Excluding the issuance of 5.7 million shares of our common stock in a previously announced rights offering to holders of 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta who voted in favor of Covanta s plan of reorganization, which we refer to in this prospectus as the 9.25% Offering, and which includes a modification to allow additional purchases as if holders of 9.25% debentures were able to participate in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering, which we define below under American Ref-Fuel Holding Corp. Acquisition, SZ Investments, L.L.C., together with its affiliate EGI Fund (05-07) Investors, L.L.C., stockholders referred to in this prospectus together as SZ Investments, Third Avenue Trust, on behalf of Third Avenue Value Fund, a stockholder referred to in this prospectus as Third Avenue, and D. E. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L.L.C., a stockholder referred to in this prospectus as Laminar, separately own or will have the right to acquire as of May 24, 2005, approximately 15.9%, 6.1% and 18.4%, respectively, or when aggregated, 40.4% of our outstanding common stock. These stockholders have each separately committed to participate in the rights offering we have agreed to undertake in order to finance the Company s acquisition of American Ref-Fuel Holdings Corp., referred to in this prospectus as Ref-Fuel, and to acquire their pro rata portion of shares in that rights offering. Although there are no agreements among SZ Investments, Third Avenue and Laminar regarding their voting or disposition of shares of our common stock, the level of their combined ownership of shares of common stock could have the effect of discouraging or impeding an unsolicited acquisition proposal. In addition, the change in ownership limitations contained in Article Fifth of our certificate of incorporation could have the effect of discouraging or impeding an unsolicited takeover proposal.

1

Table of Contents

Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price.

No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, that future sales of our common stock, or the availability of our common stock for future sales, will have on the market price of our common stock. Sales in the public market of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock. In addition, in connection with the Covanta acquisition financing, we filed a registration statement on Form S-3 to register the resale of 17,711,491 shares of our common stock held by Laminar, Third Avenue and SZ Investments, which was declared effective on August 24, 2004. We have also filed a registration statement on Form S-3 to register the issuance of up to 3 million shares of our common stock in the 9.25% Offering. We have also agreed to restructure the 9.25% Offering in order to give those offerees that exercise their rights to purchase shares of common stock at \$1.53 per share, the additional right to purchase up to 2.7 million additional shares at \$6.00 per share, as if they were participating in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering. In connection with our proposed acquisition of Ref-Fuel, we have agreed to register the resale of certain shares held or acquired by Laminar, Third Avenue and SZ Investments in an underwritten public offering. We have also agreed to register any shares issuable to current stockholders of Ref-Fuel in the event the purchase agreement we entered into with Ref-Fuel stockholders is terminated due to our failure to complete the equity and debt financing for such acquisition. The potential effect of these shares being sold may be to depress the price at which our common stock trades.

Our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect all acts of fraud.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission s rules and forms.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, believes that any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, they cannot provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our companies have been prevented or detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by an unauthorized override of the controls. The design of any systems of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and we cannot assure you that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Accordingly, because of the inherent limitations in a cost effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Failure to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting may have an adverse effect on our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, commonly referred to as the SEC, to implement Section 404, we are required to furnish a report by our management to include in our annual report on Form 10-K regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. The report includes, among other things, an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our fiscal year, including a statement as to whether or not our internal control over financial reporting is effective. This assessment must include disclosure of any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by management.

Table of Contents

We have in the past, and in the future may discover, areas of our internal control over financial reporting which may require improvement. For example, during the course of its audit of our 2004 financial statements, our independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, identified errors, principally related to complex manual fresh start accounting calculations, predominantly affecting Covanta s investments in its international businesses. Although the net effect of these errors was immaterial (less than \$2 million, pretax), and such errors were corrected before our 2004 consolidated financial statements were issued, management determined that errors in complex fresh start and other technical accounting areas originally went undetected due to insufficient technical in-house expertise necessary to provide sufficiently rigorous review. As a result, management has concluded that Danielson s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2004. Although, we have identified and undertaken steps necessary in order to remediate this material weakness, as of our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2005, we were unable to conclude that we had remediated this material weakness or that our internal controls over financial reporting were effective. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in the future will depend on our, ability to fulfill these steps to remediate this material weakness. If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective now or in any future period, or if our auditors are unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could have an adverse effect in our stock price.

We cannot be certain that our net operating loss tax carryforwards will continue to be available to offset our tax liability.

As of December 31, 2004, we estimated that we had approximately \$516 million of net operating loss tax carryforwards for federal income tax purposes, which we refer to as NOLs in this prospectus. In order to utilize the NOLs, we must generate taxable income which can offset such carryforwards. The NOLs are also utilized by income from certain grantor trusts that were established as part of the Mission Insurance reorganization. The NOLs will expire if not used. The availability of NOLs to offset taxable income would be substantially reduced if we were to undergo an ownership change within the meaning of Section 382(g)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code. We will be treated as having had an ownership change if there is more than a 50% increase in stock ownership during a three year testing period by 5% stockholders.

In order to help us preserve the NOLs, our certificate of incorporation contains stock transfer restrictions designed to reduce the risk of an ownership change for purposes of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. The transfer restrictions were implemented in 1990, and we expect that the restrictions will remain in force as long as the NOLs are available. We cannot assure you, however, that these restrictions will prevent an ownership change.

The NOLs will expire in various amounts, if not used, between 2005 and 2023. The Internal Revenue Service has not audited any of our tax returns for any of the years during the carryforward period including those returns for the years in which the losses giving rise to the NOLs were reported. We cannot assure you that we would prevail if the IRS were to challenge the availability of the NOLs. If the IRS was successful in challenging our NOLs, all or some portion of the NOLs would not be available to offset our future consolidated income and we may not be able to satisfy our obligations to Covanta under a tax sharing agreement described below, or to pay taxes that may be due from our consolidated tax group.

Reductions in our NOLs could occur in connection with the administration of the grantor trusts associated with the Mission Insurance entities which are in state insolvency proceedings. During or at the conclusion of the administration of these grantor trusts, taxable income could result which could materially reduce our NOLs. For a more detailed discussion of the Mission Insurance entities and the grantor trusts, please see Note 25 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, as filed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, which is incorporated by reference herein.

In addition, if our existing insurance services business were to require capital infusions from us in order to meet certain regulatory capital requirements, and were we to fail to provide such capital, some or

Table of Contents

all of our subsidiaries comprising our insurance services business could enter insurance insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings. In such event, such subsidiaries might no longer be included in our consolidated tax return, and a portion, which could constitute a significant portion, of our remaining NOLs might no longer be available to us. **Covanta-Specific Risks**

Covanta emerged from bankruptcy with a large amount of domestic debt, and we cannot assure you that its cash flow from domestic operations will be sufficient to pay this debt.

As of March 31, 2005, Covanta s outstanding domestic corporate debt was \$237 million. Although Covanta is currently in compliance with all of its domestic debt covenants, Covanta s ability to service its domestic debt will depend upon:

its ability to continue to operate and maintain its facilities consistent with historical performance levels;

its ability to maintain compliance with its debt covenants;

its ability to avoid increases in overhead and operating expenses in view of the largely fixed nature of its revenues;

its ability to maintain or enhance revenue from renewals or replacement of existing contracts, which begin to expire in October 2007 and from new contracts to expand existing facilities or operate additional facilities;

market conditions affecting waste disposal and energy pricing, as well as competition from other companies for contract renewals, expansions, and additional contracts, particularly after its existing contracts expire;

the continued availability to Covanta of the benefit of Danielson s net operating losses under a tax sharing agreement; and

its ability to refinance its domestic corporate debt, whether in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

For a more detailed discussion of Covanta s domestic debt covenants, please see Item 7 of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, and Item 7 of Covanta s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended.

Covanta s ability to make payments on its indebtedness, to refinance its indebtedness, and to fund planned capital expenditures and other necessary expenses will depend on its ability to generate cash in the future. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. We cannot assure you that Covanta s business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that Covanta will be able to refinance any of its indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Covanta may not be able to refinance its domestic debt agreements prior to maturity.

Covanta issued secured notes, which mature in 2011. Prior to maturity, Covanta is obligated to pay only interest, and no principal, with respect to these notes. Covanta s cash flow may be insufficient to pay the principal at maturity, which will be \$230 million at such time. Consequently, Covanta may be obligated to refinance these notes prior to maturity. Covanta may refinance the notes during the first two years after issuance without paying a premium, and thereafter may refinance these notes but must pay a premium to do so.

Several of Covanta s contracts require it to provide certain letters of credit to contract counterparties. The aggregate stated amount of these letters declines materially each year, particularly prior to 2010. Covanta s financing arrangements under which these letters of credit are issued expire in 2009, and so it

Table of Contents

must refinance these arrangements in order to allow Covanta to continue to provide the letters of credit beyond the current expiration date.

Although we have received a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston for a debt financing package for Covanta necessary to finance the proposed acquisition of Ref-Fuel, as well as to refinance the existing recourse debt and letter of credit arrangements of Covanta, such refinancing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to obtain refinancing on acceptable terms, or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

Covanta s ability to grow its business is limited.

Covanta s ability to grow its domestic business by investing in new projects will be limited by debt covenants in its principal financing agreements, unless such financing agreements are refinanced, and from potentially fewer market opportunities for new waste-to-energy facilities. Covanta s business is based upon building and operating municipal solid waste processing and energy generating projects, which are capital intensive businesses that require financing through direct investment and the incurrence of debt. When we acquired Covanta and it emerged from bankruptcy proceedings in March 2004, Covanta entered into financing arrangements with restrictive covenants typical of financings for companies emerging from bankruptcy. These covenants essentially prohibit investments in new projects or acquisitions of new businesses and place restrictions on Covanta s ability to expand existing projects. The covenants prohibit borrowings to finance new construction, except in limited circumstances related to specifically identified expansions of existing facilities. The covenants also limit spending for new business development and require that excess cash flow be trapped to collateralize outstanding letters of credit.

Although we will be negotiating debt covenants for the refinancing of Covanta s recourse debt in connection with the Ref-Fuel acquisition, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that, when it seeks to refinance its domestic debt agreements, Covanta will be able to negotiate covenants that will provide it with more flexibility to grow its business.

Covanta s liquidity is limited by the amount of domestic debt issued when it emerged from bankruptcy.

Covanta believes that its cash flow from domestic operations will be sufficient to pay for its domestic cash needs, including debt service on its domestic corporate debt, and that its revolving credit facility will provide a secondary source of liquidity. For the period March 11, 2004 through March 31, 2005, Covanta s cash flow from operating activities for domestic operations was \$118.2 million. We cannot assure you, however, that Covanta s cash flow from domestic operations will not be adversely affected by adverse economic conditions or circumstances specific to one or more projects or that if such conditions or circumstances do occur, its revolving credit facility will provide Covanta with access to sufficient cash for such purposes.

Operation of Covanta s facilities and the expansion of facilities involve significant risks.

The operation of Covanta s facilities and the construction of new or expanded facilities involve many risks, including:

the inaccuracy of Covanta s assumptions with respect to the timing and amount of anticipated revenues;

supply interruptions;

the breakdown or failure of equipment or processes;

difficulty or inability to find suitable replacement parts for equipment;

the unavailability of sufficient quantities of waste;

decreases in the fees for solid waste disposal;

5

Table of Contents

decreases in the demand or market prices for recovered ferrous or non-ferrous metal;

disruption in the transmission of electricity generated;

permitting and other regulatory issues, license revocation and changes in legal requirements;

labor disputes and work stoppages;

unforeseen engineering and environmental problems;

unanticipated cost overruns;

weather interferences, catastrophic events including fires, explosions, earthquakes, droughts and acts of terrorism;

the exercise of the power of eminent domain; and

performance below expected levels of output or efficiency.

We cannot predict the impact of these risks on Covanta s business or operations. These risks, if they were to occur, could prevent Covanta from meeting its obligations under its operating agreements. In addition, although Covanta maintains insurance to protect it against operating risks, the proceeds from its insurance policies may not be adequate to cover lost revenues or increased expenses.

Covanta s insurance and contractual protections may not always cover lost revenues, increased expenses or liquidated damages payments.

Although Covanta maintains insurance, obtains warranties from vendors, requires contractors to meet certain performance levels and attempts, where feasible, to pass risks Covanta cannot control to the service recipient or output purchaser, the proceeds of such insurance, warranties, performance guarantees or risk sharing arrangements may not be adequate to cover lost revenues, increased expenses or liquidated damages payments.

Performance reductions could materially and adversely affect Covanta, and its projects may operate at lower levels than expected.

Most service agreements for Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities provide for limitations on damages and cross-indemnities among the parties for damages that such parties may incur in connection with their performance under the contract. In most cases, such contractual provisions excuse Covanta from performance obligations to the extent affected by uncontrollable circumstances and provide for service fee adjustments if uncontrollable circumstances increase its costs. We cannot assure you that these provisions will prevent Covanta from incurring losses upon the occurrence of uncontrollable circumstances or that if Covanta were to incur such losses it would continue to be able to service its debt.

Covanta and certain of its subsidiaries have issued or are party to performance guarantees and related contractual obligations associated with its waste-to-energy, independent power, and water facilities. With respect to its domestic businesses, Covanta has issued guarantees to its municipal clients and other parties that Covanta subsidiaries will perform in accordance with contractual terms, including, where required, the payment of damages or other obligations. The obligations guaranteed will depend upon the contract involved. Many of Covanta subsidiaries have contracts to operate and maintain waste-to-energy facilities. In these contracts the subsidiary typically commits to operate and maintain the facility in compliance with legal requirements; to accept minimum amounts of solid waste; to generate a minimum amount of electricity per ton of waste; and to pay damages to contract counterparties under specified circumstances, including those where the operating subsidiary subsidiary subsidiary of contract has been terminated for default. Any contractual damages or other obligations incurred by Covanta could be material, and in circumstances where one or more subsidiary subsidiary

damages or other obligations. We cannot assure you that Covanta

6

Table of Contents

will be able to continue to avoid incurring material payment obligations under such guarantees or that if it did incur such obligations that it would have the cash resources to pay them.

With respect to the international projects, Covanta Power International Holdings, Inc., referred to in this prospectus as CPIH, Covanta and certain of Covanta is domestic subsidiaries have issued guarantees of CPIH is operating obligations. The potential damages that may be owed under these guarantees may be material. Covanta is generally entitled to be reimbursed by CPIH for any payments it may make under guarantees related to international projects; however we cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to collect any amount owed to it by CPIH.

Covanta generates its revenue primarily under long-term contracts and must avoid defaults under its contracts in order to service its debt and avoid material liability to contract counterparties.

Covanta must satisfy its performance and other obligations under contracts governing waste-to-energy facilities. These contracts typically require Covanta to meet certain performance criteria relating to amounts of waste processed, energy generation rates per ton of waste processed, residue quantity, and environmental standards. Covanta s failure to satisfy these criteria may subject it to termination of its operating contracts. If such a termination were to occur, Covanta would lose the cash flow related to the project and incur material termination damage liability. In circumstances where the contract of one or more subsidiaries has been terminated due to Covanta s default, Covanta may not have sufficient sources of cash to pay such damages. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to continue to perform its obligations under such contracts in order to avoid such contract terminations, or damages related to any such contract termination, or that if it could not avoid such terminations that it would have the cash resources to pay amounts that may then become due.

Covanta may face increased risk of market influences on its domestic revenues after its contracts expire.

Covanta s contracts to operate waste-to-energy projects expire on various dates between 2007 and 2023 and its contracts to sell energy output generally expire when the project s operating contract expires. One of Covanta s contracts will expire in 2007. During the twelve-month period January 1 to December 31, 2004, this contract contributed \$12.5 million in revenues. Expiration of these contracts will subject Covanta to greater market risk in maintaining and enhancing its revenue. As its operating contracts at municipally-owned projects approach expiration, Covanta will seek to enter into renewal or replacement contracts to continue operating such projects. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to enter into renewal or replacement contracts on favorable terms to us, or at all. Covanta will seek to bid competitively in the market for additional contracts to operate other facilities as similar contracts of other vendors expire. The expiration of Covanta s existing energy sales contracts, if not renewed, will require Covanta to sell project energy output either into the electricity grid or pursuant to new contracts.

At some of Covanta s facilities, market conditions may allow Covanta to effect extensions of existing operating contracts along with facility expansions. Such extensions and expansions are currently being considered at a limited number of Covanta s facilities in conjunction with its municipal clients. If Covanta were unable to reach agreement with its municipal clients on the terms under which it would implement such extensions and expansions, or if the implementation of these extensions and expansions is materially delayed, this may adversely affect Covanta s cash flow and profitability.

Covanta s cash flow and profitability may be adversely affected if it is unable to obtain contracts acceptable to it for such renewals, replacements or additional contracts, or extension and expansion contracts. We cannot assure you that Covanta will be able to enter into such contracts or that the terms available in the market at the time will be favorable to Covanta.

Concentration of suppliers and customers may expose Covanta to heightened financial exposure.

Covanta often relies on single suppliers and single customers at Covanta s facilities, exposing such facilities to financial risks if any supplier or customer should fail to perform its obligations.

/

Table of Contents

Covanta often relies on a single supplier to provide waste, fuel, water and other services required to operate a facility and on a single customer or a few customers to purchase all or a significant portion of a facility s output. In most cases Covanta has long-term agreements with such suppliers and customers in order to mitigate the risk of supply interruption. The financial performance of these facilities depends on such customers and suppliers continuing to perform their obligations under their long-term agreements. A facility s financial results could be materially and adversely affected if any one customer or supplier fails to fulfill its contractual obligations and Covanta is unable to find other customers or suppliers to produce the same level of profitability. We cannot assure you that such performance failures by third parties will not occur, or that if they do occur, such failures will not adversely affect Covanta s cash flow or profitability.

In addition, for its waste-to-energy facilities, Covanta relies on its municipal clients as a source not only of waste for fuel but also of revenue from fees for disposal services Covanta provides. Because Covanta s contracts with its municipal clients are generally long term, Covanta may be adversely affected if the credit quality of one or more of its municipal clients were to decline materially.

Covanta s international businesses emerged from bankruptcy with a large amount of debt, and we cannot assure you that its cash flow from international operations will be sufficient to pay this debt.

Covanta s subsidiary holding the equity interests in its international businesses, CPIH, is also highly leveraged, and its debt will be serviced solely from the cash generated from the international operations. Cash distributions from international projects are typically less dependable as to timing and amount than distributions from domestic projects, and we cannot assure you that CPIH will have sufficient cash flow from operations or other sources to pay the principal or interest due on its debt. As of March 31, 2005, Covanta s outstanding international debt was \$178 million, consisting of \$77 million of CPIH recourse debt and \$101 million of project debt.

Although CPIH is currently not in default under its debt covenants, CPIH s ability to service its debt will depend upon:

its ability to continue to operate and maintain its facilities consistent with historical performance levels;

stable foreign political environments that do not resort to expropriation, contract renegotiations or currency or exchange changes;

the financial ability of the electric and steam purchasers to pay the full contractual tariffs on a timely basis;

the ability of its international project subsidiaries to maintain compliance with their respective project debt covenants in order to make equity distributions to CPIH; and

its ability to sell existing projects in an amount sufficient to repay CPIH indebtedness at or prior to its maturity in March 2007, or to refinance its indebtedness at or prior to such maturity.

For a more detailed discussion of CPIH s international debt covenants, please see Item 7 of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended, and Item 7 of Covanta s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, as amended. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

CPIH s debt is due in March 2007, and it will need to refinance its debt or obtain cash from other sources to repay this debt at maturity.

Covanta believes that cash from CPIH s operations, together with liquidity available under CPIH s revolving credit facility, will provide CPIH with sufficient liquidity to meet its needs for cash, including cash to pay debt service on CPIH s debt prior to maturity in March 2007. Covanta believes that CPIH

Table of Contents

will not have sufficient cash from its operations and its revolving credit facility to pay off its debt at maturity, and so if it is unable to generate sufficient additional cash from asset sales or other sources, CPIH will need to refinance its debt at or prior to maturity. While CPIH s debt is non-recourse to Covanta, it is secured by a pledge of Covanta s stock in CPIH and CPIH s equity interests in certain of its subsidiaries. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms, or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

CPIH s assets and cash flow will not be available to Covanta.

Although CPIH s results of operations are consolidated with Danielson s and Covanta s for financial reporting purposes, as long as the existing CPIH term loan and revolver remain outstanding, CPIH is restricted under its existing credit agreements from distributing cash to Covanta. Under these agreements, CPIH s cash may only be used for CPIH s purposes and to service CPIH s debt. Accordingly, although reported on Danielson s and Covanta s consolidated financial statements, Covanta does not have access to CPIH s revenues or cash flows and will have access only to Covanta s domestically generated cash flows. While we have financing commitments to refinance Covanta s debt, and to repay CPIH s debt entirely, in connection with the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance CPIH s debt on acceptable terms or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

A sale or transfer of CPIH or its assets may not be sufficient to repay CPIH indebtedness.

Although CPIH s results of operations are consolidated with Danielson s and Covanta s for financial reporting purposes, due to CPIH s indebtedness and the terms of Covanta s credit agreements, CPIH s cash flow is available only to repay CPIH s debt. Similarly, in the event that CPIH determines that it is desirable to sell or transfer all or any portion of its assets or business, the proceeds would first be applied to reduce CPIH s debt. We cannot assure you that the proceeds of any such sale would be sufficient to repay all of CPIH s debt, consisting of principal and accrued interest or, if sufficient to repay CPIH s debt, that such proceeds would offset the loss of CPIH s revenues and earnings as reported by Danielson and Covanta in their respective consolidated financial statements.

Although Danielson has received a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston for a debt financing package for Covanta necessary to finance the acquisition of Ref-Fuel, as well as to refinance the existing recourse debt of Covanta and repay all of CPIH s recourse debt, such financing is contingent upon consummation of the Ref-Fuel acquisition. We cannot assure you that this financing will close. In the absence of a successful closing of the Ref-Fuel acquisition and its related financing, we cannot assure you that CPIH will be able to obtain refinancing on acceptable terms, or at all, either in conjunction with the Ref-Fuel acquisition or otherwise.

Exposure to international economic and political factors may materially and adversely affect Covanta s business.

CPIH s operations are entirely outside the United States and expose it to legal, tax, currency, inflation, convertibility and repatriation risks, as well as potential constraints on the development and operation of potential business, any of which can limit the benefits to CPIH of a foreign project. For the twelve months ended March 31, 2005, CPIH contributed \$131.1 million, or 19.0% to Covanta s consolidated revenues.

CPIH s projected cash distributions from existing facilities over the next five years comes from facilities located in countries with sovereign ratings below investment grade, including Bangladesh, the Philippines and India. In addition, Covanta continues to provide operating guarantees and letters of credit for certain of CPIH s projects, which if drawn upon would require CPIH to reimburse Covanta for any

9

Table of Contents

related payments it may be required to make. The financing, development and operation of projects outside the United States can entail significant political and financial risks, which vary by country, including:

changes in law or regulations;

changes in electricity tariffs;

changes in foreign tax laws and regulations;

changes in United States, federal, state and local laws, including tax laws, related to foreign operations;

compliance with United States, federal, state and local foreign corrupt practices laws;

changes in government policies or personnel;

changes in general economic conditions affecting each country, including conditions in financial markets;

changes in labor relations in operations outside the United States;

political, economic or military instability and civil unrest; and

expropriation and confiscation of assets and facilities.

The legal and financial environment in foreign countries in which CPIH currently owns assets or projects also could make it more difficult for it to enforce its rights under agreements relating to such projects.

In addition, the existence of the operating guarantees and letters of credit provided by Covanta for CPIH projects could expose it to any or all of the risks identified above with respect to the CPIH projects, particularly if CPIH s cash flow or other sources of liquidity are insufficient to reimburse Covanta for amounts due under such instruments. As a result, these risks may have a material adverse effect on Covanta s business, consolidated financial condition and results of operations and on CPIH s ability to service its debt.

Exposure to foreign currency fluctuations may affect Covanta s costs of operations.

CPIH participates in projects in jurisdictions where limitations on the convertibility and expatriation of currency have been lifted by the host country and where such local currency is freely exchangeable on the international markets. In most cases, components of project costs incurred or funded in the currency of the United States are recovered with limited exposure to currency fluctuations through negotiated contractual adjustments to the price charged for electricity or service provided. This contractual structure may cause the cost in local currency to the project s power purchaser or service recipient to rise from time to time in excess of local inflation. As a result, there is a risk in such situations that such power purchaser or service recipient will, at least in the near term, be less able or willing to pay for the project s power or service.

Exposure to fuel supply prices may affect CPIH s costs and results of operations.

Changes in the market prices and availability of fuel supplies to generate electricity may increase CPIH s cost of producing power, which could adversely impact our profitability and financial performance.

The market prices and availability of fuel supplies of some of CPIH s facilities fluctuate. Any price increase, delivery disruption or reduction in the availability of such supplies could affect CPIH s ability to operate its facilities and impair its cash flow and profitability. CPIH may be subject to further exposure if any of its future operations are concentrated in facilities using fuel types subject to fluctuating market prices and availability. Covanta may not be successful in its efforts to mitigate its exposure to supply and price swings.

10

Table of Contents

Covanta s inability to obtain resources for operations may adversely affect its ability to effectively compete.

Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities depend on solid waste for fuel, which provides a source of revenue. For most of Covanta s facilities, the prices it charges for disposal of solid waste are fixed under long-term contracts and the supply is guaranteed by sponsoring municipalities. However, for some of Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities, the availability of solid waste to Covanta, as well as the tipping fee that Covanta must charge to attract solid waste to its facilities, depends upon competition from a number of sources such as other waste-to-energy facilities, landfills and transfer stations competing for waste in the market area. In addition, Covanta may need to obtain waste on a competitive basis as its long-term contracts expire at its owned facilities. There has been consolidation and there may be further consolidation in the solid waste industry which would reduce the number of solid waste collectors or haulers that are competing for disposal facilities or enable such collectors or haulers to use wholesale purchasing to negotiate favorable below-market disposal rates. The consolidation in the solid waste industry has resulted in companies with vertically integrated collection activities and disposal facilities. Such consolidation may result in economies of scale for those companies as well as the use of disposal capacity at facilities owned by such companies or by affiliated companies. Such activities can affect both the availability of waste to Covanta for disposal at some of Covanta s waste-to-energy facilities and market pricing.

Compliance with environmental laws could adversely affect Covanta s results of operations.

Costs of compliance with federal, state and local existing and future environmental regulations could adversely affect Covanta s cash flow and profitability. Covanta s business is subject to extensive environmental regulation by federal, state and local authorities, primarily relating to air, waste (including residual ash from combustion) and water. Covanta is required to comply with numerous environmental laws and regulations and to obtain numerous governmental permits in operating Covanta s facilities. Covanta may incur significant additional costs to comply with these requirements. Environmental regulations may also limit Covanta s ability to operate Covanta s facilities at maximum capacity, or at all. If Covanta fails to comply with these requirements, Covanta could be subject to civil or criminal liability, damages and fines. Existing environmental regulations could be revised or reinterpreted and new laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable to Covanta or its facilities, and future changes in environmental laws and regulations could occur. This may materially increase the amount Covanta must invest to bring its facilities into compliance. In addition, lawsuits or enforcement actions by federal and/or other regulatory agencies may materially increase our costs. Stricter environmental regulation of air emissions, solid waste handling or combustion, residual ash handling and disposal, and waste water discharge could materially affect Covanta s cash flow and profitability.

Covanta may not be able to obtain or maintain, from time to time, all required environmental regulatory approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory approvals or if Covanta fails to obtain and comply with them, the operation of Covanta s facilities could be jeopardized or become subject to additional costs.

Federal energy regulation could adversely affect Covanta s revenues and costs of operations.

Covanta s business is subject to extensive energy regulations by federal and state authorities. The economics, including the costs, of operating Covanta s facilities may be adversely affected by any changes in these regulations or in their interpretation or implementation or any future inability to comply with existing or future regulations or requirements.

The Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, commonly referred to as PUHCA, and the Federal Power Act, commonly referred to as FPA, regulate public utility holding companies and their subsidiaries and place constraints on the conduct of their business. The FPA regulates wholesale sales of electricity and the transmission of electricity in interstate commerce by public utilities. Under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, commonly referred to as PURPA, Covanta s domestic facilities

11

Table of Contents

are exempt from regulations under PUHCA, most provisions of the FPA and state rate regulation. Covanta s foreign projects are also exempt from regulation under PUHCA.

If Covanta becomes subject to either the FPA or PUHCA, the economics and operations of Covanta's energy projects could be adversely affected, including as a result of rate regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, commonly known as FERC, with respect to its output of electricity, which could result in lower prices for sales of electricity. If an alternative exemption from PUHCA was not available, Covanta could be subject to substantial regulation by the SEC as a public utility holding company and may incur material administrative costs to comply with additional regulatory requirements. In addition, depending on the terms of the project's power purchase agreement, a loss of Covanta's exemptions could allow the power purchaser to cease taking and paying for electricity under existing contracts or to seek refunds of past amounts paid. Such results could cause the loss of some or all contract revenues or otherwise impair the value of a project and could trigger defaults under provisions of the applicable project contracts and financing agreements. Defaults under such financing agreements could render the underlying debt immediately due and payable. Under such circumstances, Covanta cannot assure you that revenues received, the costs incurred, or both, in connection with the project could be recovered through sales to other purchasers.

Failure to obtain regulatory approvals could adversely affect Covanta s operations.

Covanta is continually in the process of obtaining or renewing federal, state and local approvals required to operate Covanta s facilities. While Covanta currently has all necessary operating approvals, Covanta may not always be able to obtain all required regulatory approvals, and Covanta may not be able to obtain any necessary modifications to existing regulatory approvals or maintain all required regulatory approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any required regulatory approvals or if Covanta fails to obtain and comply with any required regulatory approvals, the operation of Covanta s facilities or the sale of electricity to third parties could be prevented, made subject to additional regulation or subject Covanta to additional costs.

The energy industry is becoming increasingly competitive, and Covanta might not successfully respond to these changes.

Covanta may not be able to respond in a timely or effective manner to the changes resulting in increased competition in the energy industry in both domestic and international markets. These changes may include deregulation of the electric utility industry in some markets, privatization of the electric utility industry in other markets and increasing competition in all markets. To the extent U.S. competitive pressures increase and the pricing and sale of electricity assumes more characteristics of a commodity business, the economics of Covanta s business may come under increasing pressure. Regulatory initiatives in foreign countries where Covanta has or will have operations involve the same types of risks.

Changes in laws and regulations affecting the solid waste and the energy industries could adversely affect Covanta s business.

Covanta s business is highly regulated. Covanta cannot predict whether the federal or state governments or foreign governments will adopt legislation or regulations relating to the solid waste or energy industries. These laws and regulations can result in increased capital, operating and other costs to Covanta, particularly with regard to enforcement efforts. The introduction of new laws or other future regulatory developments that increase the costs of operation or capital to Covanta may have a material adverse effect on Covanta s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Insurance Services Specific Risks

Insurance regulations may affect NAICC s operations.

The insurance industry is highly regulated. NAICC is subject to regulation by state and federal regulators, and a significant portion of NAICC s operations are subject to regulation by the state of

Table of Contents

California. Changes in existing insurance regulations or adoption of new regulations or laws which could affect NAICC s results of operations and financial condition may include, without limitation, proposed changes to California regulations regarding a broker s fiduciary duty to select the best carrier for an insured, extension of California s Low Cost Automobile Program beyond Los Angeles and San Francisco counties and changes to California s workers compensation laws. We cannot predict the impact of changes in existing insurance regulations or adoption of new regulations or laws on NAICC s results of operations and financial condition.

The insurance products sold by NAICC are subject to intense competition.

The insurance products sold by NAICC are subject to intense competition from many competitors, many of whom have substantially greater resources than NAICC. The California non-standard personal automobile marketplace consists of over 100 carriers.

In order to decrease rates, insurers in California must obtain the prior permission for rate reductions from the California Department of Insurance. In lieu of requesting rate decreases, competitors may soften underwriting standards as an alternative means of attracting new business. Such tactics, should they occur, would introduce new levels of risk for NAICC and could limit NAICC s ability to write new policies or renew existing profitable policies. We cannot assure you that NAICC will be able to successfully compete in these markets and generate sufficient premium volume at attractive prices to be profitable. This risk is enhanced by the reduction in lines of business NAICC writes as a result of its decision to reduce underwriting operations.

If NAICC s loss experience exceeds its estimates, additional capital may be required.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are based on estimates of reported losses, historical company experience of losses reported for reinsurance assumed and historical company experience for unreported claims. Such liability is, by necessity, based on estimates that may change in the near term. NAICC cannot assure you that the ultimate liabilities will not exceed, or even materially exceed, the amounts estimated. If the ultimate liability materially exceeds estimates, then additional capital may be required to be contributed to some of our insurance subsidiaries. NAICC and the other insurance subsidiaries received additional capital contributions from Danielson in 2003 and 2002, and NAICC cannot provide any assurance that it and its subsidiaries will be able to obtain such additional capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

In addition, due to the fact that NAICC and its other insurance subsidiaries are in the process of running off several significant lines of business, the risk of adverse development and the subsequent requirement to obtain additional capital is heightened.

Failure to satisfy capital adequacy and risk-based capital requirements would require NAICC to obtain additional capital.

NAICC is subject to regulatory risk-based capital requirements. Depending on its risk-based capital, NAICC could be subject to various levels of increasing regulatory intervention ranging from company action to mandatory control by insurance regulatory authorities. NAICC s capital and surplus is also one factor used to determine its ability to distribute or loan funds to us. If NAICC has insufficient capital and surplus, as determined under the risk-based capital test, it will need to obtain additional capital to establish additional reserves. NAICC cannot provide any assurance that it will be able to obtain such additional capital on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus contain forward-looking statements as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Any statements that express or involve discussions as to expectations, beliefs and plans

13

Table of Contents

involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results to materially differ from those considered by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include: our ability to fund our capital requirements in the near term and in the long term; and other factors, risks and uncertainties that are described in this prospectus and Covanta s and our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. As a result, no assurances can be given as to future results, levels of activity and achievements. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements were made. Neither we nor Covanta undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law.

14

Table of Contents

DANIELSON S BUSINESS

We are a holding company incorporated in Delaware. Substantially all of our current operations were conducted in the insurance services industry prior to our acquisition of Covanta in March 2004. We engage in insurance operations through our indirect subsidiaries, NAICC and related entities. A significant portion of our losses in the past three years stem from lines of insurance business, such as commercial automobile and worker s compensation insurance, which we have ceased actively underwriting. Our insurance operations under NAICC and related subsidiaries reported segment losses of \$0.8 million, \$10.2 million and \$10.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Our strategy has been to grow by making strategic acquisitions. Such acquisitions have not and may not complement our existing operations. They also have not and may not be related to our current businesses. As part of this corporate strategy, we have sought acquisition opportunities, such as the acquisition of Covanta and our pending acquisition of Ref-Fuel, which management believes will enable us to earn an attractive return on our investment.

As a result of the consummation of the Covanta acquisition on March 10, 2004, our future performance will predominantly reflect the performance of Covanta s operations which are significantly larger than our other operations. As a result, the nature of our business, the risks attendant to such business and the trends that it will face will be significantly altered by the acquisition of Covanta. Accordingly, our prior financial results will not be comparable to our future results.

In May 2002, we acquired a 100% ownership interest in ACL, thereby entering into the marine transportation, construction and related service provider businesses. On January 31, 2003, ACL and many of its subsidiaries and its immediate direct parent entity, American Commercial Lines Holdings, LLC, referred to in this prospectus as ACL Holdings, filed a petition with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Indiana to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. We wrote off our remaining investment in ACL at the end of the first quarter of 2003 as an other than temporary asset impairment.

As a result of ACL s bankruptcy filing, beginning in the year ended December 31, 2003, we accounted for our investment in ACL under the equity method, reflecting our significant influence, but not control, over ACL. On December 30, 2004, a plan of reorganization for ACL was confirmed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Indiana. At the time of confirmation, there were no material conditions that needed to be fulfilled for emergence and consequently, as a result of the confirmation of ACL s plan of reorganization, for purposes of generally accepted accounting principles, all of our equity interests in ACL were canceled. On January 10, 2005, ACL emerged from Chapter 11 proceedings and upon emergence a warrant was issued to us under the plan of reorganization to purchase up to 3% of the common stock of ACL at a price of \$12.00 per share.

As of October 6, 2004, we sold our 5.4% interest and ACL sold its 50% interest in Global Materials Services, LLC.

As of the end of 2004, we reported aggregate consolidated NOLs for federal income tax purposes of approximately \$516 million. These losses will expire over the course of the next 18 years unless utilized prior thereto. These NOLs are primarily from the taxable results of certain grantor trusts established in 1990 as part of a reorganization from which Mission Insurance Group emerged from bankruptcy as Danielson. These trusts were created for the purpose of assuming various liabilities of their grantors and certain present and former subsidiaries of Danielson, allowing state regulators to administer the run off of the Mission Insurance Group business while releasing Danielson and certain of its present and former subsidiaries from the proceedings free of claims and liabilities, including obligation to provide for the funding to the trusts.

Our principal executive offices are located at 40 Lane Road, Fairfield, New Jersey 07004 and our telephone number is (973) 882-9000.

15

Table of Contents

COVANTA S BUSINESS

Covanta develops, constructs, owns and operates for itself and others infrastructure for the conversion of waste to energy, independent power production and the treatment of water and wastewater in the United States and abroad. Covanta owns or operates 49 power generation facilities, 37 of which are in the United States and 12 of which are located outside of the United States. Covanta s power generation facilities use a variety of fuels, including municipal solid waste, water (hydroelectric), natural gas, coal, wood waste, landfill gas and heavy fuel oil. Covanta operates water or wastewater treatment facilities, all of which are located in the United States. Until September 1999, and under prior management, Covanta was also actively involved in the entertainment and aviation services industries.

Covanta s current principal business units are domestic and international energy.

On March 10, 2004, Covanta and most of its domestic affiliates consummated a plan of reorganization and emerged from their reorganization proceedings under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As a result of the consummation of the plan, Covanta is our wholly-owned subsidiary. The Covanta bankruptcy commenced on April 1, 2002, when Covanta and 123 of its domestic subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York. After the first petition date, 32 additional subsidiaries filed their Chapter 11 petitions for relief under the Bankruptcy Code. Prior to emergence, the debtors under the Chapter 11 cases operated their business as debtors-in-possession pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code.

AMERICAN REF-FUEL HOLDINGS CORP. ACQUISITION

As of January 31, 2005, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Ref-Fuel, an owner and operator of waste-to-energy facilities in the northeast United States, and Ref-Fuel s stockholders to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Ref-Fuel capital stock. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we will pay \$740 million in cash for the stock of Ref-Fuel and will assume the consolidated net debt of Ref-Fuel, which as of March 31, 2005 was approximately \$1.2 billion. After the transaction is completed, Ref-Fuel will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covanta.

The acquisition is expected to close after all of the closing conditions to the purchase agreement obligations have been satisfied or waived. These closing conditions include receipt of approvals, consents and the satisfaction of all waiting periods as required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and as required by certain governmental authorities, such as FERC, and other applicable regulatory authorities. On March 21, 2005, we received notice of early termination of the waiting period and on March 29, 2005, we received FERC approval. We have also received all other regulatory approvals. Other closing conditions of the transaction include our completion of the debt financing and an equity rights offering, as further described below, our entering into letter of credit or other financial accommodations in the aggregate amount of \$100 million to replace two currently outstanding letters of credit that have been entered into by two respective subsidiaries of Ref-Fuel and issued in favor of a third subsidiary of Ref-Fuel, and other customary closing conditions. While it is anticipated that all of the applicable conditions will be satisfied, there can be no assurance as to whether or when all of those conditions will be satisfied or, where permissible, waived.

Either we or the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel may terminate the purchase agreement if the acquisition does not occur on or before June 30, 2005, but if a required governmental or regulatory approval has not been received by such date or there shall be a pending governmental proceeding to enjoin or otherwise prevent the consummation of the acquisition, then either party may extend the closing to a date that is no later than the later of August 31, 2005 or the date 25 days after which Ref-Fuel has provided us with certain financial statements described in the purchase agreement.

If the purchase agreement is terminated because of our failure to complete the rights offering and financing as described below, and all other closing conditions are capable of being satisfied, then we must pay to the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel a termination fee of \$25 million, of which no less than \$10 million shall be paid in cash and of which up to \$15 million may be paid in shares of our common

16

Table of Contents

stock, at our election, based upon a price of \$8.13 per share. As of the date of the purchase agreement, we entered into a registration rights agreement granting registration rights to the selling stockholders of Ref-Fuel with respect to such termination fee stock and we deposited \$10 million in cash in an escrow account pursuant to the terms of an escrow agreement.

We intend to finance this transaction through a combination of debt and equity financing. The equity component of the financing is expected to consist of an approximately \$400 million offering of warrants or other rights to purchase our common stock to all of our existing stockholders at \$6.00 per share, which we refer to in this prospectus as the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering. In the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering our existing stockholders will be issued rights to purchase our common stock on a pro rata basis, with each holder entitled to purchase approximately 0.9 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00 per full share for each share of our common stock then held.

SZ Investments, Third Avenue, and Laminar, representing ownership of approximately 40.6% of our outstanding common stock, have committed to participate in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering and acquire their respective pro rata portion of the shares. As consideration for their commitments, we will pay each of these stockholders an amount equal to 1.5% to 2.25% of their respective equity commitments, depending on the timing of the transaction. We also agreed to amend an existing registration rights agreement to provide these stockholders with the right to demand that we undertake an underwritten offering within twelve months of the closing of the acquisition of Ref-Fuel in order to provide such stockholders with liquidity.

We also expect to complete our previously announced 9.25% Offering under which we will offer up to 3.0 million shares of our common stock at a price of \$1.53 per share to certain holders of 9.25% debentures issued by Covanta, who voted in favor of Covanta s second plan of reorganization on January 12, 2004. We have executed a letter agreement with Laminar pursuant to which we agreed to restructure the 9.25% Offering if that offering has not closed prior to the record date for the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering so that the holders that participate in the 9.25% Offering are offered up to an aggregate of 2.7 million additional shares of our common stock at the same \$6.00 per share purchase price as in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering. We have filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the 9.25% Offering which registration has not been declared effective, and such offering has not commenced as of the date of this filing.

Assuming exercise of all rights in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering and the purchase of all shares offered in the 9.25% Offering, we estimate that we will have approximately 146.6 million shares outstanding following the consummation of both rights offerings.

We have received a commitment from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston for a debt financing package for Covanta necessary to finance the acquisition, as well as to refinance the existing recourse debt of Covanta and provide additional liquidity for us. This financing shall consist of two tranches, each of which is secured by pledges of the stock of Covanta subsidiaries that has not otherwise been pledged, guarantees from certain of Covanta subsidiaries and all other available assets of Covanta subsidiaries. The first tranche, a first priority senior secured bank facility, is expected to be made up of a \$250 million term loan facility, a \$100 million revolving credit facility and a \$340 million letter of credit facility. The second tranche, a second priority senior secured term loan facility due 2013, is expected to be in the principal amount of \$425 million, up to \$212.5 million of which may be replaced with fixed rate notes within 120 days after the closing of the financing without premium or penalty.

The closing of the financing and receipt of proceeds under the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering are closing conditions under the purchase agreement. The proceeds that must be received by us in the Ref-Fuel Rights Offering will be equal to the difference between \$399 million and the sum of the cash contributed as common equity to Covanta by us from our unrestricted cash, and not more than \$25 million of cash from Covanta.

Immediately upon closing of the acquisition, Ref-Fuel will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covanta, and Covanta will control the management and operations of the Ref-Fuel facilities. The current project and other debt of Ref-Fuel subsidiaries will not be refinanced in connection with the acquisition,

17

Table of Contents

except to the extent certain subsidiaries of Ref-Fuel may be required to repurchase outstanding notes from existing holders. The amount of notes repurchased, if any, may not exceed \$425 million. Our existing commitments from Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston provide sufficient financing for any such repurchases. In addition, existing revolving credit and letter of credit facility of American Ref-Fuel Company LLC (the direct parent of each Ref-Fuel project company) will be cancelled and replaced with the new facilities, described above, at the Covanta level.

We estimate that there will be approximately \$45 million in aggregate transaction expenses, including customary underwriting and commitment fees, relating to the first and second tranches described above. To the extent that Ref-Fuel subsidiaries are required to repurchase notes as described above, we will incur additional commitment fees on the notes repurchased, plus additional transaction costs relating to such repurchases. The amount of such additional fees and transaction costs will depend on whether and to what extent any such repurchases are required.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete the acquisition of Ref-Fuel.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to be received from the exercise of the warrants will be used to fund acquisitions and for general corporate purposes, including working capital.

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

We are authorized to issue 160,000,000 shares of capital stock. The number of shares of common stock authorized is 150,000,000 with each share having a par value of \$0.10. We also have 10,000,000 shares of authorized preferred stock

Voting Rights

Each holder of an outstanding share of our common stock is entitled to cast one vote for each share registered. Any consolidation or merger pursuant to which shares of our common stock would be converted into or exchanged for any securities or other consideration, would require the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of the common stock holders.

Dividends

Subject to the rights and preferences of any outstanding preferred stock and limitations imposed by the note purchase agreement, we will award dividends on common stock payable out of our funds if and when our board of directors declares them. However, we will not pay any dividend, set aside payment for dividends, or distribute on common stock unless:

we have paid or set apart all accrued and unpaid dividends for the preferred stock and any stock ranking on its parity; and

we have set apart sufficient funds for the payment of the dividends for the current dividend period with respect to the preferred stock and any of the stock ranking on its parity.

Rights in Liquidation

Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, all holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in any assets available for distribution to holders of our common stock, after payment of any preferential amounts due to the holders of any series of our preferred stock.

Preemptive Rights

Shares of our common stock do not entitle a stockholder to any preemptive rights to purchase additional shares of our common stock.

18

Table of Contents

Transfer Restrictions

Our common stock is subject to the following transfer restrictions: No holder of 5% or more of our common stock, including any holder who proposes to acquire common stock which would result in that holder owning 5% or more of our common stock, may purchase or receive additional shares of our common stock, or sell or transfer any of our shares of common stock, without our determining that the transaction will not result in, or create an unreasonable risk of, an ownership change within the meaning of Section 382(g) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any similar provisions relating to preservation of our NOLs. This 5% limitation on ownership of stock may preserve effective control of us by our principal stockholders and preserve our board s and management s tenure.

In order to ensure compliance with this restriction, and to establish a procedure for processing the requests of a 5% stockholder to acquire or transfer common stock, as described in Article Fifth of our certificate of incorporation the following provisions apply to all 5% stockholders:

<u>Delivery of Shares and Escrow Receipts</u>. We will issue all shares of common stock of a 5% stockholder in the name of Danielson Holding Corporation, as Escrow Agent and we will hold them in escrow. In lieu of certificates reflecting ownership of the escrowed common stock, we will issue the 5% stockholders an escrow receipt reflecting their beneficial ownership of common stock and recording ownership of the escrowed stock. Escrow receipts are non-transferable. The 5% stockholders retain full voting and dividend rights for all escrowed stock.

<u>Duration of Our Holding the Escrowed Stock</u>. As escrow agent, we hold all shares of escrowed stock until the termination of the escrow account. If a 5% stockholder desires to transfer escrowed stock to a non-5% stockholder, we will hold all shares of escrowed stock until we receive a favorable opinion from our tax counsel that the transfer may be made without creating an unreasonable risk of resulting in an ownership change under the tax law.

<u>Acquisitions and Transfers</u>. We will treat all requests by 5% stockholders to acquire or transfer escrowed stock on a first to request, first to receive basis. All requests must be in writing and delivered to us at our principal executive office, attention General Counsel, by registered mail, return receipt requested, or by hand. In the event that we are unable to conclude that a requested acquisition or transfer can be made without an ownership change under the tax law, then provided the 5% stockholder has acquired our common stock in accordance with the procedures set forth in our certificate of corporation:

we will advise the requesting party in writing; and

we will approve any subsequent request by other 5% stockholders of a type that we had previously denied only after we give all previously denied requests (in the order denied) the opportunity to complete the previously desired transaction. In addition, we may approve any requested transaction in any order of receipt if, in our business judgment, the transaction is in our best interests.

<u>Termination of the Stock Escrow Account</u>. The stock escrow will terminate upon the first to occur of the following: we conclude that the restrictions are no longer necessary in order to avoid a loss of the NOLs;

the NOLs are no longer available to us; or

our board concludes, in its business judgment, that preservation of the NOLs are no longer in our interest. Upon termination of the stock escrow, each 5% stockholder will receive a notice that the stock escrow has been terminated and will receive a common stock certificate evidencing ownership of the previously escrowed stock.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that we are held harmless and released from any liability to 5% stockholders arising from our actions as escrow agent, except for liabilities arising from our intentional misconduct. In performing our duties we are entitled to rely upon the written advice of our tax counsel

19

Table of Contents

and our other experts. In the event that we require further advice regarding our role as escrow agent, we may deposit the escrowed stock at issue with a court of competent jurisdiction and make further transfers in a manner consistent with the rulings of the court.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

General

We will issue warrants to our stockholders from time to time. The warrants will have such terms, including exercise price and exercise period and number of shares issuable upon exercise of warrants as will be described in the prospectus supplement that will accompany this prospectus.

Exercise Price and Terms

At this time, we anticipate that the exercise price will be at some discount from the then current market price for the securities. In making the determination of the size of this discount, we will consider the stock s trading price immediately before the warrant issuance date, the stock s recent and past historical price, and the level of discount necessary to create the desired level of participation. In addition, we will consider the purposes to which the proceeds of the offering are anticipated to go. We reserve the right to set any appropriate exercise price given our needs and the purposes of the offering. Both those needs and the purposes will be discussed further in the prospectus supplement that will accompany this prospectus.

The warrants will not be separately certificated and will be represented by the certificates for our common stock. In order to exercise warrants, we will require stockholders to deliver to the warrant agent the common stock certificates representing the warrants to be exercised. The warrant agent will hold this common stock in escrow for the stockholders. Following the expiration date, the warrant agent will return the common stock held in escrow to the stockholders. Because of this, if a stockholder exercises a warrant, the stockholder will not be able to sell or transfer his common stock until the warrant agent returns his common stock after the expiration date. We will not issue any new common stock between the issuance date and the expiration date of any series of warrants.

Adjustment of Shares Issuable upon Exercise of Warrants

We are not required to issue fractional shares of common stock upon exercise of the warrants. Instead of issuing fractional shares, we will pay a cash amount equal to the product of (A) the fraction of a share of common stock multiplied by (B) the difference between the current market price of a share of common stock and the exercise price.

Modification of The Warrant

After the issuance of warrants, we may amend the terms of those warrants only to cure an ambiguity or correct or supplement a provision which may be defective or inconsistent with other provisions. We may also add provisions relating to questions or matters which arise, additions which we and the warrant agent deem necessary or desirable and which will not adversely affect the interests of the warrantholders.

Transfer Restrictions

The warrant agent will hold the exercise price for all warrants that have been exercised in a separate escrow account. We will inform the warrant agent and will issue a press release indicating the number of warrants exercised and the number of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to the exercises. We will also require that stockholders provide us with information to allow us to determine if, as a result of the exercise of warrants, there would be a risk that any stockholder would become a 5% stockholder in Danielson. If any person would be at risk of becoming a 5% stockholder as a result of his exercise of warrants, we may in our sole discretion reduce the number of warrants exercised by that

20

Table of Contents

person so that the stockholder does not become a 5% stockholder. In addition, we may limit the exercise of warrants by 5% stockholders and we will give reasonable notice to those holders of such limitations. We will notify the warrant agent of the number of shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of the warrants. Then, the warrant agent will deliver to us the exercise price for the exercised warrants and we will issue and deliver without delay certificates for the number of full shares issuable upon the exercise of the warrants, together with any cash for fractional shares.

If our board of directors determines that the exercise of the warrants would cause an unreasonable risk of an ownership change or an unintentional result on the ownership change percentage, the board may terminate the warrants and refund the entire exercise price.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The common stock covered by this prospectus will be issued upon exercise of the warrants described above. **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements of Danielson included in Danielson s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 (including schedules appearing therein), and Danielson management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 included therein, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in its reports thereon (which conclude, among other things, that Danielson did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on *Internal Control Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, because of the effects of the material weakness described in management s assessment), included in such annual report and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements and management s assessment have been incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedules of Covanta Energy Corporation (Debtor in Possession) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2003, incorporated into this prospectus by reference from the annual report on Form 10-K/ A of Covanta Energy Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2004, have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes explanatory paragraphs relating to Covanta Energy Corporation and various domestic subsidiaries having filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Court having entered an order confirming Covanta Energy Corporation s plan of reorganization which became effective after the close of business on March 10, 2004, substantial doubt about Covanta Energy Corporation s ability to continue as a going concern, Covanta Energy Corporation s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, referred to in this prospectus as SFAS, No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations in 2003, SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets in 2002, and the restatements described in Note 35) which is incorporated by reference herein, and have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of Covanta included in Covanta s annual report on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2004, and for the periods January 1, 2004 through March 10, 2004 (Predecessor) and March 11, 2004 through December 31, 2004 (Successor) (including schedules appearing therein), and Covanta management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 included therein, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in its reports thereon (which conclude, among other things, that Covanta did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based

21

Table of Contents

on *Internal Control* Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, because of the effects of the material weakness described in management s assessment), included in such annual report, and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements and management s assessment have been incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated balance sheets of Quezon Power, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2004, incorporated by reference in this prospectus and registration statement have been audited by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co., a member practice of Ernst & Young Global, independent registered public accounting firm as set forth in its report thereon incorporated by reference in this prospectus and registration statement and is incorporated in reliance upon such report given on the authority of such firm as an expert in accounting and auditing.

The audited historical financial statements at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and the period from December 12, 2003 to December 31, 2003 of Ref-Fuel and subsidiaries included in Exhibit 99.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 7, 2005 have been incorporated herein by reference in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The audited historical financial statements for the period from January 1, 2003 to December 12, 2003 of Ref-Fuel and subsidiaries included in Exhibit 99.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 7, 2005 have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority as experts in auditing and accounting.

The consolidated financial statements of Ref-Fuel and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2002, have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. Danielson has agreed to indemnify and hold KPMG LLP harmless against and from any and all legal costs and expenses incurred by KPMG LLP in successful defense of any legal action or proceeding that arises as a result of KPMG LLP s consent to the incorporation by reference of its audit report on Ref-Fuel s past consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this registration statement.

The audited historical financial statements at December 31, 2004 and 2003, for the year ended December 31, 2004, and the period from December 12, 2003 to December 31, 2003, of Ref-Fuel Holdings LLC and subsidiaries included in Exhibit 99.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 7, 2005 have been incorporated herein by reference in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The audited historical financial statements at December 31, 2002 for the period from January 1, 2003 to December 12, 2003 and for the year ended December 31, 2002 of Ref-Fuel Holdings LLC and subsidiaries included in Exhibit 99.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 7, 2005 have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority as experts in auditing and accounting.

22

Table of Contents

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Neal, Gerber & Eisenberg LLP of Chicago, Illinois.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Danielson Holding Corporation

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 we filed with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933. You should rely only on the information or representations provided in this prospectus. We have authorized no one to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of the document.

We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, under which we file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies of such material also can be obtained at the SEC s website, www.sec.gov or by mail from the public reference room of the SEC, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the Public Reference Room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public on our corporate website, www.danielsonholding.com. Our common stock is traded on the American Stock Exchange. Material filed by us can be inspected at the offices of the American Stock Exchange at 86 Trinity Place, New York, NY 10006.

Covanta Energy Corporation

Covanta currently files periodic reports and other information with the SEC. Such reports and other information filed by Covanta with the SEC can be read and copied at the public reference room of the SEC at the address set forth above. Copies of such material also can be obtained at the SEC s website, www.sec.gov or by mail from the public reference room of the SEC, at prescribed rates. Please call the SEC at the number set forth above for further information on the public reference room. Covanta s SEC filings are also available to the public on their corporate website at www.covantaenergy.com.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any future filings we will make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 prior to the termination of the offering described in this prospectus:

- 1. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, filed on March 16, 2005 as amended by our Annual Reports on Form 10-K/A filed on March 21, 2005 and April 22, 2005;
- 2. Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 2, 2005, February 25, 2005, March 17, 2005 (Exhibit 23.1 thereto only), March 23, 2005, March 24, 2005, April 7, 2005 and our Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on May 12, 2005;

23

Table of Contents

- 3. Covanta s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, filed on March 17, 2005 as amended by Covanta s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed on April 22, 2005;
- 4. Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005, filed on May 4, 2005; and
- 5. Covanta s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005, filed on May 5, 2005.

You may request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning as follows: Danielson Holding Corporation, 40 Lane Road, Fairfield, New Jersey 07004 and our telephone number is (973) 882-9000.

24